MANNINGHAM

Ordinary Meeting of the Council

AGENDA

Date: Tuesday, 13 October 2020
Time: 7:00pm
Location: held via Zoom video conferencing

in accordance with section 394 of the
Local Government Act 2020

This meeting is convened to transact the business listed below.

Y a

Andrew Day
Chief Executive Officer

Election Period Statement

Council may make decisions regarding the subject of these reports in compliance with Council’s
Election Period Policy 2020.

This meeting will be livestreamed. Members of the public who address Council will be heard on the live
audio stream, and audio of them speaking will be recorded. All reasonable efforts will be made to avoid
capturing live or recorded video footage of public attendees however there might be incidental capture.
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1 OPENING PRAYER AND STATEMENTS OF
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

2 APOLOGIES AND REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE

3 PRIOR NOTIFICATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

Confirmation of the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 15 September 2020.
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5 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

5.1 Annual Report 2019/20
File Number: IN20/589
Responsible Director:  Chief Executive Officer
Attachments: 1 Annual Report 2019/20 §
ELECTION PERIOD STATEMENT
Council may make a decision regarding the subject of this report in compliance with
Council’s Election Period Policy 2020.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
All Victorian councils have a statutory obligation to prepare an Annual Report that is in
accordance with section 131 of the Local Government Act 1989 (the Act).
Council endorsed in principle the Financial Statements and Performance Statement at
its Council meeting on 15 September 2020. The full 2019/20 Annual Report, including
the certified Financial and Performance statements, was submitted to the Minister for
Local Government (the Minister) on 30 September 2020.
Council is required to publicly consider the Annual Report within one month of it being
sent to the Minister, in accordance with the Act and the Local Government (Planning
and Reporting) Regulations 2014 (the Regulations).
Attached is a copy of the full 2019/20 Annual Report.
The Mayor’s message and CEO message introductions have not been included with
the contents of the attached report due to the current Council Election Period. It is
intended that these will be added to the report following the Council election.

1. RECOMMENDATION
That Council:
A. Endorse the 2019/20 Annual Report, which includes the audited Financial

Statements and Performance Statement.
B. Note that the Mayor’s message and CEO message will be added to the Annual
Report 2019/20 following the Council election.
2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The Annual Report provides the community with a comprehensive overview of
Council’s performance during the 2019/20 financial year.

2.2 The Annual Report is a key reporting tool used to monitor Council’s performance.
It must include a report of Council’s operations as well as audited Financial
Statements and audited Performance Statement for the year.

ltem 5.1 Page 3
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2.3

It also reports on a number of service performance, financial and sustainability
indicators under the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework
(LGPRF).

2.4 The 2019/20 Annual Report has been prepared and includes:

e Areview of Council’s performance against the 2017-2021 Council
Plan and the strategic indicators contained within it.

e A statement of progress in relation to the major initiatives and
initiatives identified in the Annual Budget 2019/20 and Council’s four
year Strategic Resource Plan.

e The indicators, measures and results of the prescribed service
performance indicators and measures as part of the Local
Government Performance Reporting Framework.

e The results in the prescribed form of Council's assessment against
the governance and management checklist.

e Anoverview of the legislative, economic and other factors that have
had an impact on Council’s performance.

e Performance Statement and Financial Statements.
e Major policy initiatives, operations and works undertaken.

¢ Information on the nature and range of activities and services
delivered.

¢ Highlights, achievements and challenges for Council.

¢ Names of the Councillors who served during 2019/20, their details
and expenses in accordance with Manningham Council’s statutory
obligations.

e The administrative structure of Council, including names of the Chief
Executive Officer and members of the Executive Management Team,
the organisational chart and Council’s contact details.

3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1 The requirement of the Act and the Regulations is for the Annual Report to be
publically considered by Council within one month of it being sent to the Minister.

3.2 Council endorsed in principle the Financial Statement and Performance
Statements at its meeting on 15 September 2020. These statements form part of
the 2019/20 Annual Report.

3.3 The Annual Report was sent to the Minster on 30 September 2020 and is
presented at this meeting in accordance with the requirements of the Act.

3.4 A Mayor's message and CEO message have been prepared as an introduction
for the Annual Report 2019/20, however are not included within the contents of
the attached report due to the Council election period. This is in line with
Council’s Election Period Policy.
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3.5 During the Election Period, which runs from 22 September 2020 to 24 October
2020, Council is legally bound to not publish anything that may be seen to
influence the outcome of the local government elections on 24 October. This is
guided by Council’s Election Period Policy 2020.

3.6 The Mayor and CEO messages will be added to the publically available report on
Monday 26 October, following the October Council election and the conclusion of
the Election Period.

4. COUNCIL PLAN / STRATEGY

4.1 The Annual Report contains a summary of Council’s performance against the
strategic themes in the 2017-2021 Council Plan.

4.2 2019/20 marks the third year of the 2017-2021 Council Plan and the Annual
Report documents the performance of Council against the strategic indicators
during this year.

5. IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Council is required to comply with section 134 of the Act and Regulations, which
prescribes that Annual Report be publically considered by Council within one
month of it being sent to the Minister.

6. IMPLEMENTATION

6.1 The Annual Report 2019/20 was sent to the Minister and made available for
viewing on our website on 30 September 2020.

6.2 A public notice was placed in The Age on 1 October 2020 advising that the
Annual Report 2019/20 would be considered by Council at this ordinary meeting
of Council.

6.3 The report includes the interpreter services symbol and phone number on the
back page to direct non-English readers to contact Council’s language services
for information about the document or Council services in general.

6.4 Following this ordinary meeting of Council, the endorsed Annual Report 2019/20
will be placed on Council’s website.

6.5 Following the Council elections, the Mayor and CEO messages will be added to
the Annual Report on Monday 26 October, following the October Council election
and the conclusion of the Election Period.

6.6 When possible in line with the Victorian Government’s restrictions, hard copies of
the Annual Report will be printed and made available for viewing at the
Manningham Civic Centre and local libraries. Copies of the report can also be
made provided upon request.

7. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No Officers involved in the preparation of this report have any direct or indirect conflict
of interest in this matter.
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Welcome

Welcome to Manningham Council's Annual Report
2019/20. Each year, we report on our performance in
providing services, managing resources and meeting our

community’s needs.

We provide more than 100 services
and manage over $2 billion of land and
infrastructure assets across our 114km?
municipality

In this year's report, you can read about
our achievements and challenges

from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020, and
our aspirations for the future. You will
also find case studies throughout that
highlight the great work we do in our
community

Our Annual Report details
Manningham'’s performance against
the strategic themes outlined in our
Council Plan 2017-2021, the initiatives
in our 2019/20 Annual Budget and
2017-2021 Strategic Resource Plan

This is the sixth year we are reporting
on several service, financial and
sustainability performance indicators
under the Local Government
Performance Reporting Framework
(LGPREF).

Under the Local Government Act
1989, Manningham, like all Victorian
local governments, must present an
Annual Report to the Minister for Local
Government by 30 September each
year. We take our accountability to

our community seriously. This Annual
Report is one of the primary tools

we use to r[}por[ on our performa nce
transparently and accurately.
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Our vision

A liveable and harmanious city.

Our mission

A financially sustainable Council that listens,
consults, and acts with integrity, value and
transparency

Our strategic direction

Qur strategic direction flows from our mission,
vision, values, and five strategic themes

« Healthy community

« Liveable places and spaces

» Resilient environment

» Vibrant and prosperous economy

« Well governed council.

Under each theme, specific goals guide
us in our work to serve our community.
We describe these themes and goals on
page 52

We have established internal values for our
organisation that guide how we interact with
our customers and deliver our services

Item 5.1 Attachment 1 Page 9
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MANNINGHAM COUNCIL ANNUAL REPCRT 2019/20

Our values

WorkinG
ToCether Excellence

$ Striving to ‘be your best’

¥ Responding flexibly to challenges and
opportunities

$ Proactively seeking better ways

¥ Making meaningful contributions

EmpowereDd

MANNINGHAM

ks G a
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Manningham
snapshot
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$48 .4b4million

in capital works
projects delivered

—

534,379

visitors to
manningham.vic.gov.au

135,067

immunisations

provided

® 14,894

calls received by the
contact centre

579 ,823

library loans

hours of care including
domestic, personal
and respite care
support services

@/ g3

roads resurfaced

506,201

visits to Aquarena

873

residents became
Australian Citizens

plants planted
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o be inserted on 26 October 2020.
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To be inserted on 26 October 2020.
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Financial
performance overview

Despite the financial challenges of the COVID-19 pandemic,
Manningham Council’s financial results remain strong. These results
demonstrate our commitment to maintaining long-term financial
sustainability while providing cost-effective services and delivering
infrastructure projects to meet the needs of our community. See the
summary of our performance below. More detailed information can

be found in the Financial Report section.

Operating position

In 2019/20, we achieved an operating surplus
of $26.33 million which was $9.53 million
greater than the adaopted budget surplus of
$16.80 million. The greater than budgeted
surplus is mainly attributable to $7 32 million
greater than budgeted non-monetary (asset)
contributions from developers and $1 59
million greater than budgeted developer
contributions (monetary]. Council also
received an unbudgeted early payment of
50 per cent of the 2020/21 Financial
Assistance Grants allocation ($1.83 million)
during the year.

Within Council’s surplus, a number of income
items that are either restricted in use or
‘non-cash’ in nature. The adjusted underlying
surplus excludes these items such as non-
recurrent capital grants, non-monetary asset
contributions and other contributions to fund
capital expenditure (including developer

and open space contributions). The adjusted
underlying surplus was S7.67 million.

Sustaining an adjusted underlying surplus
is a critical financial strategy that provides
an important source of funding for the
renewal and upgrade of over §2 billion of
community assets

» Figure 1. Adjusted underlying surplus (Smillions)

14.199

7.666

2015/16 201718

201617 201819 2019/20
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Income

We derived our income from various sources, including rates, user fees and charges, grants,
interest and other contributions. Our total income for 2019/20 was $153.45 million, compared
to a budget of $14315 million The additional revenue was mainly due to greater than
budgeted menetary and non-monetary contributions from developers

= Table 1. 2019/20 Income

g,';g';‘e 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 201819  2019/20
General rates 81,370 82,819 85,839 88,8535 92,216
Waste charges 12,040 10,201 10,830 13,126 13,737
User fees, charges and fines 12,553 14,3269 14,940 14,570 12,308
Operating grants 10,023 12,366 12,229 12173 12,257
Capital grants 7189 3,999 5578 2,672 1661

Contributions (monetary and

5924 22387 14766 13,949 18,476
non-maonetary)
Interest revenue 1,874 1629 1,576 1,981 1,469
Other income 1,207 1,885 138 1,276 1325
Total 132,180 149,655 143,896 148,600 153,449

Expenditure

Our total expenditure for 2019/20 was $12712 million, compared to a budget of $126 35 million
In 2019/20, the main expense was employee costs, which accounted for $54.12 million. We
provide services to our community through a combination of contractors and employees.

Item 5.1 Attachment 1 Page 20
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s Table 2. 2019/20 Expenditure

I g,’f)p;gd't”’e 2015/16  2016/17 201718  2018/19  2019/20
Employee costs 47,890 51,029 52,505 53,326 54120
Materials and contracts 21,595 22115 20,261 23,446 28,469
Depreciation and amortisation 20,221 19,347 20,566 21,640 23,946
Community grants and library 5,203 5,471 5577 5575 4,991
Other expenses 12,605 15,049 14,161 15,461 15,596
Total 107,514 m,081 13,770 19,448 127,121

Net worth

Our financial strength is indicated by net
assets (what we own less what we owe).

As at 30 June 2020, Council owns net
assets of $2 14 billion including community
infrastructure assets of $2.08 billion.

Assets

Our total assets are valued at $2.19 billion.
This is a decrease of $27 55 million or 1.2%
on the prior year and is primarily due to a
decrease in the value of land, buildings and
other infrastructure assets. Valuations have
been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic

The major components of our assets include:

« Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

valued at $2.08 billion.
« Cash and investments of $86.52 million.
« Debtors of $13.52 million.

Liabilities

Our liabilities include amounts owed to
suppliers and employee leave entitlements
Total liabilities at 30 June 2020 were $54 .81
million, an increase of $7.74 million over the
previous year

Council fully repaid $7.28 million of loan
borrowings during the year and is now
debt-free.

Figure 2. Total assets (Smillions)

2,190

201516

s Figure 3

201617

2017118

2018/19

2019/20

Debt to rates and charges (96)

O‘O%

2015/16

201617

201718

2018/19

2019/20
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Capital investment = Figure 4. Capital Works Program (Smillions)

Council aims to maintain its infrastructure
assets at expected levels while continuing to
deliver services needed by our community
During 2019/20, we invested S48.44 million in
an extensive Capital Works Program to renew
and upgrade community assets throughout
the municipality. This program was funded

primarily through rates, with additional funds o
provided through grants and contributions. 270
« The major categories of capital works

included: 201516 2016/17 201718 201819  2019/20
« land and community buildings: $8.65 million

« plant, equipment and other assets:
$2.48 million

infrastructure assets (such as roads, drainage, ~ ® Figure 5. Working capital ratio (%)
footpaths and cycleways, recreation, leisure,

parks, open space and streetscapes):
$33.56 million

217.0%
Liquidity

Cash and term deposits at 30 June 2020
were $86.52 million, a decrease of $1.52
million from the previous year. The working
capital ratio, which assesses our ability to
meet current commitments, is calculated by
measuring our current assets as a percentage
of current liabilities. Our result of 198.3% 2015/16 2016/17 2017718 2018/19  2019/20
indicates that for every dollar of short-term

liabilities, we have $1.98 worth of assets.
This is a strong result
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Financial summary

Our financial results for 2019/20 were better
than budgeted. These results demonstrate
our commitment to maintaining long-term
financial sustainability while providing cost-
effective services and delivering infrastructure
projects to meet the needs of our community
The 2019/20 Financial Statements show that
the organisation remains in a sound financial
position despite the financial impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on Council (see page 180).

This result was also achieved within the
Victorian Government’s 'Fair Go Rates’
legislation. The legislation requires a cap on
the average increase in Council rates The
rate cap set by the Victorian Government was
2 5% for 2019/20. Manningham achieved the
Victorian Government rate cap for 2019/20.

Fast facts

+ $26.33 million operating surplus, a decrease
of $2.82 million on the previous year

« $767 million adjusted underlying surplus, a
decrease of $6.53 million on the previous year

+ 5728 million of borrowings were fully repaid
in 2019/20, leaving us debt-free

« $4844 million capital works delivered, an
increase of 52147 million on the previous year

« 5214 billion in net assets, a decrease of
53529 million on the previous year

26.33m

7.67m

$2.82 million from
the previous year
adjusted underlying e
surplus, a decrease

of $6.53 million on
the previous year

of borrowmgs were fully

$48.44m

leaving us debt- free
capital works delivered,
an increase of $21.47
million on the
previous year

$2.14b
s

a decrease of
$35.29 million
from the
previous year
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Our services
during 2019/20

For every S100 we spent this year, we will spend this much in each area.

Capital Works Program Roads, footpaths and Waste services and
$32,25 drainage recycling
$9.35 $7.98

Parks, gardens and Planning and environmental Arts, culture and
sportsgrounds management libraries

$10.26 $6.49 $4.61

Aged and disability Health, children and Community support
support services families and development

$6.63 $4.49 $2.25

Customer service, Council owned community Risk management and
governance and buildings insurances

administration $2.76 $1.56
$1.37
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Our major
projects 2019/20

Manningham provides safe, accessible and appropriate infrastructure
that meets the changing lifestyles of our community.

We achieved tangible cutcomes from our Capital Works Program, delivering just under $50
million of capital projects to our customers. Below is a summary of key projects we completed
in 2019/20:

« 58.0 million in road resurfacing works = 526 million in footpath works

« 519 million on stage one of the Jumping + 558 million in building renewal works
Creek Road upgrade project « $41 million in drainage works

+ $07 million in sports floodlighting + $09 million at Neighbourhood Activity

« 51.0 million in playspace upgrades including Centres.

those located at Tasker Reserve, Thea Reserve,
Jocelyn Reserve and Lynwood Reserve

Item 5.1
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ur Council
Our Manningham
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Manningham profile

yuncillors
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Manningham
profile

Manningham is in Melbourne's eastern suburbs. It stretches from
Bulleen, about 12km from Melbourne’'s Central Business District
(CBD), to Wonga Park, about 32km from the CBD.

Covering N4km?, Manningham has large areas of open space, including more than 300
parks and reserves, and a mix of shopping and dining precincts. With vibrant residential
neighbourhoods and lots of housing options, Manningham also includes attractions such
as local galleries, nurseries and community centres.

A large section of the eastern half of Manningham is designated as a Green Wedge to
protect Melbourne's significant natural and rural environment

We also have a diverse and multicultural community that brings a wealth of languages,

music, food and cultural traditions to our region.

Our people

We are a diverse community of over 125,000
pecple. Our population spans a wide range of
ages, household types, incomes and cultural
backgrounds, as shown by the demographic
information below.

In 2017, 75.4% of households were purchasing
or fully owned their home, 17.6% were renting
privately and 0.6% lived in affordable housing.

75 5% of dwellings in Manningham were
separate houses, 19.3% were units and
townhouses and 4.7% were apartments.
44.2% of households in Manningham had no
children.

Children up to 14 years old were 16.19 of the
population and people over 65 years 21 3%
and the median age was 43 years.

42 4% of our community spoke a language
other than English at home, with Mandarin
(10.796) and Cantonese (8.1%) being the most
common. 39.8% were born overseas, mostly in
China.

By 2036 we expect our population to reach
149,274

Our history

The history of Manningham dates back millennia
to the Wurundjeri people whose way of life is
closely linked to the natural environment.

In the late 1830s, the first European settlers
began growing wheat, vegetables and grapes,
before eventually planting orchards throughout
the area.

The discovery of gold in Warrandyte was a real
turning point and by 1851, fortune hunters
were trying their luck panning the streams and
digging the rich soil around Harris Gully

Local government in the area dates back to

the election of the Templestowe District Roads
Board in 1856. On 28 February 1967, the Shire of
Doncaster and Templestowe was proclaimed a
City 2017 marked the 50th anniversary of the
proclamation.

The City of Manningham was formed in 1994 as
a result of local government amalgamations

Item 5.1
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Council wards

In the 2019/20 financial year, Manningham was divided into
three wards. The areas our wards cover is shown in Figure 1 and
described below. Each ward is home to about 30,000 voters.
The ward boundaries were drawn after an independent review
in 2007 of Manningham's electoral representation structure.

Heide Ward  Part of Bulleen, Templestowe
and Templestowe Lower

Koonung Doncaster, the part of Doncaster
Ward East south of Doncaster Road, part of
Bulleen and part of Nunawading

Mullum Warrandyte, Wonga Park, Warrandyte
Mullum South, Park Orchards and significant
Ward parts of Donvale, the rest of Doncaster

East and part of Ringwood North

= Figure & Manningham Council wards

Heide Ward

Koonung Ward

Our suburbs

The suburbs in
Manningham are

Bulleen
Doncaster
Doncaster East

Donvale part of
Nunawading

Park Orchards part of
Ringwoad North

Templestowe
Templestowe Lower
Warrandyte
Warrandyte South
Wonga Park

An independent review of Manningham's electoral boundaries commenced on 26 June
2019 In July 2020, the Minister for Local Government announced the new electoral structure
for Manningham. From the 24 October 2020 election, Manningham will have nine single
Councillor wards The new electoral structure will be reported on in the 2020/21 Annual Report

Mullum Mullum Ward
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Our

Councillors

Council elections are held every four years and at the last election in
2016 three Councillors were elected by Manningham's residents to
represent each of our three wards.

Together, our Councillors guide the Our current Council was formally sworn in on
development of strategies and policies, as 8 November 2016 and included five returning
well as make key decisions to help shape how Councillors and four new Councillors.

Manningham will develop in the future.

A Mayor and Deputy Mayor is elected each year.

Manningham's current Councillors were elected  During this financial year Andrew Conlon served
on 22 October 2016. The election was conducted  as Mayor and Michelle Kleinert as Deputy from
by postal vote in accordance with a resolution November 2017 - November 2018, In November
of Council The Victorian Electoral Commission 2018, Cr Paula Piccinini was elected Mayor and

(VEC) conducted the election.

Heide

Cr Anna Chen was elected Deputy Mayor.

Cr Geoff Gough Cr Paula Piccinini Cr Michelle Kleinert
Elected: Elected: Elected to Council:
22 October 2016 {returning, 22 October 2016 22 October 2016 (returning,

first elected 15 March 1997)
@ 0412 345 081

@ geoffreygough@
manninghamvic govau

first elected 27 October 2012)
Term as Mayor:

November 2018 - ® 0400 902 822

November 2019 . )
michelle kleinert@

® 0411 483176 manningham.vic.gov.au

© paulapiccinini@
manninghamvic.gov.au

Item 5.1 Attachment 1
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Koonung

Cr Mike Zafiropoulos AM

Cr Anna Chen Cr Dot Haynes (Deputy Mayor)
Elected: Elected: Elected:
22 October 2016 22 October 2016 (returning, 22 October 2016

@ 0429 470 05]

@ annachen@
manningham.vic.govau

Mullum Mullum

first elected 27 October 2012)
® 0425718 937

© dothaynes@
manninghamvic.govau

® 0412 260709

© mike zafiropoulos@
manningham vic.gov.au

Cr Andrew Conlon

Cr Sophy Galbally

Cr Paul McLeish
(Mayor)

Elected to Council:
22 October 2016

O 0425732 238

© andrew.conlon@
manningham vic govau

Elected:
22 October 2016 (returning,
first elected 27 October 2012)

& 0409 417 369

© sophy galbally@
manningham vic.gov.au

Elected:

22 October 2016
(returning, first elected
27 October 2012)

Elected as Mayor:
November 2019

O 0435 806 684

@ paul. mcleish@
manningham vic.gov.au
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Our
organisation

Manningham Council is led by our CEO, who operates under the
guidance of our elected Council. Our Executive Management Team
(EMT) supports our CEO and is made up of three Directors and two
Group Managers. Our CEO is directly accountable to the Mayor and
Councillors, who are elected by our community. The EMT oversees
and manages our operations, with the support of Group and
Service Unit Managers and their staff.
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Our Executive Management Team

Y /)

Andrew Day Rachelle Quattrocchi Philip Lee
Chief Executive Officer Director City Services Director Shared Services
September 2018 to present March 2020 to present December 2013 to present

Angelo Kourambas Andrew McMaster Kerryn Paterson
Director City Planning Corporate Counsel GCroup Manager People
and Community and Croup Manager and Communications

Governance and Risk

February 2018 to present February 2019 to present February 2019 to present

Outgoing staff who held
senior roles in 2019/20

Leigh Harrison
Director City Services
March 2010 to March 2020

Lee Robson
Manger Community
Resilience

March 2020 to present
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= Figure 7

Manningham Council Organisational Chart as at June 2020

Community
|

Council
|

Community
Resilience
Manager
Lee Robson

Chief
Executive Officer
Andrew Day

13 OCTOBER 2020

City Services
Director
Rachelle
Quattrocchi

City Planning
and Community
Director

Angelo
Kourambas

Shared Services
Director
Philip Lee

Corporate

Counsel and Group
Manager
coverpance

and Risk

Andrew McMaster

People and

Communications
Group Manager
Kerryn Paterson

City Amenity
Helen Napier

Infrastructure
and City Projects
Group Manager
Grant Jack

Infrastructure
Services
James Paterson

City Services
Krishen
Soobrayen

Assest
Management
and Capital
Works

Property Services
Graham Brewer

Approvals and
Compliance
Group Manager
Niall Sheehy

Statutory
Planning
Fiona Troise

Building Services
Russel Mills

City Compliance

Environmental
Health

Integrated
Planning

Frank Vassilacos
(acting)

Community
Programs
Group Manager
Justin Hanrahan
(acting)

Aged and
Disability
Support Services
Keri Kennealy

Economic and
Community
Wellbeing
Michelle
Zemancheff
(acting)

Maternal and
Child Health
Services

Children’s
Services

Attachment 1

Chief Financial Governance
Officer
Jon Gorst Legal

Risk and
Assurance

Procurement
and Contracts
Molley Qi
Mayor and
Councillor
Support

Citizen Connect
Sasha Lord

Information
Technology
David Bellechambers

Transformation
Fiona Park

Communications
Jude Whelan

People, Culture

and Safety

Planning and
Performance




COUNCIL AGENDA 13 OCTOBER 2020

Our
employees

One of the ways we shape positive outcomes for our community
is by being inclusive and passionate about what we do. This also
shapes the way we manage our workforce. Our people programs
focus on attracting, retaining, and developing a diverse range of
skilled people.

Major achievements with our employees

We implemented our new learning management system for our staff, which improves
accessibility to learning opportunities, improves the quality and consistency of learning
records and integrates our learning and performance systems.

We commenced negotiations on our next Enterprise Agreement.

We strengthened our work health and safety program through a planned and agile
education and communications program.

Aninternal audit of our work health and safety program highlighted our positive culture
when it comes to safe working, reporting and management of incidents.

We initiated our new work health and safety system to better support cur staff to report
hazards and incidents and access policy, procedures and performance data We aim to
complete this rollout in 2020/21

We increased the profile of our child safety standards and practice through reviewing our
policy, implementing an eLearning module, and developing a dedicated staff intranet

page.

I We impraved our new starter experience with a custom-built online corporate induction.

We improved our workforce reporting capability and data accessibility through the
PowerBl system.

Item 5.1 Attachment 1 Page 36



COUNCIL AGENDA 13 OCTOBER 2020

We embedded our new Code of Conduct and rolled it out to our staff with a custom-built
elearning module.

We deepened our commitment to diversity and inclusion with the formation of the
Diversity & Inclusion Working Croup and participation in the Gender Equality Bill
Implementation Pilot {including Gender Impact Analysis pilot and Workplace Gender
Audit pilot).

We revisited our priorities and refocused our efforts to support our organisation in its
response to the COVID-19 pandemic while continuing to deliver much needed services in
our community

« We quickly adapted to ensure business continuity. This included facilitating our staff to work
remotely, create our COVID-19 leave policy, rework cur procedures and adjust our service
delivery.

« We adapted to ensure culture continuity. This included offering health and wellbeing
support, support to our leadership team, rolling out online training, reward and recognition,
employee engagement and connection initiatives.

« We developed a dedicated plan for ensuring a COVID-19 safe workplace for all Manningham
staff, including key organisation-wide controls and local controls.

« We participated in the Working for Victoria Program with 41 new roles established.

Item 5.1 Attachment 1 Page 37



COUNCIL AGENDA

13 OCTOBER 2020

Our
people

As at 30 June 2020, Manningham employed 666 people in a
full-time, part-time or casual capacity, equating to 488.75 full-time
equivalent (FTE) employees.

Our people deliver a diverse range of functions — including engineering, customer service,
administraticn, finance, community and aged care, planning, waste management, parks and

recreation, local laws, arts and culture, and management.

Staff profile

The tables below show the total number of full-time equivalent (FTE) Manningham employees
as at 30 June 2020 The tables break down our workforce by directorate, employment type,
employment classification and gender.

m Table 3. 2019/20 Staff Profile

) 2 ?

2 o £ .3

£ ¢ €2 2
Employment g kY fERE o
Type/ Gender = % & E %

%5 g (] oo [ =

T E 2 22 g 5

Go O G& 7 2
Full Time - Female* 23 3] 56 33 143
Full Time - Male* 9 120 46 30 205
Part Time - Female’ 6.61 6.86 93.01 10.93 117.43
Part Time - Male” 0.80 223 13.93 052 17.49
Casual - Female 062 0 357 0 419
Casual - Male 042 022 0.98 o 162
Total 4046 160.32 213.50 7446 488.75

* Includes permanent and temporary employees
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A M

= Table 4 201920 Employment Classification

I Employment Classification Female FTE Male FTE Total FTE
Band 1 538 340 878
Band 2 1268 8.95 28.63
Band 3 2768 46.82 7450
Band 4 2331 24.82 4813
Band 5 5392 281 82.02
Band 6 6095 3766 98.61
Band 7 3642 30.80 67.22
Band 8 12.56 22 34.56
Nurses 1075 0.04 10.79
Senior Executive Officer 2 153 SI55
Senior officers’ 12 20 32
Total 264.64 22412 488.75

* Senior officers include the CEO, any officer of Council who has management responsibilities and reports directly to the
CEO or any other member of Council staff whose total annual remuneration exceeds S151,000.

At 30 June 2020, the majority of our Qur turnover of permanent staff during
employees were aged over 35 years (87%). 2019/20 was 12%, slightly up compared
419 of our employees were aged between to recent years

46 and 65 years and 15% less than 35 years. The following tables show staff turnover

Most of our employees are at the officer level employee level and age breakdown of our
(9594), with senior management representing  employees in individuals, not FTE
5% of the total workforce.

» Table 5 2019/20 Staff turnover

I Staff turnover 201516 201617 201718 2018/19 2019/20
Staff turnover 12% 1496 10% 10% 12%

I Employment level 201516 201617 2017h8 2018/19 2019/20
Officer Level 296% 95%.0 95% 95% 9596
Senior Officers’ 494 5% 5% 5% 5%

* Senior Officers include the CEQ, any officer of Council who has management responsibilities and reports directly to the
CEO or any other member of Council staff whose total annual remuneration exceeds $151,000.
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m Table 6 2019/20 Staff age profile

Age profile 201516 201617 201718 2018/19 201819
<25 years 18 19 16 12 14
26-35 years m 107 87 79 72
36-45 years 139 133 140 128 134
46-55 years 212 271 206 203 210
56-65 years 150 157 160 161 165

> B> years 65 65 63 74 7
Total 704 702 672 657 666

Conditions of employment

Maost employees at Manningham are
employed under the conditions of the
Manningham City Council Enterprise
Agreement 7, 2017 (the Agreement)

The benefits we cffer te our employees
include:

An Employee Assistance Program that
provides confidential and independent
personal or professional support and
counselling.

A Study Assistance program supporting
staff to study at colleges or universities,
providing up to $2,60179 per person per
financial year towards costs, and up to four
hours a week of extra leave.

Flexible working arrangements, such as
purchasing additional leave and working
from home

Learning and development programs in
technology, project management and
regulatory and governance frameworks.

In 2019/20, over 5000 development hours
were undertaken by staff across 80 learning
programs

- A range of proactive injury prevention
health and wellbeing programs such as
participation in the Local Covernment
Employees (LGE) Health Plan and access
to immunisations.

Diversity and Inclusion in the workplace

We believe everyone has the right te work in
an environment of mutual respect and have
the opportunity to progress to the fullest
extent of their capabilities

We value diversity and act to create a safe
and inclusive envircnment for everyone -
regardless of background, ability, where we
live, what we look like, what we think, who we
love or what we believe.

Our policies and practices are specifically
designed to meet the diverse needs of our
employees and customers, and ensure
that our workplace remains free from
discrimination and harassment
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s Table 7. Discrimination, Harassment and
Bullying Policy success measurements

I Indicator Result
Target percentage of new
emp\oyegs receiving egugl 84.8%
opportunity training within 6
months of commencement 100%
Target number of contact officers Result:
available across the organisation: 4 3

Reward and recognition

The contribution of aur people is vital to our

success as an organisation To recognise our

people for excellence, we have a Reward and
Recognition Award Program.

Excellence Awards

In 2019/20, we presented 111 Excellence
Awards to staff across the organisation at
eight directorate-based events. These awards
recoghised our people who demonstrated
excellence across one or more of these
categories:

« Customers - our focus

+ People - engaged, empowered and
accountable

Technology - rebust and easy to use
Leadership - inspiring and courageous,
driving performance through teamwaork and
communication

-

« Continuous improvement - empowering
change by identifying and implementing
process improvements

Policies and processes - progressive,
streamlined and consistent

« Place - responsible custodianship of
Manningham for the public good.

Service Awards

One of the ways we recognise the
contributions of long-standing employees is
by presenting them with awards at milestones
of 10,15, 20, 25, 30, 35, 40, 45 and 50 years of
service This year, we recognised 60 employees
with these awards.
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Our COVID-19
response
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OUR COWVID-19 RESPONSE

Our COVID-19
response

The COVID-19 pandemic is the greatest health crisis our community
has faced. During the last months of 2019/20, it has placed pressure
on individuals, families, community groups and businesses as they
face uncertain futures.

We have quickly adapted our service delivery to provide much-needed support to the
Manningham community.

In April 2020, Council endorsed a $3.8 million COVID-19 relief package to provide relief to the
community. We have adapted our operations to make sure we keep cur community and staff
safe and we have transitioned much of our workforce to remote working

Below are some details of the ways we have adapted our operations to ensure continued
support to our community as well as some of the challenges we have faced in responding to
the COVID-19 pandemic.

How we have innovated and adapted to support our residents

We moved our weekly rosters to a digital form to enable our 10 Home Support
Worker staff members to work remotely and continue our in-home care for vulnerable
community members.

We made over 2,200 calls to assess our Aged and Disability Service clients for vulnerability
and isolation From these calls, we determined which clients would benefit from service
changes or further contact.

We maodified our in-hame services to better manage our prioritised response to our Aged
and Disability clients,

Council staff took aver our Meals on Wheels distribution to support the health of our food
services volunteers.

We developed new ways to engage with our older community members in lock-down
to reduce the impact of isclation. This included our Community Connection and social
support newsletters and Activity Packs, Zoom group meetings and a group project to
create a Hibernation Quilt.

Our Pre Schoaol Field Officer program continued to build the capacity of Early Childhood
Educators in Manningham. The program was quickly adapted to online platforms so our
Educators could continue to support Manningham families.
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We established two new grants programs to support the community through the
pandemic, which included a $300,000 Urgent Relief program to existing Partnership
Crant organisations to support the pandemic response in community.

We delivered art studio programs online after the pandemic prevented face to face classes
together with online exhibitions, including When In Lockdown documenting creative
responses to COVID-19, and an innovative new Creative Industries Support program.

We provided food and health premises advice on safely re-opening during COVID-19
restrictions.

We changed cur environmental health assessments with businesses to mainly telephone
assessments and 15-minute on-site validation of process and temperatures.

We continued our management of all front-line staff, including pound operations and
school crossing supervisors at full capacity to ensure continued support to our community.

Our Maternal and Child Health staff continued their valuable service to the community,
running at almost full capacity with small changes to how we conducted our
consultations.

We worked to ensure our business and community groups received the support they
needed.

Our Maternal and Child Health services quickly adapted to offer new service types,
including Zoom groups and telehealth consultations.

We implemented virtual Council meetings to enable our Councillors to govern despite
COVID-19 restrictions.

We adapted to support much of our waorkforce working from home. The rapid rollout of
Zoom video conferencing and other remote working tools enabled over 300 staff per
day to be able to login remotely and continue to provide a high level of service to the
community under challenging conditions. All corporate applications were accessible and
continued to perform to a high standard

We successfully rolled out 110 new email accounts to Home Support Workers over two
weeks in March 2020 to enable improved communication and reduced travel to these
vital front-line workers

We successfully on-boarded 41 Working for Victoria staff, including providing them laptops,
remote access and induction training.
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We launched a Community Connect service, which was available to residents seven days a
week, with dedicated support officers available by phone or email to provide support and
connect community members in need to a range of social support groups and resources

Our Citizen Connect team offered extended customer service hours to our community

At the beginning of the COVID-19 outbreak our contact centre moved to work remotely
while the front of house team continued to modify and refine how it did business to meet
the State Government guidelines.

Our customer service offering was modified to give customers the option to book
appointments online and we offered a drive through service to vulnerable community
members, posted masks to vulnerable community members and developed an online
financial hardship application.

Our Citizen Connect team created a new concierge role to welcome visitors and record
and manage visiter and staff information.

Our organisation quickly adapted to ensure business continuity. This included creating
our COVID-19 leave policy, reworking our procedures and adjusting our service delivery

Our organisation adapted quickly to ensure culture continuity. This included offering
health and wellbeing support, suppaort to our leadership team, rolling cut anline training,
reward and recognition, employee engagement and connection initiatives.

We quickly developed a dedicated plan for ensuring a COVID safe workplace for all
Manningham staff, including key organisaticnal wide controls and local controls.

We participated in the Working for Victoria Program with 41 new roles established.

We increased the delivery of our Food Services meals from three days to five days a week

We introduced a new digital version of Manningham Matters to provide regular and timely
updates to our community during the rapidly evolving COVID-19 situation.

We distributed $269,000 in Urgent Relief Funding to community organisations who
provide emergency relief and material aid, food packages, counselling services and
housing support throughout Manningham

Many of these initiatives have been in response to some of the challenges the COVID-19
pandemic presented
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The challenges we have faced in response to COVID-19

The pandemic can leave people feeling isolated and experiencing feelings of loneliness
and disconnection so we had to find new ways to connect and serve vulnerable people
in our community. We have reached out to our aged care and disability service clients by
phone and adapted the way we deliver our services to meet their needs

We have been unable to provide opportunities for our community to use our venues due
to government restrictions and physical distancing requirements.

All of our cultural venues, including the Manningham Art Gallery, Manningham Art Studios
and Doncaster Playhouse were closed due to restrictions

Our major recreation facilities including the Aquarena Aquatic and Leisure Centre and
Manningham Stadiums were closed due to restrictions in place

We experienced significant demand on our Environmental Health Service as it assisted
our organisation in its response to the pandemic including sourcing personal protective
equipment supplies for our staff

We were only able to undertake 50% of our Tobacco Service Agreement testing.

We experienced an increase in home-based food and health premises applications as
businesses closed and find alternative ways to produce products and stay viable

We experienced some difficulty in obtaining the services and materials we need to
upgrade our infrastructure.

Deteriorated market conditions required our Property Services team to adjust their focus
and the way they work.

Delays in some projects due to the impact on stakeholder availability, organisational
change readiness and tender processes.

Delays to our new Graduate program for a newly qualified Maternal and Child Health
nurses due to COVID-19 restrictions. We expect this will be successfully completed in
2020/21

Delays to the work we have been undertaking towards consolidating our Maternal and
Child Health Centres to multi-nurse centres. We expect the works to be completed in
2020/21.
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OUR COWVID-19 RESPONSE

Our Maternal and Child Health service remained flexible, responding quickly to rapidly
changing advice from the Victorian Government Department of Health and Human
Services. We quickly adapted the way we deliver our Maternal and Child Health services to
ensure we were operating in the safest way possible.

Our ability to deliver our Council Plan has been somewhat impacted in the last few
months of 2019/20, particularly actions involving community participation and in support
of local tourism and businesses \We have proactively worked to adapt our service delivery
and support in line with the COVID-19 restrictions and physical distancing protocols from
the Victorian Government Department of Health and Human Services.
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COVID-19 case study:

Supporting our community through COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic has put immense
pressure on our residents and businesses, and
Council has quickly adapted its operations

to provide much-needed support to our
community.

During the outbreak we reached out to
vulnerable members of our community,
placing over 2,200 calls to our Aged and
Disability Service clients in a three-week
period to help us make assessments around
risk, social isolation and service priority.
Following these calls, we were able to make
referrals and adjustments to our services to
best support our clients

During this time, we received increasing
demand for our Meals on Wheels service
and adapted our operations to ensure
continued service to vulnerable members
of our community. To reduce risks to the
volunteers who usually deliver our meals,
we redesigned the program to allow Council
staff to take over the delivery of meals five
days a week Ta do this, we created two
teams to further safeguard this essential
service to the community

To provide further support to the community,
we launched our Be Kind Manningham
initiative to encourage everyone in our
community to be creative and to be kind

to themselves, each other, businesses and
children as we face the pandemic together
The initiative shares information and ideas
with community members around how to
lock after their physical and mental health,
spread kindness within neighbourhoods,
support local businesses, share creative
projects and engage and support children.

We also launched Community Connect, a
dedicated community support hotline for
Manningham. Available seven days a week,
community members were invited to call
the hotline to speak with dedicated support
staff who could connect them with a range
of social support groups and resources that
are appropriate to their specific needs

The hotline received over 700 calls from
community members who felt vulnerable,
were self-isolating or who needed assistance
in completing everyday tasks.
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Reporting on our
performance
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Planning and reporting framework

Our Council Plan 2017-2021

Our 2019/20 performance
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Planning and
reporting framework

The Victorian Government introduced the Local Government
Performance Reporting Framework (LGPRF) in 2014 to enable all
Victorian Councils to measure and report on their performance in
a consistent way.

To report on our performance, we prepare: Figure & shows the key planning and
reporting documents that make up the local
government planning and accountability
framework and the relationships between

+ a Council Plan within the first six months after
each general election or 30 June, whichever

is later
‘ these documents. It also shows where we
» a Strategic Resource Plan for at |east four must provide opportunities for community
years and stakeholder input.

.

an Annual Budget for each financial year
9 y The timing of each part of the planning

* an Annual Report for each financial year. framework shown in Figure 8 is critical to
achieving our planned outcomes
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Figure 8. Planning and accountability framewark
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Our Council
Plan 2017-2021

In 2017 we introduced our current Council Plan that will guide
our activities until 2021.

Our Council Plan 2017-2021 outlines five strategic themes for the four-year term. Each theme
has corresponding goals Each goal has action areas and specific actions for us to achieve

» Figure 9: Our 5 strategic themes

Healthy
Community

Liveable Places

Well Governed
and Spaces

Council

Resilient
Environment

Vibrant and
Prosperous Economy
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Our
2019/20 performance

In this Annual Report, we measure our performance for 2019/20 against:

= the strategic themes and their goals set out = the service performance, financial and
in our Council Plan 2017-2021 sustainability capacity indicators, and

» our 2019/20 Annual Budget, including measures introduced as part of the Local
initiatives and capital works, and services to Government Performance Reporting
the whole or sections of our community Framework (LGPRF) in 2014.

« our four-year Strategic Resource Plan that This Annual Report includes our key
summarises and guides how we allocate achievements and challenges, and some
resources against each strategic theme and fast facts for each theme. We hope this
their goals information gives a deeper understanding of

our performance in the 2019/20 financial year
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Themes from our
Council Plan

2017-2021
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Developing our Council Plan

Healthy community

Liveable places and spaces

Resilient environment

Vibrant and prosperous economy

Well governed council
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Developing our
Council Plan

This year marks the final year of our Council Plan 2017-2021.

To develop our plan, we spoke to more than 2,500 community
members who participated in our community consultation,
asking ‘what is important in Manningham?’.

This information was used to inform our
four-year Council Plan 2017-2021, with a strong
focus on getting back to basics and delivering
quality services to our community

In this section, we report on our key
achievements and challenges within each
theme and provide some fast facts on our
activities during 2019/20.
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s Table 8 Council Plan 2017-2021 themes and goals

Themes Goals
Healthy . .
community 1.1 A healthy, resilient and safe community

@ﬁ 1.2 A connected and inclusive community

Liveable places .
and spaces 2.1 Inviting places and spaces

2.2 Enhanced parks, open space and streetscapes

2.3 Well connected, safe and accessible travel

2.4 Well utilised and maintained community infrastructure

Resilient ) o )
environment 3.1 Protect and enhance our environment and biodiversity
@~ 3.2 Reduce our environmental impact and adapt to climate
/y change

Vibrant and

prosperous

economy

4.1 Grow our local business, tourism and economy

0

Well governed 51 A financially sustainable Council that manages resources
council

]
=

effectively and efficiently

]

5.2 A Council that values citizens in all that we do
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Healthy
community

Our population and diversity is predicted to continue to increase.
This shift will bring with it some transformation in the mix of people
within the community.

This will result in a greater need for services, facilities and safe spaces for children and older
adults, as well as transport options and housing.

Through a strong partnership approach, we will focus on ensuring that people stay healthy and
well, can access the services they need, are connected to their local neighbourhoods, feel safe,
and live in a harmonious and inclusive community.

8 1.1 A healthy, resilient and safe community

o
A community where everyone aspires to optimal health and wellbeing
A community that feels safe inside and outside the home

g A strong sense of place with liveable neighbourhoods

[

E A resilient community prepared for and responsive to emergencies

c

K= Opportunities for lifelong learning, volunteering and feeling part of the

0 community

<
A strong and innovative service system that meets community needs
A community that is active in the prevention of family viclence

3 1.2. A connected and inclusive community

o
Inclusive of cur community in age, ability and diversity

g Support people to connect and engage in community life

[+

E Housing choices that meet the needs of our community

c . - . .

) A community that has local inclusive employment opportunities

=)

% A community that values respectful relationships and gender equity
Respect, support and celebrate Abecriginal people, culture and heritage
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Snapshot

OUR people 39.8%
POR .=

72 languages spoken
at home

@
6.9%M0 .. wm=

with some activities

increase in retirement age residents

OUR health AND safety
J

Considered safest
community in the east
»

708 55%

family incidents will walk alone
(as recorded by police) at night

[ ]
OUR Jives
-_—

183% i R

increase in dementia
expected by 2050 safe

feel part of ) live on oy live
0,
74% the community 33% <$400/week 18% alone
b N T b
individual weekly
income
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What you asked for

« community connections

« building neighbourhood connections

« support to feel safe and live in a harmonious and inclusive community

« better health and wellbeing

« services for young people and older people that are easy to access

+ housing choices that meet the needs of our community

» acreative community that appreciates and engages in the arts, culture and heritage

Achievements: what we delivered

Our inaugural Positive Ageing Alliance group meeting was held on 11 July 2019
The Positive Ageing Action Plan was developed and endorsed in February 2020

We issued our Aged and Disability Support Service (ADSS) Client Satisfaction Survey to approximately

2000 clients. Of those surveyed, we received 664 responses. The survey respondents told us:

» 98% said the services they received enabled them to live the best life they can most or all of
the time

« 999 trust their service provider most or all of the time
« 1009% said staff treated them with respect most or all of the time
« 98% found the information provided by ADSS was easy to understand maost or all of the time.

We were successful in our application to the Australian Multicultural Community Services
Inc. for funding from the Sports Australia Move It AUS Grant Program, funded by the
Australian Government Australian Sports Commission This will be used to expand
opportunity for physical activities for seniors

We refurbished three kindergartens (Doncaster East Preschool, Park Orchards Pre-school
and Templestowe Valley Preschool).

We opened a new Maternal and Child Health Centre at the Lower Templestowe Community
Centre which includes two consulting rooms and one waiting room.

Approximately 3000 people registered for our free webinars on Raising Resilient Children,
Managing Year 11 and 12 and Maintaining our Health and Wellbeing during COVID-19

We adopted our Active For Life Strategy to ensure our recreation strategy readily adapts to
our community's needs and the changing sport and recreation landscape in Manningham.

We continued our program to upgrade our recreational facilities to be female friendly

We transitioned to new service contracts for cur Velunteer Services, Youth Services and
Social and Community Support Services.
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We successful delivered our Carols by Candlelight event at Ruffey Lake Park in December
2019

We successfully delivered a diverse exhibition program for the Manningham Art Gallery,
including our biennial Manningham Victorian Ceramic Award, with Matt Butterworth
the first prize recipient; and the major exhibition funded by Creative Victoria, Far Flung
celebrating intergeneraticnal migrant stories; and a satellite exhibition, Sky After Rain in
partnership with Midsumma Festival.

We piloted an Arts and Culture evaluation program, with results showing 83% appreciation
for diverse arts and cultural expression, 78% sense of belonging and shared cultural
heritage, 84% sense of feeling valued and 81% supported with professional development as
an artist.

We successful launched an online Venues booking program, making the process much
easier for community.

Our suite of grants programs continues to support diverse community outcomes with over
$880,000 in Partnership, Community and Small Grants

All immunisation sessions ran as scheduled. We saw a significant increase in demand
on immunisation services and influenza vaccine uptake at the commencement of the
COVID-19 outbreak.

Our immunisation project work was completed with a grant from the Public Health
Network. This included an online booking system to better manage our client numbers
and client waiting times at immunisation sessions.

Our food and health premises assessments and sampling were undertaken in accordance
with statutory obligations

We participated in a Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning and
Environment Protection Authority steering committee for a new Environment Protection
Authority legislation in relation to on-site domestic wastewater management.

Our City Compliance team significantly increased their support to the community,
responding to a steady increase in the number of requests. In 2018, the community made
8430 requests, followed by 8831 in 2019. More than 4500 case requests have been made
in the first half of 2020.

Our Local Laws team promoted the value of animal registrations which helped them
connect lost animals with their owners. This resulted in a significant reduction in the
number of animals impounded in 2019/20.

We successfully refurbished two Maternal and Child Health Centres ta be safer and in line
with up to date assessment equipment and furniture for the infants and children we assess.

We successfully trialled the use of dedicated fleet cars for our Maternal and Child Health
services to ensure our staff can conduct home visits safely.
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We conducted a three-month online evaluation of our Maternal and Child Health service
between July and September 2019 Participants expressed very high ratings of satisfaction
with our service. Qur ratings remained very high from 9.5/10 to 9.7/10 over the three-month
period. We received 772 responses - 84% were female and 16% male

We hosted the Age Well in Victoria Consultation with Commissioner for Senior Victorians,
Cerard Mansour. Around 150 invited guests comprising mostly of residents and some
service.

Introduced an event rebate of up to $150 to support more neighbourly events within
Manningham's local parks as part of the Parks Alive program. Cuidelines, process and
online application farm was published in time for Neighbour Day in March 2020

Challenges

COVID-19 has presented challenges in our ability to support our older residents
Self-isolation can increase feelings of loneliness and disconnection from our community
and it hasn't been possible to continue to deliver all our aged and disability services in our
usual manner.

As housing affordability continues to become an issue for our community we experienced
an increase in the number of unregistered rcoming houses under investigation
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MANNINGHAM COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

Fast facts

we provided 85,364 hours of domestic,
personal and respite care support services
to vulnerable members of our community
we provided 38,936 meals and meal
subsidies

we provided 20,073 hours of group social
support provided (these programs ceased
in March 2020 due to the COVID-19
pandemic)

fram 1July 2019 to 18 March 2020 we ran
619 episodes of our Walk Group, averaging
25 km per walk, a total of 1547 5km

from 1 July 2019 to 18 March 2020 we ran
98 episodes of Walk the Burbs, averaging
6km per walk, totalling 588km

we managed 1921 animal management
reguests

we hosted citizenship ceremonies that
saw 873 residents become new Australian
Citizens

1,731 cats and dogs registered

we distributed a total of $1,105,126 million
in grant funding including $836,126
provided in community grants and
$269,000 in funding via the COVID-19
Urgent Relief Fund.

more than $35,000 was raised for
Doncare’s Resilient Kids - Positive Futures
via the 2019 Maycral Ball

more than 6000 people attended Carols
by Candlelight Ruffey Lake Park

ew births were

our M
ES

2enings

we hosted and
400 Function ¢
355 Venues
casual and

23 community arts projec

104 performances at the Donc
Play

981 Arts

held

$555,000 Partnership Grants allocated
$250,000 Annual Community G
allocated

1 579,823 item
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Our performance — Council Plan

The following shows our 2019/20 performance in the healthy
community theme against the goals of our Council Plan 2017-2021.

Goal: Healthy, resilient and safe community

2017-2021 Actions  Measure Result Outcomes

I Healthy community

In partnership, Maintain Achieved We worked with our partners to
support family and orincrease increase opportunities to strengthen
young people to opportunities community connections and resilience
build connections  spurce: Council data through:

and resilience « Raising more than $35,000 for

Doncare’s Resilient Kids - Positive
Futures at the 2019 Mayoral Ball.
Ongoing planning for the delivery of
the School Focused Youth Service
programs. Two programs feature:
Donhcaster Secondary International
Student program and Andersons
Creek Martial Arts Program. Programs
are being tallored to meet COVID
restrictions.

« QOur Parenting Series presented
by Dr Michael Carr-Greg quickly
adapted to online webinars to
provide events to support families,
educators and professionals. We held
free webinars on raising resilient
children, managing Year 11 and 12
and maintaining our health and
wellbeing during COVID-19. Over
2,550 participated and we received
positive feedback.

« Manningham Youth Providers
Network continued to meet
quarterly. We facilitated partnership
opportunities with Manningham
Youth
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2017-2021 Actions

Strengthen youth
participation to
aclvise Council
on the needs of
young pecple

Measure Result
Maintain Achieved
or increase

opportunities

Source: Council data

Outcomes

We increased opportunities to

strengthen youth participation
through engaging EACH as our
Youth provider who:

+ completed a youth needs analysis

» are developing a Youth Advisory
Group and Action Plan

partnered with Council to facilitate

a Youth Forum with the intent to
understand what service providers
see as the most significant issues and
challenges facing young people in
Manningham

facilitated 12 youth focus groups,
capturing the voices of over 140
young people to better understand
the issues and challenges facing
young people who live, work, play or
are connected Manningham

» engaged with service providers

and young people to focus on key
areas: resilient youth, healthy minds,
youth mental health, service access
and information, and community
connection

Deliver local
initiatives to
support healthy
lifestyles through
life-long learning,
volunteering,
recreation and
safe cholices

Maintain or In Progress*
increase number  +2019-20 dota
of adults not yet available

reporting good
health status
Source: Victorian

Population Health
Survey

We worked on the following local

initiatives to support healthy lifestyles

+ life-long learning in partnership with
Neighbourhood Houses and Living
and Learning centres

established partnerships with three
not-for-profit organisations to deliver
Volunteer Services, Youth Services and
Social and Community Support

+ Due to the risk to volunteers

during the COVID-19 pandemic,

our Community of Practice and
promotion of volunteering to young
people continued via online platforms

Review of the
Active for Life
Recreation
Strategy

Review In progress
completed

We adopted and started
implementing a new Active for Life
Recreation Strategy and Action Plan.
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2017-2021 Actions

Partner with key
stakeholders

to strengthen
perceptions

of safety in
Manningham

Measure

Maintain

or Increase
perception of
safety at night in
Manningham

Source: VicHealth

Result

In progress”

*2019/20 data
not yet available

Outcomes

To strengthen the perception of safety in
Manningham we delivered:

.

-

-

Seniors Safety Program - a successful
program attended by 60 people which
included presentations on road safety,
internet safety and crime prevention
Pram Walk Safety Talk - 40 people
attended a successful event that gave
parents an opportunity to hear from
Kidsafe and Victoria Police

Women's Safety Session - 12 people
attended. Social media program
delivered a broad range of safety
messages and resources across the
community

Safe Plate Day - Neighbourhood Watch
delivered an activity - Emergency
Management workshop delivered in
Warrandyte and preliminary discussions
on the 2020 community safety program
have commenced.

Strengthen
community
confidence to
report family
vialence and link
to support services

Maintain

or increase
confidence in
reporting

Source: Community
Panel

In progress®

*2018-20 data
not yet available

We worked with our partners on
initiatives to address family viclence and
link to support services including:

.

Our Watch training delivered to

our executive management team,
managers, coordinators and staff. We
plan to deliver dedicated Councillor
session in December 2020, A total

of around 100 staff have attended
training to date

stage 1 of the Cender Equality Local
Government Implementation Pilot

is now complete. This included

the application of the Victorian
Government's Cender Impact
Assessment Cuide to Council's internal
Recruitment Policy. Stage 2 will be
completed by September 2020 which
includes a workplace Cender Equity
Audit. Council was awarded $60,000
to participate in the project
community information and resources
were promoted via social media and
Council's Be Kind Campaign

a community prevention of violence
campaign is currently being
developed.
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2017-2021 Actions

Measure

I Liveable places and spaces

Result

Outcomes

Deliver
placemaking
approaches

and activities

to encourage
participation

in community
life and liveable
neighbourhoods

Maintain

or increase

local club
memberships or
activity.

Source.

Manningham
Community Panel

In Progress*

*2019-20
membership
data not yet
avallable

We worked to encourage participation
in community life and liveable
neighbourhoods through:

» commencing a place making
framewark

planning for a place-making

workshop to build skills, opportunity

and capacity across Council

+ a place-making research paper that
will be finalised and distributed

« completing a female-friendly facility
upgrades at 11 parks and reserves

+ introducing a Parks Alive event

rebate of up to $150 to support local

park activities by neighbours, for

neighbours.

Promote Crime Guidelines Achieved We ensured environmental design
Prevention implemented in was considered on all major Council
through Council facilities projects, buildings, roads, paths and
Environmental Source: Council data recreation needs
Design

I Resilient environment
Ensure effective Maintain or In progress We progressed emergency

preparation,
response and
recovery for
emergency
events through
the delivery of
an Emergency
Management
Prevention and
Preparedness
Program

increase number
of households
with emergency
plan

Source: Fire Services

preparedness, response and recovery
through:

+ Manningham Municipal Fire
Management Plan (MFMP)
successfully passed an audit by CFA
on 24 June 2020

« in light of the results from the
Bureau of Meteorology flood/severe
weather prediction, we undertook
an update to the Manningham
Municipal Storm and Flood
Emergency Plan, which is now near
completion

« a full review and audit of the
Manningham Emergency Relief
Centre Plans are taking place. We
have now added Mullum Mullum to
our planning arrangements. Mullum
Mullum Stadium will be a leading
facility for the use as an Emergency
Relief Centre, and it will be included
in regional relief plans
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2017-2021 Actions  Measure Result Outcomes
I Vibrant and prosperous economy
Facilitate a Maintain Achieved Access to local healthy food was
coordinated or increase strengthened by:
fi iti . ‘ .
‘oodbank to opportunities to « a community-led advisory strategic
increase access to  secure healthy . .
healthy food food committee advising how we can
ealthy foo 0o provide access to healthy food for
Source: Council data people experiencing hardship
« collabarating to address nutrition
and food security for the region with
programs
« Eat and Creet @ Ajani, a program to
support low income, unemployed or
disadvantaged families.
I Well governed council
Suppaort local Maintain Achieved We have provided support through
services to deliver  or mlcrease « our June Manningham Community
a healthy, safe service partners ) .
o . Services Forum, was delivered to 28
and resilient engaged in

community

community
partnerships

Source: Council data

participants

+ exploring a partnership to manage
the Youth Providers Network between
Manningham Youth Services and
School Focused Youth Services

+ holding four Reconciliation Action
Plan Working Group meetings as
well as cultural consultations with
the Wurundjer! Woi wurrung Cultural
Heritage Aboriginal Corporation
to inform the development of the
Reconciliation Action Plan

+ our ongoing partnership with
Doncare to deliver our Social Support
Services contract

+ our participation in a number of
social support networks which
contribute to the health and
wellbeing of the community
including: Action on Alcohol Flagship
Group, Together for Equality and
Respect Strategy, Eastern Affordable
Housing Alliance, Manningham Youth
Providers Network, Inner East Local
Abariginal Network and Victorian
Local Covernment Disability Planners
Network

« distributing over $800,000 in annual
and partnership grants and 575,000
in small grants
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Goal: A connected and inclusive community

2017-2021 Actions  Measure Result Qutcomes

I Healthy community

Deliver an arts and Maintain Achieved We delivered our Arts & Culture
cultural program or increase Program including:

that creates residents’ + We delivered our Arts & Culture
opportunities participation Program including:

for community Saurce Council data » attracting 33,707 active participants

participation and successful pilot of online evaluation
development program which reported:
- 839% appreciation for diverse and
cultural expression;
- 78% sense of belonging and shared
cultural heritage;
- B49% sense of feeling valued; and
. B1% feeling supported with
professional development as
an artist
successful delivery of the biennial
Manningham Victorian Ceramic
Art Award with Matt Butterworth
announced as first prize recipient
alongside 41 finalists
successful delivery of Creative Victoria
funded Far Flung, intergenerational
migrant staries, enabling a sense of
belonging
successful delivery of Midsumma
Festival partnership exhibition, Sky
After Rain, valuing and suppaorting
LGBTIQ+ community
successful delivery of See Me
exhibition, valuing and supporting
artists living with disability
successful delivery of Reconciliation
Week exhibition, Reflections: Where
Am I'In this Community?, valuing
and supporting Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander artists and culture

.
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2017-2021 Actions

Measure

Healthy community continued

Result

Outcomes

Deliver an arts and
cultural program
that creates
opportunities

for community
participation and
development

Maintain

or increase
residents’
participation

Source: Council data

Achieved

successful transition to online
programming responsive to
COVID-19 pandemic, including online
workshops and pre-recorded tutorials
for children, and the launch of When
In Lockdaown inviting artists to share
their creative response to COVID-19
development and launch of a new
creative industries support program
which has seen high demand, and
workshops fully subscribed, including
the successful launch of a dynamic
new Fellowship program

Deliver initiatives for
the rights, equality
and opportunity of
all residents

Maintain

or increase
residents’
participation

Source: Council data

Achieved

We led or supported initiatives
including:

delivering National Reconciliation
Week online to aver 1200 pecple
undertaking planning to establish

a dedicated Disability Advisory
Committee

developing a Disability Inclusion
e-newsletter

supporting community members with
a disability to comment on the Ruffey
Lake Park and Council's counter and
foyer refurbishment

improving Council's content to be
accessible and inclusive, including the
COVID-19 Be Kind to Yourself webpage
partnering with Manningham Youth
Services to better support International
Stucdents

developing an Internal Diversity and
Inclusion Working Group Action Plan
to strengthen inclusive practices within
Manningham Council.

Investigate us
becoming part of
the "Welcoming
Cities' initiative
to foster a sense
of belonging and
participation for
all members of
our community

Maintain

or increase
implementation
of initiatives

Source: Council data

Achieved

A repart outlining options ta be part of
the Welcoming Cities initiative has been
finalised
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2017-2021 Actions

Build our
commitment to
gender equity
practices across
the community

Measure Result

Maintain or Achieved
increase total

organisations

committed

Source: Council data

Outcomes

We have strengthened gender equity
practices across the community through:

+ supporting nine clubs to sign up to
participate in the 2020 Inclusive Club
Project across Manningham and
Boroondara. Our project lead, Access
Health and Community, is assessing
if the remaining workshops can be
clelivered online

providing Our Watch prevention

of violence against women and
children training to our executive
management team, managers and all
staff The final sessions are scheduled
to be delivered to our newly elected
Council in December 2020

+ we participated in a collaboration to
support families and individuals who
may require family violence support
curing COVID 19

a project brief has been drafted for
the Manningham Real Estate Agents
Respectful and Inclusive Project.

I Liveable places and spaces

Housing diversity
options for all
residents through

acdvocacy and local

planning policies

Maintain or
increase housing
diversity

In progress

Source: Council data

We are advocating and planning

for options for short and long-term

housing diversity through:

+ the new 2040 Liveable City Strategy
and Doncaster Hill Strategy review.
These strategies will provide the basis
for the Residential Zones review in
2020/21

+ a new Affordable Housing Policy is
being developed and consideration
for affordable housing is also being
discussed in relation to the Yarra
Valley Country Club redevelopmentin
Bulleen

« we continued our work with the
Eastern Affordable Housing Alliance
to advocate to peak federal and state
bodies for better housing choices for
all age groups and income ranges
to meet the diverse needs of our
community

» we continued negotiations for
affordable housing to be incorporated
into major residential developments
and considered in any changes
following the 2018 planning scheme
review
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2017-2021 Actions  Measure Result Outcomes

Resilient environment

Promote the Maintain Maintained We promoted our local facilities
benefits of our or increase and activities to improve wellbeing,
qguality recreation, involvement including:

relaxation and in community + running the Parks Alive program
active spaces initiatives to support our community to hold

to our diverse
community to
improve wellbeing

Source: Council data

events and projects in local parks

and celebrate new facilities. Four

neighbourhood-run events were held

at Tasker Reserve, Walker Reserve and

a barbecue and Tai Chi in Jocelyn

Reserve with another five planned

events being Impacted by COVID-19

restrictions or weather

holding five Council-run park opening

community events

further planning and facilitated

discussions with residents to run

their own local events and projects

including:

+ a shared edible herb garden
in Lynnwood Reserve in
Templestowe Lower

+ a regular working bee at Hanke
Reserve in Doncaster

©a community art painting on the
rebound wall at Daniel Reserve in
Donvale

+ community planting and opening
at Allara Reserve in Donvale

+ stone circle at lona Reserve in
Park Orchards

+ neighbourhood get together at
IW Thomson Reserve

+ local basketball competition
event and planting at Bronte
Playspace in Templestowe

+ supporting and encouraging clubs to

participate in the This Girl Can and
Active April campaigns

supporting our clubs and facilities
to list their events on Council's web
page to promote opportunities for
community participation.
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2017-2021 Actions

Measure Result

Vibrant and prosperous economy

Outcomes

Deliver initiatives
to advocate and
promote local
employment

Maintain In progress
or increase

proportion of

people with

a disability

engaged in

education

and/or work

Saurce: Council data

We supported 32 events to benefit
our local businesses including

« We delivered initiatives to benefit
our local businesses including:

« working with disability service
Onemda who have started using
Mullum Mullum as a site for some
vocational training and respite
services

running the Manningham Business
Development Program, including
planning and delivering workshops,
networking events, promaotional
campaigns, a monthly connection
breakfast series, business advisory
service, business planning and
marketing series

.

delivering a 12-week marketing series
online and cne-on-one mentoring

+ holding an online connection event
using Zoom sessions with relevant
guest speakers

+ moving our business advisory service
online with sessions held over Skype
and Zoom

+ expanding our Business Mentoring
to include a range of topics about
getting back to business, adjusting
business operations, marketing and
mental health

« commencing co-working sessions to
support local businesses and start-ups

« continuing cur Jackson Court
Smart City Project - Reinventing
Neighbourhoods, with all sensors in
place and data collated

+ implementing phase cne of the
Better Approvals Project Self-
Assessment tool, which is now live on
Council's website

Item 5.1

Attachment 1

Page 76



COUNCIL AGENDA 13 OCTOBER 2020

2017-2021 Actions  Measure Result Outcomes

I Well governed council

Deliver initiatives Maintain Achieved We worked to make Manningham
to strengthen or increase more inclusive through
inclusion, and initiatives

+ our Healthy City Advisory and Access
and Equity Advisory Committees
and the Reconciliation Action Plan
Working Group to continue to provide
Council with the opportunity to
understand the needs of our diverse
communities as well as explore ways
we can be more responsive to the
needs of our community

connection implemented

of diverse Source: Council data
communities

+ regular meetings with the Wurundjeri
Woi wurrung Cultural Heritage
Abaoriginal Corporation have been
established

« member of both the Welcoming
Cities Network and Q-East Alliance

« enacting an internal Action Plan for
our Diverse and Inclusion Working
Group to build capacity and better
practice.
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Our performance — major initiatives and initiatives

The following statement reviews our progress on the major
initiatives and initiatives identified in our Annual Budget 2019/20
and Strategic Resource Plan 2017-2021.

Major initiative

Plan for the health and wellbeing of
the municipality through the delivery
of 8 parent seminars by June 2019

B Measure achieved M Deferred M Not on target

Comment

The Delivery of the Healthy City Action Plan 2019-21
continues with over 80% of Actions either completed
or on track to deliver across inclusive and harmeonious,
healthy and well, safe and resilient and connected and
vibrant.

Promote a connected and inclusive
community through 2017 - 2021
Manningham Inclusive Strategy

We partnered to promote and connect our community
through activities including:

» strengthening opportunities for older people to build a
Dementia and Age-Friendly community

« working with our youth services provider EACH to
establish a youth friendly space at MC Square. This space
operates as a youth drop in centre where young people
have direct access to support

« developing our festivals and a new draft Reconciliation
Action Plan to recognise Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander people and people from diverse cultures

+ partnering with the Community Connectedness
Working Group to deliver two events attended by
approx. 160 people

« contributing to the planning and implementation of the
Be Kind Rainbow Chalk project

« facilitating an Intergenerational project that involved
more than 150 pictures from childcare and early years
centres being distributed via our Aged and Disability
Support Services (Meals on Wheels)

+ supporting the Be Kind Manningham campaign
through content contribution and management of Be
Kind to Yourself webpage.

Promote gender equity with delivery
of female friendly facility upgrades in
a number of local Pavilions.

Complete upgrades in Bulleen Park,
Anderson Park, Doncaster Hockey
and Stintons Reserve by 30 June
2020

wn
n
2
g
o

We upgraded 11 facilities including Bulleen Park,
Anderson Park, Doncaster Hockey and Stintons
Reserve by 30 June 2020.

Item 5.1 Attachment 1

Page 78



COUNCIL AGENDA

13 OCTOBER 2020

Initiative

Comment

Progress

Manningham Running Marathon

Deliver a running festival for all ages
and abilities in partnership with the

and Mullum Mullum Trail

community by 30 June 2020

This has been deferred to 2020/21 due to COVID-19
physical distancing protocols. We plan to run the event
from Mullum Mullum Stadium to showcase the stadium

Services funded in our Annual Budget

We funded the below services in the Annual Budget 2019/20
to support our healthy community goals.

. - Budget Actual Variance
Activity Description £000 £000 £'000
Arts and Management, coordination and delivery of arts 355 423 (68)
Cultural cultural development program including an Art
services Gallery, Art Studios and Playhouse.

Social This service supports the community through 1,205 1183 122
Planning and  activities in community inclusion, community safety,
Community metro access, and social planning and community
Development development.
Services
Library This service provides public library service for 4,301 4176 125
services visitors and residents. The Whitehorse Manningham

Regional Library Corporation manages the service

with branches at Bulleen, Doncaster, The Pines and

Warrandyte
Community This service provides children and community 2,613 3185 (572)
Programs services, including Maternal and Children's

Services (Universal and Enhanced), Child Health,

Manningham Early Years@MC?, Preschool Field

Officer Program and Parenting Assessment and Skill

Development Service. It also includes Youth and

Volunteering and Emergency Counselling grants.
Aged and In partnership with Federal and Victorian 2,746 2153 503
Disability Governments, these services and activities support
Services Manningham residents to stay active, independent

and living at home for as long as possible. Services

including positive ageing events and activities,

assisted tra nsport, home and personal care,
Approvals and This service protects the community's health and 3,252 2743 509

Compliance
Services

wellbeing by coordinating food safety programs,
immunisation, animal management, litter, building
services, public health, parking and administration
and enforcement of local laws.
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Service performance indicators

The following statement provides the results of the LCPRF
prescribed service performance indicators and measures for the

healthy community theme.

2 2 7
. - Material variations and
Service / indicator [measure] L = o a
o o o o comments
o~ o~ ™~ [a)
I Animal Management
Timelines 1 1 1 1 We continue to triage
Time taken to action animal al.‘ requ‘esll:s and plgce
high priority on animal
management requests
management matters.
[Number of days between
receipt and first response
action for all animal
management requests
/ number of animal
management requests)
Service standard 67% 689 669% 28%  The number of animals
i was significan
Animals reclaimed cgllected as significantly
higher due to a number of
[Number of animals targeted investigations requiring
reclaimed / number of the seizure of animals. This has
animals collected] x 100 contributed to the decrease
in animals being reclaimed
A significant number of these
animals were unsuitable for
rehoming.
Service standard New in New in Newin 29%  Animal management

2020

Animals reclaimed

[Number of animals
reclaimed / number of
animals collected] x 100

2020

2020

investigations resulted in the
seizure of a significant number
of animals. A large number

of these were unsuitable for
rehoming.
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Service / indicator [measure]

2016/17
201718
2018/19

Service cost

2020 2020 2020

Cost of animal management
service

[Direct cost of the animal
management service /
Population]

2019/20

New in Newin Newin §327

Material variations and
comments

We understand the
importance of animal
management and provide
appropriate resources to
ensure the safety of our
community while maintaining
animal welfare. A number

of proactive programs were
unable to be run in the last
quarter of the vear due to
COVID-12 impacting on our
resourcing

Note: This measure replaces
the previous 'Cost of animal
management service', which
was based on cost per
number of registered animals

Health and safety New in New in New in

We pursue prosecutions

. 2020 2020 2020 to ensure responsible pet
Animal management hi q .
prosecutions ownership an comlmu‘mty

safety. This is 2 new indicator
[Nurmber of successful animal for 2019/20.
management prosecutions . .

d P I ! Note: This measure is
replacing previous ‘Animal
management prosecutions’
which was a measure of
number, not proportion

Food Safety
Timelines 118 140 131 165  There has been an increase in
days days days days the average number of days

Time taken to action food
complaints

[Number of days between
receipt and first response for
all food complaints / number
of food complaints]

to provide a first response to a
complaint in relation to food
safety.
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Service / indicator [measure]

Service standard
Food safety assessments

[Number of registered
class 1 and class 2 food
premises that receive annual
food safety assessments

in accordance with the
Food Act 1984 [ number of
these premises that require
an annual food safety
assessment in accordance
with the Food Act 1984] x
100

E w o)} Q
e £ @ &
= a
& Q = S
10095 100% 99%  97%

Material variations and
comments

Manningham has performed
578 assessments on 99% of
class 1 and class 2 registered
premises in the calendar year.
Community safety remains

a priority in ensuring that
highest standards of food
quality are available to the
local community.

Service cost
Cost of food safety service

[Direct cost of our food
safety service / number of
food premises registered or
notified as per the Food Act
1984]

$573.08 $58379 $49387 $43756

The cost of the food safety
service is slightly lower due to
vacant staff positions for some
of the year

Health and safety

Critical and major non-
compliance outcome
notifications

[Number of critical non-
compliance outcome
notifications and major
non-compliance notifications
about a food premises
followed up / number of
critical non-compliance
outcome notifications and
major hon-compliance
notifications about a food
premises] x 100

1009% 999% 98% 97%

After a major or critical
non-compliance has been
observed, we are vigilant in
ensuring food premises are
followed up. Seven premises
were followed up outside of
the reporting period. Thisis a
slight decline fram last year
where five premises were
followed up outside of the
reporting period.
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s 2 2 7
Material variation
Service [/ indicator [measure] = = a a SRl VR B e
o o O @) comments
~ «l o~ &
Maternal and Child Health (MCH)
Service standard 102% 102% 103% 102% There was limited variance

Infants enrolled in the MCH
service

[Number of infants enrolled
in the MCH service (from
birth notifications received) /
number of birth notifications
recelved] x 100

when comparing to the
previous year. There were
more enrolments than

birth notices due to infants
being released from hospital
but born within last data
collection period and families
moving to Manningham with
a newborn from interstate or
overseas.

Service cost
Cost of the MCH service

[Cost of the MCH service /
hours worked by MCH nurses]

S7964 $8223 S6793 S7447

The total hours worked by
our MCH nurses excludes

km allowance, uniform
allowances, long service leave
taken, 70% administration
staff and 80% Coordinator
hours. This amount is higher
due to new clarity around
the workbook definitions for
the formula calculations to
be used and also the higher
tempaorary staff used last year
that were not counted in
payroll hours.

Participation 76%

Participation in the MCH
service

[Number of children who
attend the MCH service at least
once in the year [ number of
children enrolled in the MCH
service] x 100

T49%

80%

769%

We continue to have strong
participation in first home
visits. While every effort is
taken to engage new families,
it is a voluntary service and

a very small percentage of
families request not to have a
home visit or do not enrol in
our service at all. Since March
2020, participation rates have
decreased due to COVID-19
with limited appointments
and staggered appointments
to comply with social
distancing protocols. We have
experienced some delays to
appointments due to the
changes we have made to our
service delivery.
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2 2 g
. L Material variations and
Service / indicator [measure] 2 = @ =]

(@] o o] Q comments

o~ ™~ o~ [
Participation 95%  85% 719% 82%  We experienced an increase
Participation in the MCH in pa}rtlmpatlon t.)a.SEd.OH the
service by Aboriginal service previous year. This indicator

o has a very low number
[NgmberofAbongmal of participants so a small
children Vl"ho attend the increase in participation will
MCH service at least once significantly increase the
n th? year / n_umber of participation result.
Aboriginal children enrolled
in the MCH service] x 100
Participation New in Newin Newin 98% Participationin the
Participation in 4-week e 202° four-wgek'appomtment =
Key Age and Stage visit a new indicator. Reasons
for non-participation in

[Number of 4-week key age the service could include
and stage visits / Number of families moving away from
birth notifications received] the municipality and a
x100 number of infant deaths.
Libraries
Utilisation 7.61 761 734 532 The calculation measure has

Library collection usage

[Number of library collection
item loans / number of library
collection items]

been changed this year to
exclude electronic item loans,
with total loans only including
physical items. Physical loans
were impacted severely by
COVID-19, with the library
being closed from 21 March
2020 until 9 June 2020 and
restricted access from 9 June
until 30 June

Note: From 2019/20, this
indicator measures the
performance of physical
library items as a subset of the
wider library collection.
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s 2 2 7
) - Material variations and
Service [/ indicator [measure] = = ] o fat!
(o) o o =) comments
~ ~ o~ ~
Resource standard 819% 819 78% 74%  The percentage of stock
Standard of library collection less than 5 yela rs old has
decreased this year. COVID-19
[Number of library collection restrictions significantly
items purchased in the last impacted the normal
5vyears / number of library collection management
collection items] x 100 schedules and process.
Service cost New in New in New in $2549 The method of calculation has
Cost of library service 2020 2020 2020 changed frlo.rn pre\rlouslyears‘
‘ . with the divisor now being
[Direct cost of the library municipal population rather
service / Population] than visits to the library.
Note: This measure is
replacing the previous 'Cost of
library service' indicator that
measured based on number
of visits.
Participation 169 159 15% 14%  Library participation was

impacted by the COVID-19
restrictions, with the libraries
closed from late March and
reopened with reduced
services from mid-June

The method of calculation
has changed this year

and excludes electronic
collections.

Active library borrowers
in municipality

[Number of active library
barrowers in the last three
years / The sum of the
population for the last
three years] x 100

Note: The method of
calculation has changed
from previous years, with the
divisor now being municipal
population rather than visits
to the library.
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Our year ahead

Major Initiatives

We will plan for the health and wellbeing of the municipality through the delivery of the
Healthy City Action Plan 2019/2021.

We will promote a connected and inclusive community through the delivery of at least
four activities by 30 June 2021, including the endorsement and commencement of
Council's new Reconciliation Action Plan.

Other Initiatives

We will review the Community Local Law to provide a safe and healthy environment for
the community through a community consultation process and preparation of the draft
Local Law by 30 June 2020

We will deliver local initiatives to support healthy lifestyles through life-long learning,
volunteering, and recreation and safe choices including preparing and implementing
activities to support healthy lifestyles for young people with Manningham's Youth Services
Provider, EACH.
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Healthy Community case study:
2019 Senior's Festival a run-away success

The 2019 Seniors Festival celebrated our connected and inclusive
community and the valuable contribution older people make to
Manningham.

Kicking off with a Wine and Cheese Seniors
Music Evening at Manningham Civic Centre,
the month-long festival included Council
and community run-events, ranging from
workshops to health and fitness classes and
celebraticn activities across Manningham.

The program incorporated over 39 free or
low-cost events attended by over 2,200
people. All Council-run events were booked
to capacity.

Council hosted the papular Seniors Marning
Tea in partnership with Victoria Police to
present a Senior Safety and Wellbeing Café
Chat where seniors discussed the importance
of safety and wellbeing in our community.

Other events included a Banksia Park

walk, show tunes sing-along, senior carers
afternoon tea, art exhibition walk, informative
sessions on technology and presentations on
My Aged Care and money, ageing and family.

The Senior's Festival also provided

an opportunity te celebrate the 2019
Manningham Citizen of the Year, Hardy
Shum. In May, Hardy was awarded Citizen of
the Year in recognition for his highly-valued
involvement with the Chinese Senior Citizens
Club in Manningham. Hardy has been part
of the club for 23 years, and President for

the past 15

Hardy was recognised for his tireless V4 ‘ Manningham
work helping new migrants in an unfamiliar Seniors Festival
country find peace of mind, a sense of 2019
belonging and cultural identity and the
feeling of care and support

Seniors Morning Tea - .~
Friday 1 October, 10.00am t012.00n00n

The Manningham Seniors Festival is Vanaingham Chic Centre
supported by the Victorian Government -
as part of Victorian Seniors Festival Victorian

e | W

Find out more at
manningham vic.gov.au/seniors-festival
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Liveable places
and spaces

Our community stretches from large, leafy blocks in the outer suburbs,
to new high-density communities. We focus on creating inviting places
and spaces, enhanced parks, open space and streetscapes, safe, well
connected and accessible travel, and community infrastructure.

This will result in a greater need for services, facilities and safe spaces for children and older
adults, as well as transport options and housing.

Through a strong partnership approach, we continue to focus on ensuring that people
stay healthy and well, can access the services they need, are connected to their local
neighbourhcaods, feel safe, and live in a harmonious and inclusive community.

3 2.1. Inviting places and spaces
O
Accessible and connected mixed-use places to recreate, gather and celebrate
g Well designed and managed public spaces and streetscapes that are integrated
o into future development
g Managing impact of growth and density on amenity
2
“5 Sustainable development balancing our unique balance of city and country
g
Developer investment contributes te the amenity of the municipality
8 2.2. Enhanced parks, open space and streetscapes
o
" Accessible and well connected areas that inspire activity, recreation and
i relaxation
v
‘!5 Optimise sustainability of parks and reserves expansion and enhancement
c
° Protect and enhance our parks and reserves
el
%)
g Well maintained parks and reserves with facilities designed for all
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2.3. Well connected, safe and accessible travel

Goal

wWell connected, safe and accessible public transport and active options

Well planned and maintained roads, pathways and transport infrastructure

Improved sustainable transport options to reduce congestion

Easier travel to and within Manningham and the wider metropolitan area

Pursue a 20 minute neighbourhood (in line with Plan Melbourne where every
home will be within 20 minutes of travel of local services and facilities). Priorities
include Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) service, Eastern Freeway - preserving Doncaster
Rail corridor, Doncaster Bus improvement, increased SmartBus provision and
improved bus service coverage and frequency

Action areas

2.4, Well utilised and maintained community infrastructure

Goal

Infrastructure that is responsive to changing community, education and sporting needs

Quality community infrastructure that is well maintained

Council Infrastructure that is meeting environmental and accessibility standards

Ensure capital works investment in community facilities to respond to
community need

Action areas

Infrastructure is well utilised and caters to the changing needs of the
municipality
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Snapshot

20%

of residents Increased demand
and importance on

will live alone arts, community and
£ by 2021 sporting facilities

___________________________________________________________________________ 5
]
37% =g 1,700km!
live within Roads, paths, |
4 7% » bike lanes and E
. walking lanes !
of short trips are . . \
2 40 Om taken by private maintained |
%‘ of a bus stop vehicle by council |
e R e J
E 9 O/ 20.35 km? open space
! o 330 parks and reserves
E 158 playspaces
: @@ travel by ~
i car to work
i of households do not
 have a private vehicle % .%
Manning ham o~
provides %‘
609.8km roads
876km footpaths
53km off-road shared paths
er;% 104.9km pedestrian paths in parks
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What you asked for

protect our parks and open spaces
safe and reliable roads and public transport
manage the impact of growth and density on amenity

well-maintained community infrastructure to support walking, fitness and recreation

sustainable development balancing our unique balance of city and country
suppert for alternative modes of transport including walking and cycling
community facilities that are responsive to changing community, education and sporting needs

Achievements: what we delivered

We successfully responded to all Victorian Building Authority requests to resolve
combustible cladding issues within Manningham in support of the Victorian Cladding
Taskforce recommendations

We developed a digital swimming pool registration process to allow property owners to
efficiently and remotely register their swimming pools and spas.

We undertook a review of our standard permit conditions for our Planning Permits

Our Statutory Planning team continued to work on digital system processes to improve the
way we work and the services we provide to the community.

We continued to improve our planning applications processes ta keep processing times
within 60 statutory days

We completed our capital works program, meeting our 90% target with our adjusted
budget fully expended.

We resurfaced over 50km of our local roads (around 8% of the network), ensuring roads
meet our community’'s needs and expectations.

We have undertaken a feasibility study to confirm that new industrial land can be
developed at Websters Road in Templestowe.

We participated and represented the community's views in the North East Link
Environment Effects Statement panel hearings, resulting in significant wins for our
community.

We provided $35,000 in community grants to residents to improve and preserve elements
of heritage in buildings and places

We secured a new soccer facility including three soccer pitches, pavilion and community
infrastructure on Templestowe Road in Bulleen

We completed a multi-million dollar program of upgrades at various parks and reserves
that included new playspaces, pathways and park furniture at

« Mandella Reserve, Templestowe

« Lynnwood and Ironbark Reserves, Templestowe Lower

« Allara, Denhert and Barrata/Thea Reserves, Doncaster East

« Anthony, Walker and Somerville Reserves, Doncaster.
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We completed a streetscape upgrade at Tunstall Square with new pavements, landscaping
and seating

We commenced work on stage ane of our Jumping Creek Road upgrade project, which will
improve travel between Wonga Park and Warrandyte

We started work on a major upgrade of soccer facilities at Templestowe’'s Pettys Reserve.

Challenges

We have experienced delays to a number of our high-value capital works projects, which led
to a major reshuffling of our priorities and resulted in a backlog of projects that needed to be
completed in the last few weeks of the financial year,

Our strong emphasis on managing our Capital Works Program resulted in slower than
expected progress cn implementing our Asset Management Action Plan

Additional systems, processes and resources were required to implement the Victorian
Covernment's new swimming peol compliance program and legislation.

We experienced a continued demand on cur resources as we provided ongoing support to
the Victorian Building Authaority in addressing the state-wide combustible cladding issues
within Manningham.

We faced challenges managing infrastructure projects with significant historical issues.

Fast facts
+ we issued 1269 building permits ouncil was responsik
» 561 new dwellings/apartments were » 3.80million m? of road pavements;
approved

-

884 km of Kerb and Channel,
1.29 million m?* of for
50.2kms of roads resurfaced (this is 71 bri

353,600m2 and around 8% of the 0.28 million m= of car parks;
Manningham road network)

the building works we approved were
valued at $548,795,893

506,201 visits to Aquarena Aquatic and
Leisure Centre

$48.44 million in capital works project
delivered

242 buildings

17.25km of footpaths were renewed -
we replaced 13.65km of footpaths and
built 3.6km of new footpaths
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Our performance — Council Plan

The following shows our 2019/20 performance in the liveable places
and spaces theme against the goals of our Council Plan 2017-2021.

Coal: Inviting places and spaces

2017-2021 Actions Measure Result Qutcomes

I Healthy community
Place-based Malntain or In progress With our partners, we have
initiatives that increase place delivered a number of place-based
create inviting based initiatives initiatives, including Parks Alive.
places and spaces to community This is being considered in the
that support people satisfaction development of our Liveable City
to engage in Source: Council data Strategy.
community life

I Liveable places and spaces
Ensure urban Urban Achieved Qur annual maintenance schedules
design and design and were completed on time
maintenance maintenance
retains a high level complete
of amenity for Source: Council data
Council owned and
managed spaces
Managing impact of  Two-thirds of Achieved We continue to assess planning

growth on amenity

growth into
activity centres
and main roads

Source: Council data

applications along main roads and
activity centres in accordance with
the Manningham Planning Scheme
to meet increased densities and
housing objectives
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2017-2021 Actions

Measure

I Resilient environment

Result

Outcomes

Ensure local
planning and
development

is responsive to
community need
and aligned with
local planning laws

Maintain

or increase
number of VCAT
decisions upheld

Source: PPARS
[ Victorian
Government

Not achieved

We experienced a slight decrease

of 29 in the number of decisions
upheld at the Victorian Civil and
Administrative Tribunal (VCAT) from
the previous year. In 2019/20,12 of 18
decisions set aside were successfully
negotiated at compulsory conference
or through outside negotiations with
the permit applicant.

I Vibrant and prosperous economy

Deliver initiatives to  Revenue secured In progress $17M revenue raised from
optimise the return ) Council-owned land and
. Source: Council data -
on Council owned buildings.
land and building
holdings
I Well governed council
Ensure planning Maintain Achieved We have continued to improve
decisions are timely or increase planning decisions made within
and appropriate planning time following a number of process
decisions made improvements over recent years.
within time
Source: PPARS
{ Victorian
Government
2017-2021 Actions Measure Result Qutcomes
Work together Maintain or Achieved We worked with the Victorian

with the region for
better outcomes for
Manningham

increase number
of regional
partnership
initiatives

Source: Council data

Government, community groups,
health, business and not for profit
organisations to work towards the
best outcomes for Manningham.

This year, key partnership projects
were

» advocating for affordable housing
(neighbouring Councils)

« resilient Melbourne (metro
Councils)

» Waorking for Victoria (Victorian
Covernment)

+ North East Link (North East
Link Authority and Victorian
Government)

+ Melbourne Urban Forest
Partnership.
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Coal: Enhanced parks, open space and streetscapes

2017-2021 Actions Measure Result Qutcomes
Healthy community
Optimise community Maintain In Progress” Our parks scored an above-

enjoyment and
participation in our
parks, open space and
streetscapes through
sound design, programs
and connectivity

or improve
community
satisfaction/
utilisation

*2018-20 data not
yet available

Source: Council data

average rating for the region
in the last Regional Park
survey.

Improve seating More seating in Achieved We have installed new street

particularly for older linear parks furniture and benches in

people along our linear areas across Manningham

parks including within our
streetscape upgrade at
Tunstall Square with new
pavements, landscaping and
seating

Liveable places and spaces

Improvement and Maintain In Progress” Our parks received the

maintenance programs
implemented to ensure
parks, open space and
streetscapes are clean
and well maintained

or improve
Community
Satisfaction
Rating (median)
Source: Regional

*2019-20 data not
yet available

second-highest resident
satisfaction score out of 18
Councils in the region in the
last Regional Park Survey.
Our maintenance programs

Park Assessment are complete.
Resilient environment
Deliver management and  Maintain Achieved Our maintenance schedules
maintenance programs to  or improve and fire management action

improve balance between
bushfire prevention and
protection of biodiversity

assessment of
weed reduction
and roadside
vegetation
completed

Source: Council data

plans are current.

Item 5.1 Attachment 1

Page 95



COUNCIL AGENDA

13 OCTOBER 2020

2017-2021 Actions

Measure Result

I Vibrant and prosperous economy

Outcomes

Development of open
space that contributes
to the value of the area

Maintain or Achieved
increase projects
completed

Source: Council data

We spent $4.3 million on
upgrading our parks, open
space and neighbourhood
activity centres including:

« Mandella Reserve,
Templestowe

« Lynnwood and lronbark
Reserves in Templestowe
Lower

+ Allara, Denhert and Barrata/
Thea Reserves in Doncaster
East

« Anthony, Walker and
Somerville Reserves in
Doncaster

I Well governed council

Council ensures
sustainable funding and
good practice to upgrade
and manage parks,
reserves and streetscapes

Maintain or Achieved
increase funding
for open space

Source: Council data

We secured $9.6 million
from developers for strategic
land use, open space, and
recreation planning for the
future.

Goal: Well-connected, safe and accessible travel

I Healthy community

Develop and deliver
transport that is safe,
reliable, accessible

and affordable for the
community for public and
active transport options

Maintain

or improve
perception of
safety / transport
usage

Source: Council data

In Progress®

*2019-20 data
not yet available

57.2% of our residents use
public and active transport.

Qur strategic projects
included: implementing the
Bus Action Plan, successful
ongoing collaboration

and negotiation with key
transport projects including
the North East Link
Authority.
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2017-2021 Actions Measure Result Outcomes

Liveable places and spaces

Deliver parking needs Maintain Deferred As the North East Link (NEL)

assessment and or improve will significantly impact

implement transport assessment our parking needs, we

infrastructure to address implementation have deferred this action

changing demands until further information is
available

Continue to improve the Maintain Achieved 99 6% of Manningham roads

road network through or reduce are in good condition and

the delivery of a targeted
pavement resealing and
rehabilitation program

total sealed
roads below
intervention
level. Maintain
or improve
community
satisfaction

with roads
Source: Council data

and Community
Satisfaction Survey

clo not require work

I Resilient environment

Support alternative
modes of transport and
ensure that pedestrians
and bicycle routes are
well integrated with
connections to public
transport and activity
centres

Maintain or
increase total
people using
sustainable
transport options

Source: Council data
{ABS

In Progress®

40 3% of our residents

use sustainable

transport options. We

are implementing safe
pedestrian crossings works,
a new Bus Strategy and
Transport Action Plan as well
as advocating for sustainable
transport options and
maintaining bike trails

I Vibrant and prosperous economy

Advocate for improved
transport investment into
the local network

Maintain

or increase
funding secured
for transport
initiatives

Source: Council data

Achieved

We are strongly advocating
for improved transport
investment in Manningham
through the Bus Network
and North East Link
Authority. Funding into
network includes Local
Roads and Roads to
Recovery at $13m
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2017-2021 Actions Measure Result Outcomes
I Well governed council
Work with regional and Maintain or Achieved A Transport Action Plan has

state partners to deliver
a strategic transport plan
for private and public
transport in the region

improve plan
implementation
Source: Council data

been developed.

Goal: Well utilised and maintained community infrastructure

I Healthy community

Determine and
implement fair and
sustainable service

levels for sporting and
community use in Council
owned and managed
community infrastructure

Maintain

or increase
community
utilisation of
facilities

Source: Council data

Not available

This data is not available due
to COVID-19 restrictions

I Liveable places and spaces

Ensure building and Maintain Achieved We have ensured that
building maintenance of or increase Council building assets
Council’s building assets total Council are well maintained with
are delivered to a high buildings in 96.2% of the 1490 building
standard that promotes good condition maintenance requests
safe and optimum use resolved in time and to
satisfaction.
Investigate the possibility Maintain or Achieved Our Better Building

of universal design in
construction projects

improve design
standards
explored in
major projects

Source: Council data

Guide is in place and has
been implemented into
standardised briefs and
documents of construction
projects.
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2017-2021 Actions Measure Result Outcomes
I Resilient environment
Support the Maintain or Achieved Work has included:
environmentally increase total « establishing the Building
sustamabledgsngn (ESD) famlwtu?s ESD Solar & ESD project control
and use of buildings, compliance )
facilities and infrastructure . . group to manage a. flye—
Maintain or year program of building
increase plans roof-top solar installations
and initiatives to which is currently being
ensure efficient developed and will
and effective use incorporate the Pines and
Source: Council data Ajani solar projects
« implementing funding
for Jackson Court
environmental and
parking sensors through
a Commonwealth
Government Smart Cities
and Suburbs Program
grant
I Vibrant and prosperous economy
Work closely with local Maintain or Achieved We have secured state and

and regional partners to
secure financial support
for existing and future
infrastructure projects

increase secured
opportunities

Source: Council data

federal grants, developers
and community club
contributions in external
funding for infrastructure
projects including:

« S1.4m capital grants

« $59.6m Developers
contribution (for open
space)

¢« S05m Community Clubs
contribution

I Well-governed Council

Deliver the annual
Capital Works Program
to maintain, upgrade and
develop Council's assets
to address existing and
future needs

Completion of

Capital Works
Program

Source: Council data

Not achieved

We completed 94% of our

Capital Work Program The
2019/20 carry forward is $4.2
million which is scheduled
for delivery in the 2020/21
financial year.
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Our performance — major initiatives and initiatives

B On target

Major initiative

Ensure local planning is responsive to
community need and aligned with
local planning laws by completing
four major panel recommendations
from the Planning Scheme review by
June 2020

B sSome progress B Not on target

Comment

We continued our work on the four Panel Planning
Scheme Review (2018) recommendations

1. Doncaster Hill Strategy review (drafting following
community consultation)

2. Translation of the Local Planning Policy Framework (peer
review completed and finalising a draft for new Council).

3. Municipal Developer Contributions Plan (deferred until
2021) - this will allow for the Plan to be informed by the
Community Infrastructure Needs Analysis and Plan which
is currently in progress.

4 Bushfire Planning (continues to be undertaken).

Improve connectivity through delivery
of the Road Improvement Program

Staged works completed as
programmed, including Jumping
Creek Road by 30 June 2021

The Road Improvement Program has delivered

+ King/Church Rd, Doncaster pedestrian refuge, Colman
Road, Wonga Park and MclLachlan St, Templestowe

+ Oban Rd, Donvale works are now complete, preventing
this section of the road being blocked by floodwaters.

Jumping Creek Road remains on track for completion in
2021 with a stage under construction with about 809% of
work completed so far. Detailed design and investigation
work regarding drainage and pavement have been
completed allowing the design to tender released for
the future Jumping Creek Road stage. The demolition of
houses on Hepburn Road has been completed allowing
the road to be constructed next financial year.

North East Link Planning. Achieve a
positive project planning outcome
for Council and the community by
contributing to ongoing planning for
the North East Link (NEL) including
managing the Environmental Effects
Statement (EES)

Successfully facilitate Council's
response and contribution to the
NEL EES process, including legal
representation and to prepare a
submission report in response to the
EES

b
g
g
a

Council commenced legal proceedings in February,
following a lack of clarity around reference designs and
the impact of North East Link on Manningham. After
significant advocacy and discussion, Council has now
reached an agreement with the Victorian Government
and the North East Link Project that negates the legal
action by allowing Council greater input into the process
and designs in pursuit of minimising impact on the
Manningham community and municipality
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Implementation of Parks
Improvement Program works as
scheduled:

Pettys Reserve, Ruffey Lake Park
Management Plan, Lawford Reserve
Management Plan (Stage 2) and
Completion of the Main Yarra River
Trail to Warrandyte

Our Parks Improverment Program is on schedule with:

» A draft of the Ruffey Lake Park Landscape Masterplan
was prepared and is ready for Council endorsement to
begin the consultation phase.

A draft alignment for the extension of the Main Yarra
Trail to Warrandyte has been identified and an initial
consultation on this alignment with local residents has
been conducted. We are now ready to engage design
consultants to progress the project.

» Lawford Reserve Management Plan is nearing
completion Construction has commenced on the
public toilets with anticipated completion in the late
2020.

» The contract has been awarded for modular change
rooms in the Pettys Reserve Pavilion.

« We are finalising architectural plans for an insitu build of

the social rooms and sign off on the contract award for

the synthetic pitches and floodlights at Pettys Reserve

Develop and deliver a new Integrated
Transport Strategy for private and
public transport in the region by
delivering actions in the Transport
Action Plan

Council has commenced advocacy for a new bus service
along Templestowe Road to connect to the Heidelberg
Train station and LaTrobe Employment cluster This
advocacy has included liaising with the Victorian
Government.

Other initiatives

Develop a long-term Community
Infrastructure Plan. Neighbourhood
analysis completed and planning
commenced by 30 June 2020

The long-term Community Infrastructure Plan isin
progress with the Neighbourhood analysis is almost
complete Planning will proceed in alignment with
Council's upcoming Asset Plan.

Enhanced parks, open space and
streetscapes. Complete footpath
priority programs for 2019/20

Our Footpath Priority Program was completed for 2019/20.

Liveable City Strategy

Community Consultation undertaken
and draft Liveable City Strategy
commenced by 30 June 2020.

We conducted extensive community consultation through
the Imagine Manningham 2040 engagement. A draft
2040 Liveable City Strategy is now being prepared

Buildings Renewal Madelling

Quantitative analysis of all buildings

Analysis is underway and reconciliation of all Council
property is proceeding as expected. This involves a
review of the remaining life of our facilities, together with
the potential capital cost of major renovation and/or
replacement

Develop a Municipal Development
Contributions Plan (DCP) including a
review the Doncaster Hill DCP

DCP framework completed June
2020

This Plan will be developed on the cutcomes of the
Community Infrastructure Plan and Doncaster Hill
Strategy review.
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Services funded in our Annual Budget

We funded the below services in the Annual Budget 2019/20
to support our liveable places and spaces goals.

Activity Description Bgcé%eé gcélée{n; Vag:a!ongoe
City Amenity, This service provides the management, 10175 12,833 (2,658)
Parks and administration and maintenance activities for
Recreation parks and recreation; sports reserves, aguatic
Services facilities, reserves, sportsground maintenance,

landscaping, tree maintenance, grass cutting,

bushland management, open space, parks and

playground maintenance and supervision of

capital works projects.
Roads and This service provides the day to day maintenance 4,666 4,657 9
Infrastructure of Council roads, bridges, footpaths including
Services both sealed and unsealed road maintenance

such as repairs to potholes, line marking,

patching, resheeting and minor works.
Integrated These services include city planning, landscape (3563 (5358) 1,795
Planning and  architecture, strategic land use and development
Urban Design  planning and urban design, recreation planning

and open space planning.
Building Keeping Council-owned buildings and community 2,802 3152 (330)
Maintenance facilities (including public toilets, heritage
Services buildings, libraries, and sporting facilities) clean

and well maintained.
Civil Project This area provides the capital works program, 1,689 1586 103
Services construction and design of civil projects and

strategic projects relating to Council buildings,

community facilities, recreation facilities and

sustainability projects.
Traffic and This service provides the day to day maintenance 1,556 1718 (362)
Development to support the road network including driver
Services safety education programs, street lighting, traffic

management, traffic engineering, bus shelters
and road safety.
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Budget Actual Variance

Activity Description 000 4000 $000
Statutory This service is responsible for the administration 1,459 1,435 24
Planning and enforcement of the Manningham Planning
Services Scheme and coordination of statutory planning

permits, including pre-application and
application services

Maintenance This service maintains and repairs all traffic signals 398 288 o
services and roadside signs and furniture including guard

for signs rails on Council roads.

and street

furniture
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Service Performance Indicators

The following statement provides the results of the LCPRF
prescribed service performance indicators and measures for

the liveable places and spaces theme.

0 o (=]
Service [ indicator % = = g Material variations and
[measurel o o o o comments
~ ~ ~ ~
I Aquatic Facilities

Service standard 4 4 4 Quarterly health

Health inspections of Inspections are

aquatic facilities undlertaken by an
Environmental Health

[Number of authorised Officer in accordance

officer inspections of with the Public Health

Manningham aquatic and Wellbeing Act

facilities / number of 2008. Due to COVID-19,

Manningham aquatic the facility was closed

facilities] between mid-March and
June (with a restricted
re-opening for a small
portion of May/June).
Inspections were not
undertaken while the
pool was closed, resulting
in two fewer inspections
than the previous year

Service cost New in Newin Newin 025 Manningham's Aguatic

2020 2020 2020 facility provides great

Cost of indoor aquatic
facilities per visit

[Direct cost of aquatic
facilities less income
received / Number of visits
to aquatic facilities]

value with a variety

of programs and
activiles. Due to COVID-19
the facility was closed
between mid-March and
June (with a restricted
re-opening for a small
portion of May/June).
This closure significantly
reduced the income for
the contractor which in
turn impacted on the
cost per visit for
Manningham.
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M

B~ @ o)) [}
Service / indicator © = = g- Material variations and
[measure] o o o ) comments
o~ [ ol o~

Utilisation 4 56% 5.68% 527% 3.97%  Utilisation of the aquatic

Utilisation of aquatic facility significantly

facilities decreasec_l comparef:i_ to
2018/19 with the facility

[Number of visits to closed between mid-

aquatic facilities / March to June due to

municipal population] COVID-19. There was a
restricted reopening for
a small portion of May/
June, however utilisation
cduring this time was
minimal.

I Statutory planning

Timelines 153 77 74 53 Statutory Planning has

Time taken to decide days days days days conti'nued to reduce the

planning applications medlwan Fiays to process
applications reducing

[The median number of fram 74 median days in

days between receipt of 2018/19 to 56 median

a planning application days in 2019/20.

and a decision on the

application]

Service standard 51% 71% 81% 96% \We have continued to

Planning applications achieve an increase Ih

decided within time the nlurr!ber of p!anmng
applications decided

[(Number of regular in time from previous

planning application years due to the ongoing

decisions made within system [mprovements in

60 days) + (number processing applications.

of VicSmart planning

application decisions macde

within 10 days) / number

of planning application

decisions made] x 100

Service cost $2,699 S2238 S$2007 52733 We have worked hard to

Cost of statutory planning
service

[Direct cost of the statutory
planning service / number
of planning applications
received

ensure that the planning
process is efficient, with
a marginal increase in
application costs
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Sealed local roads below
the intervention level

[Number of kilometres of
sealed local roads below
the renewal intervention
level set by Manningham /
kilometres of sealed local
roads] x 100

~ 0 o o
Service / indicator '('a = = S Material variations and
[measurel o o o o comments
o o~ ] ~
Decision making 719% 65% 529 51% We have experienced a
Council p!annmg decisions decrea-s_e n the number
. . of decisions upheld at

upheld at Victorian ; . o

Civil and Administrative the V,Ic,tor'arj CM_' and

Tribunal (VCAT) Administrative Trlbur_wal
(VCAT) from the previous

[Number of VCAT decisions year. In 2019/20,12 of 18

that did not set aside decisions set aside were

Council's decision in successfully negotiated at

relation to a planning compulsory conference

application / number of or through outside

VCAT decisions in relation negotiations with the

to planning applications] permit applicant.

x 100

I Roads

Satisfaction of use 739% 6304 569 81% We strive to provide well

Sealed local road requests mamtamgd roads for the
community. Requests are

[Number of sealed local dealt with as efficiently

road requests [ kilometres as possible to achieve a

of sealed local roads] x 100 high quality and cost-
efficient outcome. The
number of requests has
increased to 482 from
337 the previous year.
This indicates a more
active and observant
community, with a
greater desire to walk
and commute through
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Condition 99% 99% 99% 100%  Our local roads are

maintained according
to Council's Road
Management Plan. The
intervention level is the
condition standard set
to determine whether
a sealed local road
requires renewal. The
high standard remains
consistent with previous
results.
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/
-
.

~ @ o)) (o}
Service / indicator ) = = S Material variations and
[measure] o o o o comments
~ o~ ~ o~

Service cost S516370 $130.79 $91.63 $5520  The significant cost

Cost of sealed local road reduction " largew

reconstruction per m? due to the |nngvat|ve
and cost-effective

[Direct cost of sealed construction methods,

local road reconstruction together with lower

/ m? of sealed local roads complexity of projects

reconstructed] and an increase in
recycled materizls and
products being used
This has led to greater
efficiencies when
compared with the
previous year.

Service cost S25.54 $23.07 523 $2372  There has been a slight

Cost of sealed local road |r1crea.se in the cost of

resealing per m? re?seallng due tg thle
different combination of

[Direct cost of sealed local roads requiring resea“ng

road resealing / m? of and much larger scale of

sealed local roads resealed] works undertaken across
the municipality (8%
of local road network)
We typically use asphalt
for the road resealing
program with the type of
asphalt used dependant
on the individual road.

Satisfaction 66 64 66 66 We have maintained

Satisfaction with sealed
local roads

[Community satisfaction
rating out of 100 with how
we have performed on the
condition of sealed local
roads]

a consistent rate of
community satisfaction
with sealed roads

across the last two

years This data is
collected annually in a
Community Satisfaction
Survey conducted by an
independent research
company on behalf of the

Victorian Government.
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Our year ahead

Major Initiatives

We will ensure local planning is responsive to community need and aligned with local
planning laws by facilitating planning scheme amendments that are considered a high
priority of the 2018 Planning Scheme Review recommendations We will progress twa
additional major recommendations by June 2021,

We will implement our Parks Improvement Program works as scheduled, including Pettys
Reserve, the design of Hepburn Road Park and complete the designs for the Main Yarra
River Trail to Warrandyte by 30 June 2021.

We will continue to advocate for positive community outcomes in the North East
Link(NEL) Planning. We will successfully collabarate with the NEL project and proponent
to pursue environmental, recreation, open space and construction cutcomes for
Manningham

We will improve connectivity through the delivery of the Road Improvement Program,

including:

« Designing the Jumping Creek Road recconstruction from Ringwood-Warrandyte Road to
Homestead Road

= Improving safety with the installation of traffic signals on Tram Road and Merlin Street.

» Designing and canstructing the new Hepburn Road extension to provide new rcad and
pedestrian connections,

We will adopt an integrated transport approach to private and public transport in the
region. We will deliver short-term actions in the Transport Action Plan and the Bus Action
Plan including contributing to planning for the Suburban Rail Loop and Doncaster
Busway.

We will develop a long-term Community Infrastructure Plan, and complete a draft by
30 June 2021

Other Initiatives

We will enhance our parks, open space and streetscapes, including completing our
Footpath Priority Program for 2020/21.
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Liveable places and spaces case study:
Upgrading our parks and playgrounds

We understand that well-designed and maintained local parks play
a critical role in creating well connected and safe neighbourhoods.
We remain committed to creating inviting spaces by enhancing our
parks, open spaces and streetscapes.

In 2019/20, we undertock significant upgrades A new path, drinking fountain, seats and
to local parks and reserves to encourage our picnic tables make this a great space to enjoy
residents to lead healthy, active and resilient lives.  at any time of the year.

Upgrades across Manningham included four Dehnert Reserve, Doncaster East

key play areas to help keep children and The popular park, close to Doncaster Gardens
families active. Primary School, received a landscape
Lynwood Reserve, Templestowe Lower makeover with a new concrete path, bridge, a

rock sitting circle under shady trees as well as

We completed a major upgrade to Lynwood
P J P9 y more trees and plants.

Reserve to create a playspace that caters to

all ages and abilities. A new 20 metre-long, A new triple swing set and rope climbing unit
glow in the dark snake sculpture features as were added to the existing play equipment
the distinctive centrepiece of the playspace. and new seating and picnic area installed for

the community to enjoy.

The play equipment includes a six-way swing
set - the first of its kind in Manningham - as
well as a multi climbing and slide unit, basket
swing, spinning pole.

We also upgraded the concrete paths which
now provide a 500-metre circuit for bikes,
scooters and walkers, and links to a new
round multi-purpose court

Allara Reserve, Donvale

We made significant improvements at Allara
Reserve including colourful and adventurous play
equipment complete with a high rope climbing
cube, tunnel slide, triple swing set, junior slide
and a cubby house with activity panels.

We also completed landscaping and installed
new seating and drinking fountain and
planted new trees tc make it an appealing
space for the whole community.

Thea Reserve, Doncaster East

We have created a new fairy-themed
playspace for the young and young at heart
at Thea Reserve with a rock circle under the
wonderful cak trees, new play equipment,
balancing logs, a dry creek bed and new trees
and shrubs

Allara Reserve
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Resilient o
environment =

Manningham is home to widespread green spaces that support
many endangered species and provide our community with
exceptional natural environment experiences.

We will work with our community and partners to protect and enhance our valued environment
and biodiversity, as well as reduce our environmental impact and adapt to climate change.

3.1. Protect and enhance our environment and biodiversity

Goal

Foster community partnerships in protecting natural spaces, parks, rivers and
creeks

Sustainable development encompassing living, business and community
facilities

Support the protection of the Green Wedge and natural spaces

Improve local economy in the Green Wedge

Action areas

Sustainable management, monitoring and enhancement for the natural
environment

3.2. Reduce our environmental impact and adapt to climate change

Goal

Build community awareness and support of environmental issues

Optimise the management of our energy, waste and water

Manage natural spaces to remove threats and revegetate

Support sustainable green business

Action areas

Demonstrate leadership in sustainable and innovative environmental practices
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What you asked for

protect and enhance the bicdiversity values across land in Manningham
sustainable activities and programs for the community

protect and improve the local economy in the Green Wedge

leadership in sustainable and innovative practices

improve environmental outcomes for local business

prepare for emergencies

Achievements: what we delivered

We ran our Emergency Aware program to provide materials from multiple emergency
services together to assist residents in planning for emergency events. We partnered
with multiple emergency services and the Australian Red Cross to offer free sixty-minute
emergency planning sessions across Manningham in October and November 2019

We were successful in achieving our 20% reduction in greenhouse emissions target.

We continued cur partnership with Resilient Melbourne, The Nature Conservancy, the
Victorian Government and other local councils to develop a metropolitan-wide urban
forest strategy for Melbourne called Living Melbourne: our metropolitan urban forest.

We continued to add to our environmentally friendly car fleet with over 20 hybrid
passenger vehicles now in use

We changed the way we manage our fleet vehicles to better report on the use of our
vehicles.

We installed parking, environmental and pedestrian sensors at Jackson Court as part

of the federally funded Smart Technologies - Reinventing Neighbourhoods project. The
resulting data will inform a more sacially connected neighbourhood including community
led initiatives and a transition from car use to walking, cycling and public transport

We improved our Fire Prevention Inspection Program by implementing new system
processes to facilitate accurate and timely property inspections in the field

We provided additional clean up support to residents following the January 2020 storm
event, which included:
+ extended hours and free disposal opportunities at the Garden Waste Centre

» free drop off skip bins located in Warrandyte and Doncaster for residents to dispose of green
waste created by the storm

+ an additional garden waste kerbside collection for residents who requested this assistance.
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Challenges

We experienced some capital project delays due to design and concept changes needed
to meet requirements. To support cur sporting clubs during this time, we kept them
updated on the progress and adjustments to our capital works program

The Gippsland bushfires and local storm events placed additional load for our Parks and
Emergency Management staff and caused some delays and additional works.

Our City Amenity team experienced shortages in resources and high vacancies rates which
caused some service inefficiencies. The vacancies have now been addressed and a service

efficiency review is underway

We face ongoing reinsurance challenges due to increasing severe weather events causing

damage

Fast facts

+ we achieved a 20% reduction in
greenhouse emissions

= 56% of Manningham's waste was
diverted from landfill

« 19,000 plants planted, including 2000

advanced trees

we achieved a 20% reduction in

greenhouse emissions
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Our performance — Council Plan

The following shows our 2019/20 performance in the resilient
environment theme, against the goals of our Council Plan 2017-2021.

Goal: Protect and enhance our environment and biodiversity

2017-2021 Actions

I Healthy community

Measure Result

Outcomes

Support the
community to
deliver programs
and activities to
protect and enhance
biodiversity values
across land in
Manningham

Maintain or increase  Achieved
total volunteer
hours

Source: Council data

Community programs and
activities included

ongoing Local Envirenment
Assistance Fund (LEAF) grants
to support private landholders
to undertake weed and pest
animal control including pest
deer control. Over 50 properties
participated in 2019/20
continuation of our Parks
Alive initiative to encourage
community volunteers to get
involved in enhancing and
managing local parks
community tree and shrub
planting as part of National
Tree Day at Ruffey Lake Park.

I Liveable places and spaces

Deliver initiatives to
ensure sustainable
land use and
protection of
landscape and
natural heritage
assets

Maintain or increase  Achieved
total projects
completed

Source: Council data

Initiatives delivered included:

Managing Council bushland
reserves including sweet
vernal, woody weed and other
weed control, rabbit warren
destruction, seed collection for
future revegetation.

Implementing projects funded
by Melbourne Water Corridors
of Green program.

Providing a total of $35,000

in community grants to
residents to improve or preserve
elements of heritage in
buildings and places.
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2017-2021 Actions Measure Result Outcomes
Resilient environment
Initiatives to Plan In progress We have advocated to protect our
advocate and protect  implementation environment through:
Manningham's . I _ " ,
9 ‘ Source: Councll data « establishing the Biodiversity
natural spaces, rivers, :
Impact Assessment Committee
creeks and Green .
to reduce vegetation removal
Wedge o o
and biodiversity impacts from
capital works projects. This
group's expertise has been
given to over 20 projects
« Council has worked closely with
the North East Link authority
to advocate to protect and
minimise vegetation loss
resulting from the project
Vibrant and prosperous economy
Advocate for an Maintain or increase  Achieved At June 30 2020, the local GDP
improved long-term local GDP was 54.95 billion, which increased
future and viability Source: ABS / REMPLAN slightly from the same period
in the green wedge last year
through economic
and tourism
opportunities
Well-governed Council
Lead and educate Maintain or increase  Achieved Programs included:

the community
in environmental
services and
programs

community
initiatives

Source: Council data

« Education Days and WaterWatch
events for the community

« we partnered with Outdoors
Victoria to deliver program
with State ‘Caring for Our Local
Environments’ funding support

+ the Autumn Nature Stewards
program commenced with
approx 20 participants but is
on hold due to the COVID-19
situation

« 15 'Backyard Biodiversity videos
have been produced and
published to our website
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Goal: Reduce our environmental impact and adapt to climate change

2017-2021 Actions Measure Result Outcomes
I Healthy community
Deliver a Maintain or improve  Achieved We delivered over 130
sustainability annual participation environmental and community
program to in environmental engagement events for 2019/20.
educate, empower sustainability
and engage programs
the community Source: Council data
in reducing its
environmental
impact and adapting
to climate change
I Liveable places and spaces
Activities and Initiatives In progress Aninitial draft of a new
programs that implemented Environment Strategy has been
support sustainable Source. Council data dz—:-velf:»ped with key priority areas
use of energy, water covering energy, water, waste,
and waste biodiversity and community
engagement.
Improved litter LGPRF Data Achieved Our litter collection programs
collection and Source: Council data continue to run on schedule
disposal programs with the number of missed bins
along roadsides continuing to decrease, Only 2.8
bins were missed in every 10,000
in 2019/20.
I Resilient environment
Ensure plans are Plans completed In progress All our plans are in place and

responsive to protect
and prepare our
environment for
emergency, bushfire
disaster

on time

Source: Council data

reviewed regularly. The Municipal
Fire Management Plan also
successfully passed a recent audit
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2017-2021 Actions Measure Result Outcomes

Vibrant and prosperous economy

Support local Maintain or increase Deferred This initiative is deferred until a
business to improve businesses in suitable activity can be identified.
environmental programs supported

and sustainable by Northern Alliance

outcomes through for Greenhouse

inclusion in regional Action

programs Source: Council Data

Well-governed council

Demonstrate Maintain or improve  |In progress We demonstrated leadership
leadership in environmental through

sustelnnable‘ |mt|at|yes f.or . « Council's declaration of

and innovative Council buildings . R
environmental and assels e Cllmate Er‘nergencyl "

) Manningham. An Action Plan
practices e.g. solar Source: Council data is being developed to drive
panels . .

environmental practices and
outcomes for Manningham

« working towards replacement
and rectification of the 99kw
depot solar system after
hailstorm damage earlier in the
year

« establishing the Building
Solar and Environmentally
Sustainable Development
Project Contral Group to
manage a five-year program
to install roof-top solar. This
is currently being developed
and will incorporate prioritising
energy efficient solar projects
including installing decorative
LED streetlights for the Pines
and Ajani Community Centre.

Sustainable waste Maintain or improve  Achieved Following a bin rollout in

LGPRF waste
indicators

collection

Source: Council data

alignment with Australian
Standards, we have achieved our
highest ever garbage diversion
rate and the lowest percentage
of material sent to landfill.
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Our performance — major initiatives and initiatives

B On target M Some progress M Not on target

Major initiative Comment

We delivered over 130 envircnmental and community engagement
events for 2019/20

Deliver education and
awareness program

on environmental
sustainability, biodiversity
protection and smarter
living.

Deliver a minimum of 35
envirocnmental education
programs/initiatives for
the community by 30
June 2020.

A Municipal Drainage Strategy has been developed for
consideration and further work with the next elected Council.

Continue to upgrade our
drainage infrastructure
to protect habitable
floor levels and impraove
community safety.

Develop a Municipal
Drainage Plan that
enCompasses a response
to flood mitigation by
June 2020

Initiative Comment

We are establishing the Building Solar and Environmentally
Sustainable Design Project Control Group to manage a five-year
program of building roof-top solar installations which is currently
being developed and will incorporate the Pines and Ajani solar
projects.

Foster partnerships to
enable the delivery of
climate action and Smart
City initiatives including
exploring sites for
electric vehicle charging,
developing a five-year
plan for solar upgrades,
and developing other
environmentally
sustainable development
programs by June 2020

. Progres:s | . PTOgTesS
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Services funded in our Annual Budget

We funded the below services in the Annual Budget 2019/20

to support our

Activity

Waste Services

resilient environment goals.

Description

Providing kerbside rubbish collections of
garbage, hard waste and green waste from all
households and some commercial properties
in Manningham. Services also include a waste
call centre, education services and the strategic
planning of waste services.

Budget
$'000

(1,609)

Actual Variance

$'000

(2,021)

$'000

412

Assets and
Environment

Services designed to protect the environment
including underground drain and pit
maintenance, street cleaning and sweeping,
roadside litter pickup, tipping costs

3576

3,879

(303)

Environmental

This service provides environmental education,
public land management, stewardship and
fosters biodiversity as well as protecting the land
through pest control

2,647

1,827

820

Drains and
Technical
Services

This service performs the inspection,
maintenance and cleaning of underground
drains to ensure correct operation.

482

515

(33)
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Service performance indicators

The following statement provides the results of the LCPRF
prescribed service performance indicators and measures for
the resilient environment theme.

& 2 2 S
. N Material variations and
Service / indicator [measure] 8 & o 1]
o o o o comments
~ ~ ~ ~
I Waste collection
Satisfaction 111.31 8292 94.02 10052 We continue to monitor

requests requests requests requests our services and improve

Kerbside bin collection ;
practices and systems

requests :
with contractors where
[Number of kerbside possible. The increase
garbage and recycling bin in requests is related to
collection requests / Number an issue with old bin
of kerbside bin collection supplier and the quality
households] x 1000 of some of the bins. The
bin supplier has now
been changed
Service standard 810 422 367 276 Manningham achieved

its lowest missed

Kerbside collection bins . .
bin result since the

missed

commencement of a
[Number of kerbside garbage new contract in July
and recycling collection 2016 with only 276 bins
bins missed / Number of missed in every 10,000

scheduled kerbside garbage
and recycling collection bin
lifts] x 10,000

Service cost S103.60 $10447 S10596 S10838 The cost of the kerbside
bin collection is slightly
higher than 2018-19 and
reflects the annual direct
[Direct cost of the kerbside cost of the kerbside
garbage bin collection garbage callectian.
service [ Number of kerbside

garbage collection bins]

Cost of kerbside garbage bin
collection service
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£ 2 2 8 | d
L Material variations an
Service / indicator [measurel = = Y o
[*] o o o comments
o ~ o~ ~
Service cost $10.57 121 S45.47 $4210  The cost of the kerbside
. bin collection is lower
Cost of kerbside recyclables
, : . Y than 2018-19 and reflects
collection service .
the annual direct cost of
[Direct cost of the kerbside the kerbside recycling
recyclables bin collection collection.
service / Number of kerbside
recyclables collection bins]
Waste diversion 549 5496 539 56%  Manningham has seen

Kerbside collection waste
diverted from landfill

[Weight of recyclables and
green organics collected
from kerbside bins / Weight
of garbage, recyclables and
green organics collected
from kerbside bins] x 100

an increase in tonnages
when compared

to 2018/19. Garden
waste tonnages were
significantly higher due
to higher than average
rainfall resulting in
increased foliage
growth.

Our year ahead

Major Initiatives

We will deliver education and awareness program on environmental sustainability,
biodiversity protection and smarter living. We will deliver a minimum of 50 environmental
education programs/initiatives for the community, reaching at least 3000 participants

We will continue te upgrade Council drainage infrastructure to protect habitable floor
levels and improve community safety. We will implement several priority actions listed

in the Municipal Drainage Plan

We will demonstrate leadership in sustainable and innovative environmental
practices in waste management and climate change, including the development
and implementation of a Council Environment Strategy and a Climate Emergency

Response Plan.
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Other Initiatives

We will deliver biodiversity protection programs for Council and private land.
By 20 June 2021, we will

» develop and implement a pest management strategy and continue our bushland
management

deliver LEAF and Hotspots programs

provide biodiversity impact advice on Council capital works, North East Link and other
projects
« map Manningham vegetation loss and develop initiatives that address this issue.

.

We will Improve energy and carbon efficiency in Council owned assets.
By 30 June 2021, we will

» build a solar and environmentally sustainable design program
» develop and implement sustainable Council fleet initiatives
« investigate and develop LED public lighting projects

« maintain Council’s annual greenhouse gas emissions below 2020 levels of about 7000
tonnes.

We will foster partnerships to enable the delivery of climate action and Smart City
initiatives for Manningham. We will collaborate in regional partnerships to switch some of
Council’s energy supply to renewables.

n7
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Resilient environment case study:

Using smart technology at Jackson Court
Neighbourhood Centre

Manningham Council partnered with the Australian Government
to implement new smart technologies at the Jackson Court
Neighbourhood Centre in Doncaster East as part of the Smart
Cities - Reinventing Neighbourhoods program.

The program uses a range of smart sensors to
gather data to enable us to better understand
the community's use of the Jackson Court
Neighbourhood Centre, with the aim of
improving the community's experience of

the centre

Sensors were installed across the Jackson
Court neighbourhood centre to gather
real-time data on vehicle use, pedestrian
movements and environmental conditions
like Co2Z levels, temperature and noise The
data from the sensors helps us to understand
how visitors move through the centre, their
modes of transport and how long they stay.

This data will be used to help us better plan
for the right mix of physical space such

as parking, pavements and infrastructure,
making it maore attractive for residents and
visitors in the future. It will also provide us
with usage trends that local business and : e ;
community groups can use to help them ; Poss: EONGEVITY MEBICAL CENTRE
plan their local activities. - = 9848 2 Hl"JI >

The sensors record non-identifiable data | 3 t
in accordance with our privacy policy. No i I e =
cameras have been installed and no personal - e : ;

information is collected.

)

Smart Cities Is an Australian Government
initiative to transform cities, suburbs and
regional areas using infrastructure and
technology to deliver a more sustainable,
prosperous and inclusive future

For more information see
manninghamvic. gov.au/jackson-court
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Vibrant and
prosperous economy o0()

Manningham is a unique balance of city and country, with an active
regional economy.

Our low commercial and industrial base means there are opportunities to strengthen our
tourism and visitor destinations We have a strong local business network, supporting strip
shops, activity centres and home businesses.

We support local economic growth through enabling a strong visitor economy, as well as
vibrant local business and activity centres.

4.1. Grow our local business, tourism and economy

Goal

Develop tourism through promotion of the unique character of Manningham

Suitable mix of commercial land to stimulate business diversity

Strengthen accessibility and viability in activity centres for retail, employment
and community.

Leverage private and public investment opportunities through Precinct
[nvestment Plans

Action areas

Foster the greater Melbourne East economy
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What you asked for

« foster innovation and knowledge building in our business community
« collaboration to promote growth throughout the region
= stimulate business diversity

Achievements: what we delivered

We established a new business support program and transitioned to online business
mentoring.

We continued to deliver a comprehensive business development program including

+ delivering a 12-week Marketing series as online program

« facilitating online connection events featuring guest speakers

+ our Business Advisary moved online with sessions held over Skype and Zoom

« business mentoring across a range of topics to support business during COVID-19 lockdown.

We delivered important information to our business community through our Manningham Business
website and eNewsletter.

We funded improvements to local activity centres including
+ $811,000 at Tunstall Square
« 527,000 at Macedon Square

« 536,000 for the Tunstall Square art project
« 523,000 for the Templestowe Activity Centre Neighbourhood Activity

We have worked with Yarra Ranges Tourism to help support tourism related business during
the COVID-19 pandemic.

We have continued our partnership with Melbourne East Regional Economic Development
Group on economic development initiatives to deliver and advocate to the Victorian and
Australian Covernments

We supported the local creative industry through the successful biennial Manningham
Victorian Ceramic Art Award, a dynamic exhibition program at Manningham Art Gallery, and
the launch of a dedicated Creative Industries Support Program.

We launched a new Creative Industries Support program in response to COVID-19, with over
10,000 participants.

I We supported 87 small businesses through our venues.
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Challenges

It is expected that there will be a medium-term negative effect on tourism due to the pandemic
and further work on this initiative is likely to be delayed We are working closely with Yarra
Ranges Tourism to provide advice and support to Tourism businesses during COVID-19.

We have needed to quickly adapt our business support offering to meet the needs of Manningham
businesses facing the COVID-19 pandemic

Fast facts
« we recognised 41 finalists as part of the our tourism indus
2019 Manningham Victorian Ceramic $230 million in
Art Award $326 million in D
« over 10,000 people participated in Arts : er of 5
and Culture's new creative inclustry c /N fron in: >1,791in
program ployment he vn from 27,468 in
+« Manningham was home to 14,331 016 to 30,572 in 20

businesses as of 30 June 2020

» there were 23,503 visits to the
Manningham Business website
manninghambusiness.com.au

» 26 issues of Manningham Business
eNewsletter were distributed
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Our performance — Council Plan

The following shows our 2019/20 performance in the vibrant and
prosperous economy theme, against the goals of our Council Plan
2017-2021.

Goal: Grow our local business, tourism and economy

2017-2021 Actions

I Healthy community

Measure

Result

Outcomes

Foster knowledge
and innovation in the
business community

Maintain or increase
participants at
events

Achieved

We continued to deliver a
comprehensive business
development program. While

through the
delivery of Business
Development
Program

some changes have been made
due to COVID-19, the program
is still being delivered across a
number of areas including:

Maintain or
improve participant
satisfaction
Source: Council data . . .
+ Delivering a 12-week Marketing
series as online program

Facilitating online connection
events featuring guest
speakers.

+ Our Business Advisory Service,
which has move online with
sessions held over Skype and
Zoom.

+ Business mentoring across
arange of topics to support
business during COVID-19
restrictions.

+ Planning our Business

Excellence Awards to be

relaunched in 2021

Strengthen
creative industries
and partnerships
to harness new
opportunities for
cultural tourism

Maintain or improve
local cultural
tourism

In progress The Arts and Cultural program
attracts 559% participants from
outside the municipality, of
which, around three-quarters
either go on to support the
local economy by purchasing
an artwork, booking another
Arts Manningham program,
attend another cultural venue
in Manningham or support
Manningham's cafes and/or
retail.

Source: ABS / CDP data

Item 5.1 Attachment 1 Page 128



COUNCIL AGENDA

13 OCTOBER 2020

2017-2021 Actions Measure Result Outcomes
Liveable places and spaces
Implement Maintain or increase In progress We funded improvements to
improvements investment in local activity centres including
ngth ivi r
to stre’ g;t’ en activity centres « $811.000 - Tunstall Square
accessibility and Source: Council data
viability in activity : « $27,000 - Macedon Square
centres for retail, + $36,000 - Tunstall square art
employment and project
community « 523,000 - Templestowe Activity
Centre Neighbourhood Activity.
Vibrant and prosperous economy
Develop tourism Maintain or increase Data not Work continues:
|nvestmentl kg}( destination available « with Yarra Range Tourism to
opportunities visitor numbers .
help support tourism related
Source: Destination business during the COVID-19
Melbourne and pandemic
Remplan + with Melbourne East Regional
Economic Development Group
on economic development
initiatives to deliver and advocate
to the Victorian and Australian
Governments.
Well-governed council
Collaborate with Maintain or reduce  789% of We had a slight increase from
regional partners to reliance on rate revenue 769% to 78.9% reliance of revenue
foster the growth of revenue growth from rates from rates

greater Melbourne
East economy and
create a mix of land
to stimulate business
diversity in the region

Source: Council data
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Our performance — major initiatives and initiatives

Major initiative

Grow the visitor economy
and create opportunities
for visitor destinations
and events within
Manningham that
engage both residents
and external visitors

Deliver five tourism
activities from the
Tourism Action Plan

B On target

B sSome progress B Not on target

Comment

We are working closely with Yarra Ranges Tourism to provide advice
and support to Tourism businesses during COVID-19 It is expected
that there will be a medium-term negative effect on tourism due
to the pandemic and further work on this initiative is likely to be
delayed

Smart Cities: Reinventing
Neighbourhoods
Program. Jackson Court
Pilot site

Develop comprehensive,
data-driven approach
to planning future
development of key
activity centres

Develop near real time
monitoring capability of
parking, pedestrian and
environmental sensors

Smart City project at Jackson Court - Reinventing neighbourhoods
has been completed - some minor works have been deferred to
2020/2021 due to ordering delays from contractor.

All sensars are in place and final training on use of reporting has
commenced

Discovery Group are meeting virtually and all contracts on track to
be delivered.

Doncaster Hill Strategy
[2002) Review

Review complete by
30 December 2019

The purpose of the review of Doncaster Hill Strategy (2002, revised
2004) is to reflect on the successes, as well as identify gaps and
opportunities that need to be addressed in continuing to provide
guidance for use and development within Doncaster Hill

We engaged with our community as part of the Imagine
Manningham 2040 consultation in 2019. Feedback from this has
informed the key directions identified in the new draft Doncaster
Hill Framework Plan. These key directions will be tested with the
community and other key stakeholder before finalising the Draft
Doncaster Hill Framework Plan.
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Services funded in our Annual Budget

We funded the below services in the Annual Budget 2019/20
to support our vibrant and prosperous economy goals.

Budget  Actual Variance

Activity Description $000 $000 $'000
Business, This service develops programs, events and support 2,363 1908 455
Events and services to support the local economy in relation

Grants to business, sponsorship, commercial investment,

business support, employment and tourism

Community This service provides for the management and 494 1,052 (558)

Venues and hire of the Manningham Function Centre and
Functions hire of halls and other venues to community and

commercial hirers

Our year ahead

Major Initiatives

We will deliver five tourism activities from the Tourism Action Plan.

We will grow the visitor economy and create oppaortunities for visitor destinations and
events within Manningham that engage both residents and external visitors. We will
partner with regional tourism on events and activities to promote Manningham as a
visitor destination

Other Initiatives

The Smart Cities Reinventing Neighbourhoods project (Jackson Court Neighbourhood
Cenftre pilot site) provides near real-time monitoring capability of parking, pedestrian and
environmental sensors. We will use this information to develop a comprehensive, data-
driven approach to planning future development near key activity centres and support
the economic, social and environment development of the neighbourhood.

We will support vibrant local activity centres and local employment through the 'Buy
Local campaign. We will facilitate events and activities to support local small businesses
and traders in Manningham.
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Vibrant and prosperous economy case study:
Supporting Manningham'’s business community

The Manningham Business Development Program supports local
businesses through workshops, networking events, a monthly
connection breakfast series, business advisory service, and a
business planning and marketing series.

This year the program partnered with the
Federal Government's Australian Small
Business Advisory Service (ASBAS) Digital
program, Australian Taxation Office, and
regicnal partners in the Melbourne East.

The Manningham Co-waorking Space was

also launched this year, commencing bi-
monthly co-working sessions at MC Square
This program has been gathering intelligence
around the demand and need for co-working
in Manningham.

The Business Development Program can be
accessed by any business that operates within
Manningham. Throughout 2019/20, Manningham
Business provided 43 business events that were
attended by more than 1149 people.

From March 2020, in response to the
Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, many
of these business events and development
opportunities moved online and were
provided in different ways.

We also expanded the Business Development
Program to provide additional support to local
businesses for the short and medium-term The
expanded program provided activities to support
local businesses adapt to the challenges of the
COVID-19 crisis. The focus of the program has
been on creating opportunities for hands on
learning with high impact.

These included-
« business advisory services and mentoring
for heavily affected businesses

« one-on-one technical support and transition
for businesses

marketing support and business planning
sessions

+ adaptation to the new business environment

As well as business support, Manningham
Business has provided regular e-news to
local businesses with information on the
latest local, state and federal business news.
This regular newsletter moved to a weekly
distribution in response to the evolving
COVID-19 situation, providing regular
information on the latest information on
Victorian restrictions and support available
to businesses during this time

The Manningham Business Development
Program will continue in 2020/21 with a
focus on business resilience and recovery and
activation support for our shopping centres

For more information on Manningham's
Business Development Program see
manninghambusiness.com.au
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Well governed

council -

A well-governed Council is the foundation from which we deliver all
our services. Good governance ensures all decisions are made and
implemented in accordance with legislation, our values and our
strategic themes.

We continue to work hard to provide the best possible customer service to our community

™ 5.1. A financially sustainable Council that manages resources
8 effectively and efficiently
A sustainable suite of services and activities are delivered for our citizens
7]
m
E A Council that is responsible in future planning
L]
g A Council that models excellence through innovation, effectiveness and
- efficiency
2]
g Proactive approach to delivering a financially sustainable position
3 5.2. A Council that values citizens in all that we do
o
Information and decision making that meets cur community needs
" Our municipality is supported to thrive
o
a Stewardship in preparing and responding to emergency and environmental
c changes
= Council services and activities are delivered efficiently and effectively for our
] citizens
g
An organisation that is responsive and strives for local citizens to be engaged
and well informed in Council activities
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What you asked for

+ a balance between amenity and economic pressures

« ensure developers invest in the municipality

= assets are financially sustainable in the short and long-term
« planning for community safety in emergencies

« deliver valued, consistent and improved service

« participation in communication and engagement

Achievements: what we delivered

We fulfilled our statutery responsibilities in accordance with the Building Act and Council
Municipal Building Surveyor delegations.

We prepared a life cycle review of Council’s building infrastructure to give us a clear
picture of our building assets. We also developed a strategy to maximise the returns from
these assets.

I We successfully completed and adopted the 2020 General Valuation of the municipality

We developed and endorsed our Access to Information Policy.

We updated our Freedom of Infermation applications to allow electronic payment of
associated fees and charges

We conducted regular training sessions for our staff on Information Privacy and Freedom
of Information.

We refreshed our Fraud and Corruption Policy and Control Plan.

We undertook an extensive community engagement program for our Imagine
Manningham 2040 project, which saw community members contribute ideas, suggestions
and have their say on the future of Manningham

We digitised our incident and claims ledgement process to make it easier for community
members to lodge their information

We had the Victorian Auditor-Ceneral present the Victorian Auditor General's Office
strategic direction in the context of local government to our Audit and Risk Committee
and Executive Management Team in November 2019

In preparation for the 2020 Council Elections, our Election Period Policy was reviewed and
updated.

We successfully facilitated a business continuity test in December 2019
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We updated our Public Interest Disclosure regime in response to legislative changes

We implemented our new learning management system for staff, which improves
accessibility to learning cpportunities, improves the quality and consistency of learning
records and integrates our learning and performance systems.

We rolled out a customer service training program for our staff to support improved
custemer experience and embed our customer promise,

Council endorsed our Community Engagement and Public Participation Palicy, which
guides our community engagement practices in Manningham

We commenced negotiating our next Enterprise Agreement

We strengthened our work health and safety program through a planned and agile
education and communications program

We conducted an internal audit of our work health and safety program which highlighted
our positive culture towards safe working, reperting and management of incidents.

We initiated our new work health and safety system to better support our staff to report
hazards and incidents and access policy, procedures and performance data. We aim to
complete this rollout in 2020/21.

We increased the profile of our child safety standards and practice through reviewing our
policy, implementing an eLearning module, and developing a dedicated intranet page.

We improved our new starter experience with a custombuilt online corporate induction

We improved our workforce reporting capability and data accessibility through the
PowerBl system.

We embedded our new Code of Conduct and rolled it out to our staff with a custom-built
elearning module

We deepened our commitment to diversity and inclusion with the formation of the
Diversity and Inclusion Waorking Group and participation in Cender Equality Bill
Implementation Pilot (including Gender Impact Analysis pilot and Workplace Cender
Audit pilot)
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A 10-year Transformation and IT Plan has been developed and endorsed by Council. This
will support our organisation and community's evolving needs into the future.

We processed online venue bookings to make it faster and easier to book Council facilities.

We awarded a tender for our Data Strategy, including a data warehouse and master data
management solution and implementing a business analytics tools to better analyse our
data

We conducted training for our staff to improve project management practices across the
organisation

We implemented our new Learning Management System (LMS), called MY Success.
This will help us to improve access to learning opportunities, improve the quality and
consistency of learning records, improve the utilisation of eLearning, and integrate our
learning and performance systems.

We delivered new online services for our residents and businesses to facilitate them to
manage their Council activity online.

We successfully implemented the new Swimming Pool Registration system to allow
residents to register their pools and spas enline in line with new Victorian Government
legislation. Since its launch, over 2,862 registrations have been lodged through this service

We launched a new Geographic Information System (similar to Coogle Maps) to facilitate
the community to find Council services near their home. The program also allows access to
current and historical aerial photography of Manningham going back to 1956,

A new Cyber Security training package was launched across the organisation to over 500
staff and Councillors. This package has now been embedded in our compliance training
program

Our Custoemer Experience team developed the organisation’'s Complaint Policy in line
with Local Government Act 2020. The policy details our commitment to delivering
quality customer service by addressing our customers’ concerns and complaints promptly
and fairly. The policy provides a framework for how we manage complaints and how we
measure our performance
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We established standard customer response times to help us improve our customers’
experience and deliver a high standard of service that is timely, responsive, accurate
and accountable. Our response times include in person - we aim to resclve the issue
immediately, email and social media - two working days, phone calls - to be returned
within the next warking day; and mail - 10 working days.

Our Workplace Health and Safety team developed a planned and agile commmunications
program to ensure consistent health and safety messaging across the organisation. We
worked on a Workplace Health and Safety systems solution that is on target to enter its
testing phase in September 2020 We achieved a good result from a Workplace Health
and Safety Internal Audit, demonstrating our compliance and a clear plan for an improved
and contemporary Workplace Health and Safety system

Our City Projects team implemented project delivery improvement measures and
developed a Strategic Procurement Plan

Our Workplace Health and Safety Strategy 2019/20 was integrated as part of our People,
Culture & Safety Business Plan. Delivery of the strategy is on target and includes planning
for a new Workplace Health and Safety management system and delivery of Workplace
Health and Safety indicators bi-monthly and bi-annually to Workplace Health and Safety
Committees.

We received a commendation for our Annual Report and audited Performance Statement.

We achieved 90% of our Council Plan initiatives

We integrated the delivery of public value into our business planning

We reviewed our assessment criteria for our budget and business planning.

We delivered our business planning workshops across the organisation

We continued our work to align our short, medium and long-term key strategic
documents.

We rolled out a new initiative, ‘Share Fair to support our teams across the organisation to
work together to optimise value to our community.

We consulted with our community to name our nine new Council wards which will come
into effect after the October 2020 Council election.

We distributed seven printed editions of Manningham Matters community magazine and
between April and June 2020 distributed six digital editions of Manningham Matters.
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Challenges

We improved the efficiency of how we manage our four and 10-year Capital Works
Program development by transitioning our project management from Excel to a new
software system.

We have transitioned to providing further details on the allocation of our capital works
budget for greater openness and transparency.

We have expanded our monthly Capital Works Status Report to better chart the progress
of our expenditure.

Our Property Services team has adapted to significant changes in their operating
environment by developing a renewed focus on achieving sustainable community and
financial cutcomes by assessing their operations and project implementation.

We needed to bring our staff up to speed after transitioning to a new software to manage
our capital works program

We processed a significant increase of Freedom of Information requests

Part of our assurance compliance plan was interrupted for four months from March 2020,
however our internal audit remained in place.

Delays to the commencement of the Local Government Act 2020 have created a number
of challenges including tight timeframes for the completion of key projects, policy
deliverables, uncertainty regarding Council's electoral structure in the lead up to Council
elections and complex transition provisions

We supported our staff with significant and unprecedented health and safety cancerns
including air quality issues from bushfires and the COVID-19 pandemic. We became active
in managing and minimising associated risks to our staff.

Our City Infrastructure team’s ability to procure works was restricted for the first five
months of the year The team has now developed a strategic procurement plan to improve
procurement of goods and services into the future.

There has been a delay in starting our customer experience action plan which details a
12-month program of works to deliver meaningful change for our customers.
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Fast facts

» we administered the 2020 General Valuation of
50,347 rateable properties that were returned
by the Valuer General

« 927 property assessments were added as
supplementary valuations

« 75% of community members surveyed as part
of the 2020 Community Satisfaction Survey
scored our customer service as ‘good’ or ‘very
good'’

our Citizen Connect team received 114,894 calls

our Citizen Connect team handled 749 of calls

without having to transfer to another team

+ 77% of our calls to customer service were
answered within 30 seconds

» 534,379 visitors to manninghamvic.gov.au

= 21,300 visitors to our Your Say Manningham

engagement platform, yoursay.manningham.

vic.gov.au
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Our performance — Council Plan

The following shows our 2019/20 performance in the well-governed
Council theme against the goals of our Council Plan 2017-2021.

Goal: A financially sustainable Council that manages resources
effectively and efficiently

2017-2021 Actions Measure Result Outcomes

I Healthy community

Develop and deliver Maintain or Achieved We reduced or maintained our
accessible and improve service cost of service in most indicators.
affordable services cost indicators
and facilities for the
community Source: Council data

LCPRF

I Liveable places and spaces

Identify initiatives for  Maintain or Achieved We continued initiatives to review
savings and stronger  increase initiatives Council-owned and managed
return on investment  identified and properties. We identified savings

in Council-owned implemented and developed a property

and managed places investment portfolio for future

and spaces Source: Council data implementation in accordance with

the Access and Concession Policy
and lease or licence renewals.

I Resilient environment

Ensure that future Maintain or Achieved We continuously reviewed

land use planning improve adherence community feedback and legal
balances amenity to relevant laws advice to ensure that Council
and economic decisions adhere to relevant
pressures Source: Council data laws following the review of our

planning scheme that identified
future needs.
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2017-2021 Actions

Measure Result

I Vibrant and prosperous economy

Outcomes

Establish and
implement

a Developer
Contribution Plan
(DCP) for future
arowth and provision
of amenities

Maintain or Carried over
increase savings

achieved

Maintain or

implement

standards

improvements

Source: Council data

Our work on the preparation of a
DCP for the whaole municipality
is dependent on the completion
of a Community Infrastructure
Plan to assist long-term planning
for the municipality. The DCP
will identify municipal benefits,
identify charge areas and charge
rates for the contributions.

I Well-governed council

Deliver a financially
sustainable position
in the short and long
term

Financial Indicators  Achieved
within expected
range

Source: VAGO /LGPRF

We are in a sound financial
position. We adopted a 10-year
financial plan in line with a best
practice approach for short and
long-term sustainability.

Goal: A Council that values citizens in all that we do

2017-2021 Actions Measure Result Qutcomes

I Healthy community
Communication Maintain 72 Our community was invelved in
and engagement or increase engagement  Council decision-making through
that encourages engagement opportunities  the Community Panel, online

community
participation in
decision making

opportunities
Source: Council data

forums, the Youth Alliance, as
members of cur committees and
specific invitations for feedback
on plans and projects which
might affect them.

I Liveable places and spaces

Protect and promote
community safety,
the environment and
the amenity of the
municipality

Maintain or Achieved
improve standards

of LGPRF — Food

Safety Animal

Management

Waste

Management

Source: Council data

There has been sound performance
across all indicatars.

136

Item 5.1

Attachment 1

Page 141



COUNCIL AGENDA

13 OCTOBER 2020

2017-2021 Actions Measure Result Outcomes

Resilient environment

Delivering an Maintain Achieved We continue to collaborate

all-hazards, or increase in regional and state-level

consequence partnerships partnerships with government

focussed and engaged bodies to deliver an all-hazard

collaborative Source: Council data approach to planning, training

approach to and awareness in relation to the

emergency risks and consequences inherent

management with in emergency management

regional partners

Vibrant and prosperous economy

Deliver a quality Maintain or Achieved Almaost all actions were

service system that improve total KPI completed and key performance

delivers valued, and actions met indicators met

cansistent and Source: Council data

improved service

Well-governed council

Deliver valued, Maintain In Progress We have strived to meet our

consistent and or improve customer's changing needs

improved service community this year. This included offering

experiences for satisfaction with customers the option to make

our citizens engagement and appointments, capturing

communications customer and staff detail when
Source: Council data accessing Council buildings and

creating a drive-through service
for our vulnerable community
members

Deliver sound Maintain or Achieved Out of 137 decisions made in

governance and
leadership in
transparency,
accountability and
decision making

increase on
Governance
indicators

Source: Council data
LGPRF

Council meetings, only 11 were
made in meetings closed to
the public (as they related to
matters required by law to
remain confidential). This result
demonstrates our continued
commitment to open and
transparent decision making.
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Our performance — major initiatives and initiatives

B On target B Some progress B Not on target

Major initiative Comment

m

2

§
Prepare a 10 Year The COVID-19 crisis has impacted Council's 2019/20 surplus with
Long-Term Financial service closures, reduced income flows and additional costs. The
Plan incorporating key 2020/21 Budget (and long-term financial plan) have also taken into
strategies to address the account the potential financial impacts of COVID-19. Despite the
long-term sustainability impacts of COVID-19, Council will continue to be in a financially

of Council. sustainable position in the long-term by continuing to focus on the

Adopt Long-term key budget principles

Financial Plan and
Annual Budget by
30 June 2020

A new Complaints Policy will be introcduced with cur new
Customer Relationship Management system to provide an easier
user experience and improved customer experience. Feedback
from a recent pulse survey to 2000 customers who had a recent
transaction with Council will drive our next suite of continuous
improverent initiatives so we can continue to make it easier for
customers to interact with Council.

Through our Citizen
Connect program, we
will make it easy for
citizens to interact with
us, find out information,
request a service, provide
feedback or report an
issue.

Implement a suite

of customer focused
improvements to
increase Contact Centre
First Contact Resolution
(FCR) and improve
Customer Satisfaction
by 30 June 2020.

Initiative Comment

The public-facing Ceographic Information System has been
launched to the public. We have offered improved online functions
including the Venue and Events Management System and online
permit amendments. Online swimming pool registrations has been
launched successfully.

Support residents and
business to manage their
Council activity online
(including planning,
parking, environmental
health services, building)

Deliver increased online
capacity by 30 June
2020.

I Progress
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Services funded in our Annual Budget

We funded the below services in the Annual Budget 2019/20
to support our Well-governed Council goals.

Activity

Governance, legal and risk

L Budget
Description £000

This service supports the organisation 2274
to meet its regulatory requirements
through strong governance and risk

management.

Actual Variance

$'000

2,201

$'000

73

Councillors and
Executives

This area includes the Mayor, 2,812
Councillors, Executive Management

Team and associated support.

2,574

238

Communications

This service leads the delivery of 2,168
clear, consistent and inclusive
communication and engagement

with the community.

1,977

191

Citizen Connect

This service leads as the primary
customer interface to create and
maintain systems and processes
to connect with our citizens.

1,915

1,867

48

Transformation and
Information Technology

This service includes maintaining 7,261
information systems as well as

advancing new solutions for the

organisation and community

interaction.

7109

152

Emergency
Management

Services to support the 406
preparedness, response and

recovery in an emergency.

966

(560)

Provides organisation development
and human resource management
services including staff recruitment,
corporate training and development,
employee and industrial relations
and workplace health and safety Also
includes business planning services.

1475

1355

122

Property Services

This service manages Council 881
properties and conducts

supplementary property valuations.

350

551

Finance and Corporate
Performance

Organisational
Development

This service strategically manages 4,666
Council's financial management,

payroll, procurement tendering

and contract administration and

Council's corporate planning,

performance and continuous

improvement functions

4,555

m
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Service performance indicators

The following statement provides the results of the LGPRF
prescribed service performance indicators and measures for the well

governed Council theme.

& 2 2 3 -
Service / indicator [measurel E E = I,‘;f‘ Material variations and
(=] [=] o 3] comments
~ ~ ~ ~
I Governance

Transparency 2% 2% 9% 8%  The number of resolutions
Council resolutions made made‘ at closed‘CQun0|I
at meetings closed to the meetmg_s was snmw\gr o
oublic the prewous_},rea.rwwh a

slight reduction in the
[Number of Council overall number of items
resolutions made at presented to Council
Ordinary or Special The confidential items
meetings of Council, or related predominantly
at meetings of a Special to personnel, legal and
Committee consisting only contractual matters.
of Councillors, closed to
the public / Number of
Council resolutions made
at ordinary or special
meetings of Council or
at meetings of a Special
Committee consisting only
of Councillors 1 x 100
Consultation and 54 57 59 56  This indicator result is

engagement

Satisfaction with
community consultation
and engagement

[Community satisfaction
rating out of 100 with how
Council has performed on
community consultation
and engagement]

collected through a
Community Satisfaction
Survey managed by the
Victorian Government. This
slight decrease is on trend
and remains above state
average in this area.
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e 2 2 8
Yo f1Fot B Material variations and
Service / indicator [measurel o & 20 i
o o =] o comments
o~ o~ ™~ o~
Attendance 96% 98% 95% 959 Councillors' attendance
Councillor attendance at at Ordllnary an?d Special
, . Council meetings
Council meetings A "
remained high but was

[The sum of the number of slightly less than the
Councillors who attended previous year.
each ordinary and special
Council meeting / (Number
of ordinary and special
Council meetings) x
(Number of Councillors
elected at the last Council
general election)] x 100
Service cost S s S S The costs were slightly

3917611 40447 4261222 4043611 lower due to Councillors

Cost of governance

[Direct cost of the
governance service /
Number of Councillors
elected at the last Council
general election]

not attending the

annual Australian Local
Government Association
Conference held in
Canberra (not held

this year) and CEO
recruitment expenses not
being incurred this year.

Satisfaction 58 57 57 57

Satisfaction with Council
decisions

[Community satisfaction
rating out of 100 with how
Council has performed in
making decisions in the
interest of the community]

This indicator result is
collected through a
Community Satisfaction
Survey managed by the
Victorian Government
Community satisfaction
with Council decisions
was maintained
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Our year ahead

Major Initiatives

We will prepare a 10-Year Long-Term Financial Plan that incorporates key strategies to
address the long-term sustainability of Council. We will adopt our Long-Term Financial
Plan and Annual Budget by 30 June 2021

Through our Citizen Connect program, we will make it easy for citizens to interact with
us, find out information, request a service, provide feedback or report an issue. We will
implement a suite of customer focused improvements to increase Contact Centre First
Contact Resclution (FCR) and improve Customer Satisfaction by 30 June 2021

Other Initiatives

We will pursue excellence in our customers’ experience and digital capability by
increasing online capacity for residents and businesses to manage their Council activity
online (including planning, parking, envircnmental health services, building)

We will finalise our community-informed, long-term vision for Manningham, including
our Community Vision 2040, Liveable City Strategy 2040 and Doncaster Hill Strategy
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Well-governed Council case study:

Creating a vision for our future with Imagine
Manningham 2040

In 2019, we rolled out Imagine Manningham 2040, a project that
reached out to people who live, work and play in Manningham,
encouraging them to share their ideas on how we can shape the

future of our municipality.

The project included a series of community
workshops held at Doncaster, Templestowe
Lower and Warrandyte in October 2019.
Participants discussed the opportunities and
challenges for the future, including population
growth, congestion and climate change.

As part of the community visioning project, we
asked people their thoughts on our parks and
open spaces, transport, streetscapes and urban
design, development, community services,
local neighbourhoods and business activity.
We made sure translators were available at all
our consultation events,

As part of the project, over 200 people attended
a Community Fun Day held at MC Square, which
was held in partnership with local Chinese
community-based organisations. The event
provided an opportunity for younger residents

and families to come together and have their say.

The event included children’s storytime sessions
and family activities to enjoy while imagining
ways to help design the place to play and live in
the future.

A forum for developers and a planning
workshop for seniors also informed the plan for
Manningham's future

The event and workshops were complemented
by a survey where 281 people representing a

mix of cultural backgrounds and ages expressed
their thoughts on what works well now and how
we can support them in the future.

The consultation also included a comprehensive
social media strategy, with 67 posts across
Facebook, Twitter and Instagram reaching over
100,000 people and attracting almost 2000
clicks. The community also posted their creative
ideas about the future of their community on
the Your Say Manningham website.

The major themes identified included a desire to
keep Manningham green, support a connection
to community and place, deliver Council's core
services efficiently and effectively and build our
social capital.

This wealth of input from Manningham's people
will help shape our community vision for the
future of Manningham and will be presented in
a video-story format to accompany an emerging
Community Vision statement. The feedback
from Imagine Manningham 2040 has also
informed Council's Draft Liveable City Strategy
and Draft Doncaster Hill Strategy and is being
used to continue the engagement for our next
Council Plan and Healthy City Strategy

(Plan Manningham 2021+

For more information, visit yoursay. manningham.
vic govau/imagine-manningham-2040

i I‘M‘W
..a::m«
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5 Dant” ‘/ v
Artist: Alice Edy

e
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Our governance
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How we govern

Democratic governance

CEO expenditure 2019/20

Corporate governance

Senior officers

Employee code of conduct
Management

Workplace health and safety

Governance and management checklist

Statutory information
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How
we govern

Manningham Council is a public statutory body constituted under
the Local Government Act 2020 (the Act). Our purpose is to provide
leadership for the municipal district and our local community.

The elected Council is the formal decision-making body and
consists of nine Councillors. Our CEO heads the administration

of the organisation.

As an arganisation, we have several roles.

« taking into account the diverse needs of the
local community in decision-making

+ providing leadership by establishing strategic
objectives and monitoring achievements

« ensuring we manage rescurces in a
responsible and accountable manner

« advocating the interests of the local
community to other communities and
governments

» fostering community cohesion and
encouraging active participation in civic life.

Under the provisions of the Act, our day-to-

day operations are to be managed by the

CEO. The Councillors also delegate various

powers and responsibilities to the CEO and

staff

Governance framework

We value good governance as it ensures we
operate effectively, efficiently, impartially
and with integrity. Our good governance
principles ensure:

« we make decisions based on expert advice;
« we adhere to processes and systems; anc

» our officers implement decisions
appropriately and in good time.

146

There are two types of governance in our
operations:

« democratic: elected Councillors and the
authority they have to make decisions

» corporate: the way the organisation is run
and the framework its systems and processes
operate within

We are committed to effective and

sustainable democratic and corporate

governance as they are the keys to ensuring

that we meet our community’s priorities.

Qur community has many opportunities to
have a say in our decision-making processes,
including:

» voting for Councillors every four years

« writing to, emailing or calling Councillors

+ making submissions on our budget each year

and Council Plan every four years

participating in public forums like question

time at a Council meeting

participating in surveys, focus groups,

workshops and other consultation activities

« logging onto yoursaymanningham com au
and commenting on the plans and projects
listed there

« making submissions on major projects that
are advertised throughout the year.

Find out more: yoursaymanningham.com au

.
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Democratic
governance

Decisions

We conduct our formal decision-making
processes through the formal, reqular
meetings of cur Councillors. At these
meetings, our officers submit reparts on
matters for the Council to consider

These matters can include planning

permit applications, strategic land use and
development planning, community services,
health and local laws, road and traffic

management, and administration and finance.

To ensure the efficient day-to-day operations
of the organisation, the Council delegates
most of its decision-making powers to

staff. Specialists in their field exercise these
delegations following our policies,

We have a CEO whose role includes

« establishing and maintaining an appropriate
organisational structure;

= overseeing our day-to-day operations; and

« ensuring the organisation implements
Council decisions without delay.

Councillors review the CEO's performance

annually. Although the Mayor has no maore

authority than other Councillors, the position

is significant as a community leader and

spokesperson.

Council meetings

Ordinary meetings of Council are held at the
Manningham Civic Centre and are open to the
public. Residents, local traders and community
members are encouraged to attend. The
Council may consider some matters in a
closed meeting if the matter needs to be kept
confidential.

Changes were made to the Local Government
Act 2020 to allow Councils to conduct their
meetings remotely for a limited time. This
change was made in response to the physical
distancing restrictions imposed to combat

the spread of COVID-19 to ensure the safety of
Councillors, staff and the community. Meetings
are live-streamed on the internet and the
community can participate in the meetings
during the public question time.

Special meetings may also be called to

deal with urgent matters. We conduct all
meetings in accordance with Manningham's
Meeting Procedure Local Law The schedule of
meetings, agendas and minutes are available
at manningham vic govau

In 2019/20, there were 12 Ordinary Meetings
of Council and two Special Meetings. The
table below provides a summary of Councillor
attendance at these meetings
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s Table 9 Council meetings held 1July 2019 - 30 June 2020

I Councillor Ordinary Special
Cr Anna Chen 12 out of 12 2outof2
Cr Andrew Conlon 1 outof 12 2 outof2
Cr Sophy Galbally 9 out of 12 Toutof2
Cr Geoff Gough T out of 12 2 outof 2
Cr Dot Haynes 12 out of 12 2 outof2
Cr Michelle Kleinert (Deputy Mayor 1 July -7 Nov 2019) 1 out of 12 2 outof 2
Cr Paul Mcleish (Mayor from 7 Nov 2019) 12 out of 12 2outof2
Cr Paula Piccinini (Mayor 1 July 2019 -7 Nov 2019) 12 out of 12 2outof2
Cr Mike Zafiropoulos AM (Deputy Mayor from 7 Nov 2019) - 12 aut of 12 - 2 outof 2

Strategic briefing sessions (SBS)

In these sessions, we provide informal briefingsto  committees enable Councillors te have input

Councillors on strategic or policy matters before into projects, groups or events they have a
the matters are presented at a Council meeting. particular interest in
Committees The table below shows the committee

. . appecintments that were made by the Council
We have many internal advisory and other on 7 November 2019 These appointments are
committees. Appointments to these reviewed on an annual basis.
148
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= Table 10 2019/20 Councillor Internal Committee Appointees

I Committee Appointees

Access and Equity Advisory Committee Cr Galbally
Cr Gough

Audit and Risk Committee Cr F"\“cc‘ignini

CEO Performance Review Committee

Healthy City Advisory Committee

All Councillors

Mayor

Heritage Advisory Committee

Cr Zafiropoulos AM

Liveability, Innovation and Technology Committee
(Established 23 April 2019)

Cr Mike Zafiropoulos AM
Cr Andrew Conlon
Cr Michelle Kleinert

Manningham Arts Advisory Committee

Cr Paula Piccinini

Manningham Charitable Fund Crants Assessment Panel

Mayor
Cr Anna Chen

Municipal Emergency Management Planning Committee

Municipal Fire Management Planning Committee

Cr Paul McLeish

Cr Paul MclLeish

Open Space and Streetscape Advisory Committee

Cr Anna Chen
Cr Geoff Gough
Cr Andrew Conlon

Sustainable Design Taskforce
(Committee sunset January 2020)

Cr Dot Haynes
Cr Paul MclLeish
Cr Paula Piccinini
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= Table 11: 2019/20 Councillor External Committee Appointees

I External Committee

Australian Local CGovernment Women's Association
(ALGWA)

Appointees

Cr Michelle Kleinert

Councillors also represent Council on a number of external bodies and committees, including the below.

Eastern Affordable Housing Alliance

Cr Paula Piccinini

Eastern Region Group of Councils (ERG)

Mayor
Deputy Mayor

Eastern Transport Coalition

Metropolitan Transport Forum

Cr Paul McLeish

Cr Anna Chen

Metropolitan Waste and Resource Recovery Group

Municipal Association of Victoria

Cr Dot Haynes

Cr Mike Zafiropoulos AM
Cr Paul Mcleish — Substitute

Northern Alliance for Greenhouse Action Executive

Committee

Cr Mike Zafiropoulos AM

Victorian Local Governance Asscciation

Cr Sophy Galbally

Cr Mike Zafiropoulos AM —

Substitute

Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library
Corporation

Cr Dot Haynes
Cr Sophy Galbally

Code of conduct

Our Councillors are bound by a code of
conduct that describes the standards of
ethical and moral behaviour expected

of them. It covers relationships between
Councillors and staff, using Council resources,
and dispute resolution procedures

The Local Government Act 1989 requires
that a person elected to be a Councillor is not
capable of acting as a Counciller until they
have read and declared that they will abide
by the Councillor Code of Conduct.

Following the Council elections held in
October 2016, all Councillors declared that

they would abide by the code.

Find out more at manningham.vic.gov.au/
open-government or at the Manningham
Civic Centre, 699 Doncaster Road, Doncaster
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Conflicts of interest

Councillors are elected by our residents and
ratepayers to act in the best interests of our
community. When a Council delegates its
powers to an officer or a committee, the
committee or officer also needs to act in the
public interest

A conflict of interest is when a personal or
private interest has the potential to affect
someone’s ability to act in the public interest.
A conflict exists even if no improper act
results from it. We have a comprehensive
procedure that guides Councillors and officers
to disclose their potential conflicts of interest.

Declaration of a conflict of interest is a
standard agenda item for all Council and
committee meetings. In general, a Councillor
or officer must disclose any such interest

a specific way, and step aside from either
the decision-making process or performing
the public duty. We maintain a record of all
disclosed conflicts of interest

During 2019/20, two conflicts of interest were
declared at Council meetings These are listed
below

» 26 November 2019 Cr Andrew Conlon for
ltem 9.1 concerning Planning Application
PLN19/0086 at 58-64 Hall Road, Warrandyte
South for demclition works and the use and
development of the land (including buildings
and works) for a secondary college (Year 9
campus of Donvale Christian College) and
vegetation removal, the interest being an
indirect interest due to financial matters

25 February 2020: Cr Paula Piccinini for
Item 9.1 concerning Application for Review
P1938/2019 of Planning Application
PLN18/0598 at 21 Glendale Avenue,
Templestowe (Amended Plans for VCAT),
the interest being an indirect interest due to
close association

Assembly of Councillors

The Local Government Act 1989 defines

an Assembly of Councillors as any

scheduled meeting between five or more

of Manningham's Councillors and at least
one Council officer that considers matters
intended or likely to come before the Council
for decisions.

In addition, a meeting of an Advisory
Committee that has one or more Councillors
as members is an Assembly of Councillors. A
record of meetings that were Assemblies of
Councillors is tabled at each ordinary meeting
of Council. It discloses business items, those
Councillors and officers present, and any
declarations of conflict of interest.

Councillor allowances

Victorian Councils may set annual allowances
for their Mayor and Councillors according

to their predetermined category, based on
criteria such as the Council’s size and revenue
base. In December 2019, we were advised by
the Minister for Local Covernment following
his annual review of allowance categories that
Manningham had moved from a Category 2
Ceouncil to a Category 3 Council

This change prompted a review in Mayoral
and Councillor allowances which commenced
in February 2020. Fellowing a period of
consultation with our community, Council
resolved at its meeting on 28 April to defer
consideration of allowances until December
2020 noting the significant change in
circumstances that had arisen with the
escalation of the COVID-19 health crisis.

Current allowances for Mayors and Councillors
across Victoria increased on 1 December

2019 by 2%. This was the annual adjustment
as determined by the Minister for Local
Covernment and permitted under section
73B of the Local Covernment Act 1989

In 2019/20, the allowances, including 9 5%
superannuation, were set at:

« Mayor - $88,918
« Councillors - $28,738
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Councillor expenses

There is an annual Councillor expenses

Table 12 shows the actual expenses for
2019/20 Council also publishes its travel
register on its website in July each year

budget of $12,770 per Councillor and $14,505

for the Mayor. This budget is all inclusive

and covers conferences, training, travel, carer
responsibilities and telephones

showing interstate and overseas travel by
Councillors and Council officers

Council also publishes its travel register on its
welbsite in July each year showing interstate

Councillors are expected to operate within

and overseas travel by Councillars and Council

th‘eir indivicual bgdget. Council may also officers.
reimburse Councillors for any necessary out of
pocket expenses they incur while performing
their duties as a Councillor.
m Table12: 2019/20 Councillor Expenses
ko] T
s §
o g ™ 4
o)} oY o 8
o L B C c = H
o o T 3 E o)) _ @ o g
— = ] EE G E © O £ ~
7] £ T = &= £EE B¢ ] =
z = = o E == £s 838 < ]
© © = 0 0@ o B x i =]
Cr [= (6] (@] Lo (O=] LTt 20 o] =
Cr Anna
Chen S47846  $131097 SO $3014 S0 528926 S0 S0 $2,108.83
Cr And
rondrEw $0 $193376 S0 $75149 S0 5145 S0 $7727 $2,907.52
Conlon
Cr Sophy
Galbally $65076 S119185 SO $0 $0 s180 S0 50 $2,02261
Cr Geoff
Gough S5044  S$77277 S0 $151271 51046 S65 S0 $14771 $3,594.63
Cr Dot l l l l l -
Haynes $42096 5297428 SO S110141 S0 $152094 $3182 $86964 $6928.05
Cr Michelle I I ‘ I I .
Kleinert $95160 $29060 S0 $972 44 S100 $32272 $32490 S0 $2,962.26
Creeul S18039 $59336 S0 SU3634 S0 566891 SO S0 $1,879
MclLeish ) ' . ] _ ’ . ‘ ' _ . ) !
CrPaula
Diccinini 5818 $27827 e} $534.54 1,500 $22091 e} $5636 $2,598.26
Cr Mike
Zafiropoulos  $46713  $146735 SO $118183  5218.08 S1545 S0 $396.65 $3,746.49

AM
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CEO expenditure
2019/20

The Chief Executive Officer incurs various expenditure while
carrying out duties relating to the CEO role.

Expense categories related specifically to the CEO role are travel, conferences and training,
miscellanecus) Gifts declared are also included in this report although not an expense to
Council. The CEO is required to be transparent in the use of Council resources as per the
Employee Code of Conduct.

Chief Food and  Conferences Gifts ; Total Expenses
Executive Travel Beverage and Training declared Miscellaneous 2019/20
Andrew .

Day $330.40 516345 5140 5225 S0 $633

MNote: All costs are CST exclusive

Gifts Declared - “relates to any gifts that

) ) o exceed the token gift threshold (S50) that the

» Travel - covers costs associated with assisting CEO is required to declare as per the Token
the CEO in meeting transport costs incurred Gift Policy. This category is not added to the

whilst attending meetings, functions and total expenses as it is a declaration not a cost
conferences. This includes taxi services, to Council.

Uber services, car parking fees, airfares,
accommodation costs etc.

Expense categories

« Miscellanecus - relates to any other costs

. associated with the CEO role not covered by
+ Food and Beverage - covers costs associated the categories above.

with food or beverages that directly relate to
the CEO role within a professional context

+ Conferences and Training - covers registration
fees associated with attendance by the CEO
at local conferences, functions, seminars
and one-off or short-term training courses
Meeting such as these are normally held
by local government related organisations,
professional bodies and institutions,
educational institutions and private sector
providers on areas and events which impact
on the role of the CEOC and the City in general
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Corporate
governance

Our CEO is our only member of staff directly appointed by and
responsible to our Councillors. Our CEO implements decisions made
by our Councillors, ensures the organisation achieves its Council
Plan objectives, and manages its day to day operations. Our CEQO's
performance is reviewed annually by the Councillors.

Councillors can delegate authority to our These powers are reviewed regularly,
CEOC to make certain decisions under including by each newly elected Council.
particular circumstances that are defined in
Instruments of Delegation and in accordance
with any adopted policies.

Find out more at manningham.vic.gov.au/
public-registers-and-information

Our CEO's delegations are broad and
enabling They have further delegated powers
to officers who carry cut various functions
daily
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Senior
officers

Our senior officers are our most senior employees: the CEO, our
officers with management responsibilities that report directly to
the CEO, or any other employee whose total annual remuneration
exceeds $151,000.

Senior officers are usually employed under In May 2012, Council resolved to disclose in
contracts of up to 5 years and have individual our Annual Report the total remuneration of
performance plans These performance plans  our five highest remunerated employees. This

are reviewed annually, in accordance with disclosure includes contract duration and
section 97A(2) of the Local Government Act salary package
1989.

= Table 13: Remuneration of our highest remunerated senior officers

- Date commenced Current contract Total
I e 2 e position expires remuneration
gggrew Day 17 September 2018 16 September 2023 $320,000

Angelo Kourambas

) R ) ) 19 February 2018 19 February 2023 285600
Director City Planning and Community Y Y s

Philip Lee

Director Shared Services 16 December 2013 16 December 2023 $276,382

Rachelle Quattrocchi

. ; \ 30 March 2020 29 March 2025 $270,000
Director City Services

Andrew McMaster
Corporate Counsel and Group Manager 25 February 2019 10 June 2022 $215250
Governance and Risk

Kerryn Paterson
Group Manager People and 25 February 2019 15 August 2021 $215,250
Commmunications
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Employee code

of conduct

Our Code of Conduct includes standards of behaviour and
expectations for how our employees behave as representatives

of Manningham.

Our employee Code of Conduct contains 31
elements structured around our values and
aligned to the requirements of section 95 of
the Local Government Act 1989.

Following a refresh of our Code of Conduct,
active embedding activities have a key focus
throughout 2019/20 to ensure organisational
wide awareness and understanding of the
Code. Operational embedding measures have
included

+ leadership and team training

+ behavioural objective alignment within
our Performance and Development Plan
templates {through our values)

» development and implementation of a
custom-built eLearning module (rolled out to
all staff and assigned as part of our ongoing
induction and on-boarding framework)

Our Code is issued to all new staff on

their commencement and applies to all
employees, volunteers, students, contractors,
subcontractors and consultants
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Management

We have put into action some statutory and better practice
elements to strengthen our management framework and foster

better decision making.

The Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2014 require us

to assess our performance against the
prescribed governance and management
checklist. Qur report against this checklist for
this year is on page 172

Essential components of our management
framework are our audit committee, internal
audit, external audit, and risk management.
Details on these components are provided
below

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee is an
advisory committee that was established
in accordance with section 139(2) of the
Local Government Act 1989 It helps us
fulfil our responsibilities by overseeing our
financial and performance reporting, risk
management, systems of internal controls,
regulatory compliance and corporate
governance

Assurance activities primarily encompass
monitoring external audit and internal audit
In 2020, the Committee also monitored the
implementation of the Business Continuity
Crisis Response to COVID-19.

The committee operates under the Audit
and Risk Committee Charter and the
Chairperson reports to Councillors twice per
year. Committee membership consists of five
people, three external members and two
Councillors.

The office of Chairperson is held by an
independent member who is elected
annually by the committee members. The
committee chair receives $10,500 each year
in remuneration for their role and general
committee members receive $7,250.

The committee meets five times per year, with
the fifth meeting dedicated to reviewing the
annual financial and performance statements
The Victorian Auditor-General's agent

attends several of the meetings to report

on any matters of significance in relation to
the financial and performance statements,
progress and observations of external audits
and accounting standard changes

The internal auditors attend every meeting
and regular management attendees include,
the CEO, Corporate Counsel and Group
Manager Governance and Risk, Director
Shared Services, CFO and Strategic Risk and
Assurance Advisor.
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We record a comprehensive compliance
attestation process involving a series of
questions directed to the CEQ, Internal and
External Auditors at every meeting

As part of our commitment te propriety and
good governance, the chair of the Audit and
Risk Committee may meet privately with
Councillors, External and Internal Auditor,
without members of management being
present

In January 2020, the committee mourned
the loss of independent member, Alan
Fotheringham who had served on the
committee for a period of nine years
including several years as Chairperson

= Table 14: Audit and Risk Committee members

I Independent Councillors

Ms Theresa Glab (chair)  Cr Paula Piccinini

Cr Michelle

Mr Andrew Dix ‘
Kleinert

Vacant

Internal audit

Internal auditing provides an independent
and objective review and advisory service,
It assesses whether the financial and
operational controls we use are operating
efficiently, effectively and ethically. Pitcher
Partners performed the internal audit.

The internal audit process is a systematic,
disciplined approach that supports us to
improve our risk management, control and
governance processes.

Qur CEO works with our Audit and Risk
Committee and internal auditor to develop
our annual audit plan. The plan must reflect
our strategic and operational risk exposure
and include the compliance and performance
audits we do throughout the year

In 2019/20, we reviewed

« procurement (including data analysis)

« developer contributions

» budgeting and forecasting

« stakeholder and community engagement

« occupational health and safety management

= business continuity management and
disaster recovery.

External audit

Each year we are externally audited by the
Victarian Auditor-General's Office (VAGO).
For the 2019/20 financial year, our financial
and perfarmance statements were audited
by a VAGO representative as required by
the Audit Act 1994. These statements are
provided in this Annual Report on page
188 and page 246.
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Fraud and corruption control

We are the custodian of significant public
funds and assets. The community must be
confident that these public funds and assets
are protected from fraud.

Our integrity framework includes elements
of risk management, management and
commitment, deterrent, prevention and
detection measures, and staff education and
training

Key activities in our integrity framework
include our fraud and corruption risk
assessment, staff e-learning training modules,
compliance program, fraud and corruption
assurance map. Fraud and Corruption

Policy and Control Plan, and Public Interest
Disclosure Procedures

The Fraud and Corruption Policy sets our
specific guidelines and responsibilities
regarding the appropriate actions that must
be followed for the investigation of fraud and
corruption and other similar irregularities

The plan documents our approach to
controlling fraud and corruption at both
strategic and operational levels. Our policy
and plan were reviewed and updated in 2019.

Business Continuity Management -
COVID-19 crisis response and recovery

On 13 March 2020 the Chief Executive Officer
activated the Crisis Management Team (CMT)
in response to the imminent disruption

to Council operations emerging with the
Coronavirus COVID-19.

This process followed the established Business
Management Plan - Crisis Response and
Recovery Plan, which had been practised with
scenario incidents and training as recently as
December 2019,

To maintain delivery of critical services

and implementation of operational sub
plans, the Committee operates under a
formal protocol for response and recovery
including agendas and minutes, definition

of objectives, coordination of internal and
external communication and regular analysis
of situational assessments. The Committee
also oversees the delivery of the Manningham
Pandemic Plan and Regional Pandemic Plan.

All decision making by the Committee has
been informed by the Commonwealth and
State Government emergency directives,
regulation, guidelines and communications
This partnership with all levels of government
aims to protect community and staff, respond
to the provision of essential services and
support the wellbeing of the Manningham
community

The CEO and CMT Leader regularly report

to Councillors and the Audit and Risk
Committee. In April 2020, Council's Internal
Auditor proceeded with a scheduled

internal audit of the Business Continuity
Management Plan and IT Disaster Response
Plan, resulting in some valuable independent
observations and continuous improvement
recommendations.
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Risk management

Risk management is the identification,
assessment, evaluation and treatment

of unwanted risk. Cur risk management
framework combines organisational systems,
procedures, culture and assurance activities to
improve arganisational resilience and protect
value as we pursue the successful delivery of
Council's strategies and objectives

We are continuously implementing,
improving and monitaring our enterprise risk
management system to build the capacity
of Council in managing operational and
strategic risks.

The key elements of our risk management
and assurance framework are

» risk management strategy

+ risk management policy

« risk management assessment tool

« risk register

» risk reporting (Risk Management Committee,
independent Audit and Risk Committee and
Council)

« risk management incident and near-miss
procedure

« fraud and corruption control plan
« risk management committee

» audit and risk committee; and

« assurance map - strategic risks.

The role of the Executive Risk Committee

is vital to advance our cultural maturity to
reach a risk organisation. The CEO chairs
this executive committee with discussion
and outcomes of the committee minuted
and formally included in the Audit and Risk
Committee agenda as a standing item

Some of the activities of the Executive Risk
Committee this year include six-monthly
waorkshopping of the Strategic Risk Register,
monitoring internal audit reports, receiving
and analysing incident reports and treatment
plans, developing and monitoring the Annual
Compliance Plan, reviewing the fraud and
corruption risk register, receiving VACO
industry performance reports, insurance and
claims management reports etc. The risk
management process is being reviewed and
made consistent with AS/NZS ISO 310002018
and is illustrated in Figure 10
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= Figure 10: Manningham's risk management process

Step 1: Identify Strategic
and Operational Risks

« Council Plan's goals

- Service Unit Plan’s actions
- Statutory responsibilities

Incident
Near Misses

Risk
Identification

. and Rating
Incident
Reporting Operational
Risks

Strategic Risks

Step 2: Evaluate Controls
- Identify/document controls
- Assess effectiveness

Step 3: Analyse
Residual Risks
- Likelihood

- Consequence

Risk

Register

Risk
Reporting

Controls and
Treatments

Step 6: Monitor Risks

- Monitor treatments/controls
- Continually review risks

- Report on Risks

Step 5: Treat Risks
- Develop treatment plans
- Assign responsibility and timeframes

Step 4: Risk Assessment

- Determine residual risk
rating (map likelihood and
consequence)

- Record in risk register
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Compliance and assurance The compliance program is a fundamental
element of our three lines of defence
assurance model for risk management:
management controls, risk management and
compliance, internal audit and external audit.
See the Assurance model below

Our compliance program tests and
continuously improves Manningham's
system controls. In 2018/20, six reviews were
conducted.

Quarterly monitoring of the plan and
recommendations arising from reviews
is the responsibility of the Executive Risk
Committee.

A comprehensive Assurance Map was
developed to document and review our
assurance activity of control systems
associated with Council's strategic risks.
It assists with the annual planning of the
internal audit and compliance programs.

» Figure 11: Assurance: Three Lines of Defence

First Line of Second Line of Third Line of
Defence Defence Defence

Management Risk Management Internal Audit and
Controls Compliance External Audit
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Workplace
health and safety

We are coming to the last year of our four-year Workplace Health
and Safety (WHS) strategy 2017 - 2021 and actions integrated into
the PCS business plan. The following shows achievements of year 3,
against the key 3 strategic elements.

Skilled Leaders and Teams:

We strengthened our workplace health and safety program through a planned and
agile education and communications program

Strategy
element 1

Online WHS elLearning was reviewed for roll out to all staff and managers before
end of 2020

A Contemporary and Embedded WHS Management System

We initiated our new workplace health and safety system to better support
our staff to report hazards and incidents and access policy, procedures and
performance data. We aim to complete this rollout in 2020/21.

>,N
ot
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@

An internal audit of our workplace health and safety program highlighted our
positive culture when it comes to safe working, reporting and management

WHS Indicators - Driving Continuous Improvement

Via our strategic and operational WHS committees bi monthly and biannual
performance reporting was reviewed including corrective action plans, audits and
inspection result.

Strategy
element 3

WHS performance WorkCover claims have increased again this

‘ financial year. This includes two claims where
Over the past years our strategy has driven a liability is in dispute. However there continues
steady increase in proactive reporting hazards, 4 pe 3 downward trend for injuries and
incidents and injuries. claims wheh combined

This increase when considered with the Figure 12 shows our proactive reporting of

reduction in injuries, this is a positive indicator  icidents and hazards over the past 4 years.
of a developed safety culture and proactive

safety management.
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= Figure 12: Total Reports of Hazard, Incidents, Injuries and Lost Time Injuries
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» Figure 13: Incidents and hazards vs injuries and claims
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= Figure 14 Number of WorkCover claims
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The number of standard claims has remained consistent for the last few years. These are the
claims that contribute the most towards the cost of Councils WorkCover Premium.

s Figure 15 - Lost day per claim
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This chart shows the average number of days lost per claim. NOTE: Rejected claims currently in
dispute are not included in this chart.
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s Figure 16: Average cost per WorkCover claim
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Qur WorkCover premium performance is better than last year when compared to remuneration.

= Figure 17 Premium rate compared to industry (S premium per S100 wages)
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The average cost per WorkCover claim has continued to reduce, indicating proactive WorkCover
and return to work management.
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s Figure 18. Average cost per WorkCover claim

$1,000,000

$895,491

$900,000
$800,000

$868,054

$700,000 5656522

$640,261

$600,000

$459,791

$500,000
$400,000

$300,000

$200,000
$100,000

SO

201617

201718

201819

2019/2020 2020/2021

Our WorkCover premium performance is better than last year. The average impact of a claim is
currently $34,600. Actual costs are an average of $10.400 per claim. Both are less than this time

last year (S35,029 & $12,101 respectively)

Asset Management

We are responsible for infrastructure assets,
such as buildings, roads, bridges, drainage,
parks and recreational facilities. They
represent a significant investment made over
many generations to ensure that we manage
our assets and the services that we deliver
economically and sustainably

The replacement value of these assets
{including land and fixed assets) is estimated
at just over $2.1 billion. We spend, on average,
around $16 million per year on refurbishing
and renewing infrastructure assets.

Sound and sustainable asset management
is essential to enable us to provide necessary
services and facilities, manage and maintain
community assets, and meet legislative,
regulatory and reporting requirements.

Our approach to asset management forms
part of a framework This framework includes
best practice asset management, the
implementation of corporate information
systems for data management, reporting and

works planning, a planned and fully-funded
approach to timely infrastructure renewal,
and the consideration of lifecycle costing
for capital investment decisions for new or
enhanced infrastructure

Several key documents form part of

this framewark. These include our Asset
Management Policy and Asset Management
Strategy, which provide direction and
guidance for the ongoing management

of our assets. The framework also defines
the principles and methodalogy on which
our long-term Capital Works Program is
developed.

Our Capital Works Program prioritises funding
for the renewal and refurbishment of existing
assets, over the creation of new assets.

This approach ensures that Manningham's
existing infrastructure facilitates levels of
service that are affordable and continue to
meet community expectations, changes in
standards and growth of the city
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National Asset Management
Assessment Framework (NAMAF)

The National Asset Management Assessment
Framework (NAMAF) is a methodology that
Councils can use to assess how they are
performing with respect to the management
of their assets

= Table 15: 2019/20 NAMAF scorecard

I Key asset management elements

Strategic planning

The framework 11 key assessment elements

to evaluate asset management performance.

Manningham's score has been consistently

high over the past 7 years. A summary of our
performance against the NAMAF scorecard is

outlined in the table below

Outer metropolitan
average score

Excellence (1009%)

Manningham

Excellence (100%)

Annual Budget

Excellence (1009%)

Excellence (1009%)

Annual report

Asset management policy

Excellence (1009%)

Excellence (1009%)

Excellence (1009%)

Excellence (100%)

Asset management strategy

Excellence (1009%)

Excellence (1009%)

Asset management plans

Excellence (909%)

Excellence (1009%4)

Governance and management

Levels of service

Excellence {959%)

Excellence {75%)

Excellence (1009%)

Excellence (1009%5)

Data and systems

Excellence (95%)

Excellence (979¢)

Skills and processes

Evaluation

Excellence (97%)

Excellence (90%)

Excellence (989%)

Excellence (1009%)

The results show that we have performed well
in asset management, having reached ‘core’
maturity level in all of the critical elements,
and are operating at or above other outer
metropclitan Councils.

We will continue to implement the Step
Program in 2020/21

Grants and Funding

We thank the Victorian and Australian
Government in supporting us to deliver

services and ensure our residents experience

a safe, vibrant, healthy liveable community.

For a break down our major grants received

please refer to note 3.4 of our Financial

Report.
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Governance and
Mmanagement checklist

Below are the results of Manningham’s assessment against the
governance and management checklist as prescribed by the LGPRF.

I Governance and management items

Community engagement policy (policy
outlining Council's ccmmitment to
engaging with the community on matters
of public interest)

Assessment

Operational: Date of operation for policy:
4 June 2019.

Community engagement guidelines
(guidelines to assist staff to determine
when and how to engage with the
community)

Operational: Date of operation for
guidelines: 4 June 2019.

Procurement policy (policy under section
186A of the Local Government Act 1989
outlining the matters, practices and
procedures that will apply to all purchases
of goods, services and works)

Approved: Prepared and approved in
accordance with section 186A of the Local
Government Act. Date of approval: 28 July
2020.

Business continuity plan (plan setting out
the actions that will be taken to ensure
that key services continue to operate in
the event of a disaster)

Operational: Date of operation of
current plan 13 March 2020.

Disaster recovery plan (plan setting out
the actions that will be undertaken to
recover and restore business capability in
the event of a disaster)

Strategic Resource Plan (plan under section
126 of the Act outlining the financial and
non-financial resources required for at least
the next four financial years)

Operaticnal: Date of operation of
current plan 16 March 2020

Adopted: Plan adopted in accordance
with section 126 of the Act. Date of
Adoption: 25 June 2019

Annual budget (plan under section 130
of the Act setting out the services to be
provided and initiatives to be undertaken
over the next 12 months and the funding
and other resources required)

Adopted: Budget adopted in accordance
with section 130 of the Act. Date of
Adoption: 25 June 2019

Asset management plans (plans that set
out the asset maintenance and renewal
needs for key infrastructure asset classes
for at least the next 10 years)

Operational: Drainage Management Plan

31 July 2007, Roads Management 28 August
2012, Building Management Plan 28 August
2012, Parks Management Plan 28 August 2012.
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Rating strategy (strategy setting out the
rating structure of Council to levy rates and
charges)

Operational: Date of operation of current
strategy: 25 June 2019.

Risk policy (palicy outlining Council's
commitment and approach to minimising
the risks to Council's operations)

Operational: Date of operation of policy:
25 July 2017

Fraud policy (policy outlining Council's
commitment and approach to minimising
the risk of fraud)

Operational: Date of operation of current
policy: 10 December 2019

Municipal Emergency Management Plan
{plan under section 20 of the Emergency
Management Act 1986 for emergency
prevention, response and recovery)

Prepared and maintained in accordance
with section 20 (1) of the Emergency
Management Act 1986

Date of preparation: 15 March 2016.

Risk management framework (framewaork
outlining Council's approach to managing
risks to the Council's operations)

Operational- Date of operation of current
framework 25 July 2017.

Audit Committee (advisory committee of
Council under section 139 of the Act whose
role is to oversee the integrity of Council's
financial reporting, processes to manage
risks to the Council's operations and for
compliance with applicable legal, ethical
and regulatory requirements)

Established: Established in accordance
with 139 of the Act.

Date of establishment 13 January 1998.

Internal audit (independent accounting
professionals engaged by the Council to
provide analysis and recommendations
aimed at improving Council's governance,
risk and management controls)

Internal Audit date of engagement of
current provider. 20 September 2019,

Performance reporting framework

{a set of indicators measuring financial
and non-financial performance, including
the performance indicators referred to in
section 131 of the Act)

Council Plan reporting (report reviewing
the performance of the Council against
the Council Plan, including the results in
relation to the strategic indicators, for the
first six months of the financial year)

Operational- Date of operation of current
framework 27 June 2017.

Reported: Current report provided
13 March 2020

Financial reporting (quarterly statements
to Council under section 138 of the

Act comparing budgeted revenue and
expenditure with actual revenue and
expenditure)

Presented: Quarterly statements
presented to Council in accordance with
section 138(1) of the Act:

« Q126 November 2019

» Q225 February 2020

« Q326 May 2020

« Q4 25 August 2020.
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Risk reporting (six-monthly reports of
strategic risks to Council's operations, their
likelihood and consequences of occurring
and risk minimisation strategies)

Performance reparting (six-monthly
reports of indicators measuring the
results against financial and non-financial
performance, including performance
indicators referred to in section 131 of the
Act)

Annual Report (Annual Report under
sections 131,132 and 133 of the Act to
the community containing a report
of operations and audited financial
performance statements)

Reported: Report prepared and presented
on 26 November 2019 and 13 March 2020.

Repaorted: Reports prepared and presented
on 13 March and the 4 September 2020.

Considered: Annual report considered at
a meeting of Council in accordance with
section 134 of the Act

Date of consideration 17 September 2019.

Councillor Code of Conduct (Cede under
section 76C of the Act setfing out the
conduct principles and the dispute
resolution processes to be followed by
Councillors)

Reviewed: Reviewed in accordance with
section 76C of the Act. Date reviewed:
21 February 2017.

Delegations (a document setting out the
powers, duties and functions of Council
and the Chief Executive Officer that have
been delegated to members of staff)

Reviewed: Reviewed in accordance with
section 98 (6) of the Act on the 8 April, 17
September 2019 and 24 March 2020. CEO
delegations to staff: 8 April 2019 Council
delegations to staff: 17 September 2019
Council delegations to CEOQ: 24 March 2020.

Meeting procedures (a local law governing
the conduct of meetings of Council and
special committees)

Enacted:. Meeting procedures local law
made in accordance with section 91 (1) of
the Act. Date local law made: 12 December

2017

| certify that this information presents fairly the status of Manningham’s governance and
management arrangements.

M Pt
Andrew Day Paul McLeish

Chief Executive Officer Mayor

15 September 2020 15 September 2020
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Statutory
information

The following information is provided in accordance with legislative
and other requirements applying to Manningham.

Documents available for public
inspection

In accordance with regulation 12 of the Local
Covernment (General) Regulations 2015,
below is a list of the documents that you can
request to inspect at the Manningham Civic
Centre at 699 Doncaster Road, Doncaster,
from 8.00am to 5.00pm, Monday to Friday.

+ Details of overseas or interstate travel (with
the exception of interstate travel by land for
less than three days) undertaken in an official
capacity by Councillors or any member of our
staff in the previous 12 months,

+ Agendas for and minutes of meetings of
Crdinary and Special Council Meetings
held in the previous 12 months, excluding
confidential information considered at a
meeting closed to the public.

« Minutes of meetings of any Special

Committees established under section 86 of

the Local Covernment Act 1989, excluding

confidential information considered at a

meeting closed to the public.

Register of delegations kept in accordance

with the Local Government Act 1989

Register of all leases involving land that
Manningham entered into as lessor.

Register of Authorised Officers.

.

« List of grants and donations Manningham
made during the financial year

» An Operating Statement, a Statement of
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Financial Position and notes to the Financial
Statements.

« A copy of election campaign donation
returns received following the maost recent
Manningham elections.

Find out more at manningham vic gov.au/

public-registers-and-information

Best value

In line with the Local Covernment Act 1989,
Manningham Council operates under the
principles of best value which are

« quality and cost standards

« responsiveness to community needs
« accessibility

« continuous improvement

« community consultation

« reporting to our community.

We have a multi-pronged approach to
capturing best value across our activities.
Firstly, as part of aur business-as-usual
operations, we plan and capture all best value
activity by reporting in relation to the best
value principles in reports, business cases

and capital works proposal presented to the
EMT and Councillors. Best value principles
are considered in business planning, and
Council's organisation-wide approach to risk
management, compliance reviews and audits.
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Secondly, we continue to implement a
comprehensive transformation program to
make it easier for our customers to interact
with Council Projects completed as part of
this program in 2019/20 include:

« the digitisation of many of our service
application and processes, making it easier
for our customers and community to engage
and deal with us for matters including
further planning permit applications, parking
permits, and immunisation appointments

« a new asset management sclution enabling
better identification of assets most in need of
future investment

« an enterprise project management
solution to bring efficiencies and improved
governance to our project delivery

« a new fleet management solution, facilitating
improved management and security of our
fleet, plant and equipment resources

« anew solution for managing cur community
venues, including streamlining of venues
invoicing and customer gueries, and an
internal pilot of online venue bookings as a
precursor to a community launch.

These improvements complement previous

projects delivered in the program which

include:

« technology refresh project replacing
outdated desktop computers with more
efficient technology to improve accessibility

« mapped business processes and updated
software to comply with new infringement
reforms legislation

+ print optimisation

= implementation of InfeCouncil, a specialised
software package for local governments

transformation of our records management
structure and processes

risk and audit management systems

adoption of accounts payable automation
livestreaming Council meetings on Facebook

+ a new and revised planning register enabling
our community to view planning permit
documents and make submissions anline
the ability to lodge and pay for planning
permit applications, drainage applications,
and road closure applications online

Public Interest Disclosures (formerly
Protected Disclosure Procedures)

The Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012
became law in Victoria in February 2015 to
encourage and facilitate the disclosure of any
improper conduct by Councillors or Council
officers, and to protect pecple making
disclosures from any reprisals they may
experience in response to their actions.

Manningham endorsed a revised Public
Interest Disclosures Procedure in December
to supplement the provisions of the Act

and further facilitate the disclosure of any
improper conduct by Councillors and Council
officers. We have a Public Interest Disclosures
Coordinator whose role is to receive and
consider all disclosures about improper
conduct and detrimental action as defined
by the Act. A copy of the Public Interest
Disclosures Procedure is available on our
website.

In 2019/20, Manningham did not refer

any public interest disclosures to the
Independent Broad-Based Anti-Corruption
Commission (IBAC).

Find out more at manningham vic.gov.au/
legislation
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Carers recognition

In accordance with the Carers Recognition
Act 2012, Manningham reports annually on
our care measurement obligations under
section 11 of this Act.

We have taken all practicable measures to
comply with the responsibilities outlined
in the Act. We have continued to promote
the principles of the Act to pecple in care
relationships and the wider community to
whom we provide services by

« displaying posters in our customer service
reception at our Aged and Disability Support
Services unit at Manningham Civic Centre

» providing information on our website for
carers, including information about support
groups for carers manningham vic gov au/
ageing-well-carers

« recognising carers in our Community Care
Program guidelines for Commonwealth
Home Support Programme

« providing respite care support, including
in-home and community based, regular and
occasional

« providing free attendance for carers
accompanying care recipients to selected
seniors events

We have also taken all practicable measures
to ensure our staff, agents and volunteers
are aware of the principles of and their
obligations under the Act by providing
information on the care relationship by:

« referring to the Act in our Discrimination,
Harassment and Bullying Policy

« including carer's leave in the current
Manningham City Council Enterprise
Agreement 7, 2017.

174

We have taken all practicable measures to
review and modify policies, procedures and
supports to include recognition of the carer
relationship. We have provided services and
resources that recognise and support the care
relationship include:

« regular and occasional respite care support:
in home and community based

« the Aguarena Aguatic and Leisure Centre
continued to accept the Carer Card, giving
carers concession aquatics entry and
membership rates. The Companion Card
gives carers free entry while working in their
role as a carer

Contracts

During 2019/20 there were no contracts
issued in contravention of section 186 of
the Local Covernment Act 1989,

Disability Action Plan

In 2019, we integrated our Disability Action
Plan into our Healthy City Acticn Plan.

In accordance with section 38 of the
Disability Act 2006, Manningham has met
its legislative requirements through the
following actions:

« InJune 2020, Council endorsed the
development of a stand-alone Disability
Advisory Committee This committee will be
made up of people with lived experience
of disability. The committee’s purpose is
to provide advice to Council on how to
understand and respond to the needs of
people with disability. By providing advice
pertaining to Council peolicies and practices,
the Disability Advisory Committee will
strengthen the voice of people with disability,
build their capacity, and support the
community to be accessible and inclusive for
all Manningham residents
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We held bi-monthly Access and Equity
Advisory Committee meetings The
Committee provides advice on local issues,
service delivery, and planning for improved
access, equity and inclusion within Council
and the wider community.

In February 2020, Council held a State
Disability Plan community consultation. This
provided an opportunity for our community
to give input on how they wanted the
Victorian Government to better support and
include people with disability.

The Building Equitable Employment (BEE)
Network continues to meet regularly, bringing
together individuals and organisations
working towards inclusive employment

for people with disability. In May 2020,
Council held a strategic planning meeting to
determine the direction of the BEE network
The outcomes from that session were
focused cn the representative organisations
partnering to create meaningful outcomes
for the community and to listen more closely
to the voices of job seekers with disability
themselves.

20 accessibility audits were conducted of
Council-owned facilities and individual
building reports prepared.

Accessibility and inclusion tools were applied
to a number of Council activities including:
consultation with members of the Access
and Equity Advisory Committee to inform the
redevelopment of Council’s customer service
area and development of key municipal
parks including Ruffey Lake and Hepburn
Park; provision of a Marveloo Toilet at
Council's annual Christmas Carols event; and
establishment of an Inclusive Manningham
e-bulletin.

Freedom of Information

The Freedom of Information Act 1982

[FOI Act) gives our community a right to
access certain Council documents. Freedom
of Information (FOI) requests must be

made in writing and accompanied by an
application fee

Under the legislation Council must decide
within 30 days whether to provide the
information, in whole or in part, or to deny
access. This timeframe may be extended for
mandatory third party consultation or by
agreement with the applicant

In 2019/20, we received 36 valid FOI requests.
The cutcomes for those requests were as
follows

« full access was granted for eleven requests

« partial access was granted for six requests

« access was refused in full for three requests

+ no documents were found or did not exist
for four requests

« documents were provided outside the FOI
Act for four requests

« one request was withdrawn by the applicant

« three requests were not yet finalised as of 30
June 2020.

An additional 13 FOI applications were
received in 2019/20, but were not processed
as valid requests as they did not comply with
the requirements outlined under section 17 of
the FOI Act

Reasons include non-payment of the
application fee or no response from
applicants after seeking clarification.
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There were two requests to the Office of

the Victorian Information Commissioner for

external review of access decisions we made
in 2019/20. Both reviews were withdrawn by
the applicant.

There were no applications for review lodged
with VCAT relating to requests we processed
in 2019/20.

All enquiries relating to accessing
documents under the FOI Act should be
direct to our FOI Officer on 03 9840 9333
or FOl@manningham vic govau.

Find out more at manningham.vic.gov.au/
legislation

Information privacy

We are committed to protecting the personal
privacy of our residents and ratepayers. We
only collect, use or disclose personal or health
information where it is necessary to perform
our functions or where required by law.

We work hard to fully comply with cur
obligations under the Privacy and Data
Protection Act 2014 and the Health Records
Act 2001

The complaints we received under these
Acts in 2019/20 are outlined below

« Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 one
complaint was received.

« Health Records Act 2001 no complaints
were received.

The one privacy complaint received in

2019/20 was referred to the Office of Victorian

Information for external review and was

resolved by agreement between all parties

involved.

Find out more at manningham.vic.govau/
privacy
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Our Healthy City Strategy 2017-2021

Every Victoria Local Government is required
under the Public Health and Wellbeing Act
2008 to prepare a Municipal Public Health
and Wellbeing Plan (MPHWP) within 12
months of a Council Election. The MPHWP
must consider:

+ state health pricrities outlined within the
Victorian Public Health and Wellbeing Plan;

« local health status and determinants; and

« partnership opportunities with the
community and agencies.

We developed our MPHWP, known as the
Healthy City Strategy in Manningham, using
an integrated planning approach with the
Council Plan 2017-2021 We implement the
strategy using our annual Healthy City Action
Plan. Our key achievements in 2019/2020
were:

« delivery of Cur Watch training to over 100
staff to explore how gender inequality drives
violence against women, the role workplaces
have in preventing violence and how
proemoting gender equality is good for cur
organisation

+ we were one of 10 Victorian Councils selected
to participate in the Gender Equality Pilot
Implementation Project

+ we established a Reconciliation Action
Plan Working Group, with representatives
from Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
communities, community organisations and
our staff

« we developed cur Manningham Positive
Ageing Alliance Action Plan

« we partnered with the Community
Connectedness Working Croup to deliver two

community-led events with approximately
160 attendees
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we delivered the Far Flung: Connecting
Intergenerational Families project. Following
the project, 73% of participants said they felt
more connected to their community and
family. Over 1100 people visited the Far Flung
exhibition

= we conducted our Doncaster Hill Occupancy
Survey involving six apartments to better
understand community experiences and
inform Council strategies

we facilitated our Youth Forum and 12 youth
focus groups to capture the voices of over 140
young people. This helps us better understand
the issues and challenges facing young
people who live, work, play or are connected
to Manningham

« 13 Manningham schools participated in the
Walk to School program in 2019

« we supported our early year's centres to
implement the Free to Be Me project,
focussed on reducing gender stereotypes
in the early years. Two early years centres in
Manningham have signed up to the Free to be
Me project

= we held 10 community emergency planning
sessions

« we ran two staff workshops to inform the
development of a response to loneliness in
our community.

Domestic Animal Management Plan

In accordance with the Domestic Animals
Act 1994, we prepare a Domestic Animal
Management Plan every four years. We
evaluate how well we have implemented the
plan in our Annual Report

After extensive community consultation,

our Domestic Animal Management Plan
2017-2021 was approved and adopted by our
Councillors on 26 September 2017.

Table 16 shows our performance this year
against the plan

= Table 16: 2019/20 performance against the Domestic Animal Management Plan

I Topic

Actions in plan

Total Complete To be completed

Registration/ldentification 23 21 2
Nuisance complaints 29 24 5
Dog Attacks 13 13 0
Declared Dogs 10 9 1
Overpopulation Euthanasia rates 15 7 8
Domestic Animal Businesses 10 9 1
Staff Training 13 13 o]
Other matters

10 7
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Community Local Law

We adopted Manningham's Community
Local Law on 30 April 2013, This law replaced
Manningham's General, Public Health and
Doncaster Hill Local Laws. The preparation,
content and format of the Community Local
Law is in accordance with the Ministerial
Cuidelines. It also complies with National
Competition Policy requirements and is
compatible and consistent with the Victorian
Charter of Human Rights

Road Management Act — Ministerial
Directions

In accordance with section 22 of the Road
Management Act 2004, Manningham must
publish a copy or summary of any ministerial
directions in our Annual Report.

Council did not receive ministerial directions
during the 2019/20 year

Infrastructure and development
contributions

In accordance with section 46GM and 46QD
of the Planning and Environment Act 1957,
we must provide a report to the Minister

for Planning on our infrastructure and
development contributions, including levies
and works in kind during 2019/20.

Tables 17 to 19 outline infrastructure and
development contributions for 2019/20.

178

Development Contributions Plan (DCP)

s Table 17- Total DCP levies received in
2019/20

Levies received in
2019/20 financial year $

DCP name (year
approved)

Doncaster Hill
Development

Contributions Plan $955.52235
2005
Total $955,322.35

s Table 18 DCP land, works, services or
facilities accepted in-kind in 2019/20

o o
L")
c 3 3

a o 2 g
A B

DCP name §- —2-§ £ -E-

(Year approved) a oo 2 o

Doncaster Hill

Development NIL

Contributions Plan

2005

Total NIL
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» Table 19: Land, works, services or facilities delivered in 2019/20 from DCP levies collected

g - “ 59
c 5 o %]
§ g — il = o _g
g 8 e g .g g- . 5
33 s & 5 8 £ i
£ 88 =% < &%
Hepbu_rn Road p_ 2005 - i 40.630 - 40,630 n
Extension TOOS ' ’ progress
Tram Road/
Merlin DI_ n
Street traffic TO08 2005 - 1onrs e progress
improvements

179

Item 5.1 Attachment 1 Page 184



COUNCIL AGENDA 13 OCTOBER 2020

Financial
report

Item 5.1 Attachment 1 Page 185



COUNCIL AGENDA 13 OCTOBER 2020

Guide to our Financial Report

Financial Statements

Notes to Financial Report

Item 5.1 Attachment 1 Page 186



COUNCIL AGENDA

13 OCTOBER 2020

Guide to our

Financial Report

This guide will help you to understand and analyse Manningham's
Financial Report. Some terms required by Australian Accounting
Standards are unfamiliar to most readers, and some of the generally
recognised terms used in private sector company reports are rephrased
to be more appropriate for a local government body's report. The
Financial Report is one of Manningham’s key reports as it shows
how we performed financially this year and a snapshot of our

financial position at 30 June 2020.

We have prepared this report in accordance
with the Australian Accounting Standards
and relevant legislation Manningham's Audit
Committee and Councillors have examined
it, and it has been audited by the Victorian
Auditor General

What is in the Financial Report?

Council's Financial Report has 2 main
sections:

» 5 Financial Statements: the Comprehensive
Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement
of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement,
and Statement of Capital Works

Notes to the Financial Statements that
disclose our accounting policies and give
more detail on the information in the
statements

staterments by our Principal Accounting
Officer and Councillors

.

« the Independent Auditor's Report and
Auditor-General's Report

Comprehensive income statement

This statement was once known as the ‘Profit
and Loss Statement’ and shows

« the sources of Council’s revenue under various
income headings

« the expenses incurred in running the Council
during the year. These expenses relate only
to the Operations and do not include the
cost associated with capital purchases or the
building of assets

While capital purchase costs are not
included in the expenses there is an item for
depreciation. This value is the value of the
assets used up during the year.

The key figure to look at is the surplus for the
year A surplus means that the revenue was
greater than the operating expenses. The cash
element in the surplus is mainly used to fund
the Capital Works Program.

Balance sheet

This 1-page summary is a snapshot of the
financial situation as at 30 June. It shows what
the Council owns as assets and what it owes
as liabilities. The bottom line of this statement
is net assets, or equity, and this is the net
worth of Council which has been built up

aver many years. The assets and liabilities are
further separated into current and non-current
categories.

Current assets or Current liabilities are those
which will fall due in the next 12 months,

or cannot be deferred for greater than 12
months.
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The components of the Balance Sheet are
Current and non-current assets

« Cash and cash equivalents includes cash and
investments, i.e. cash held in the bank and in
petty cash and the market value of Council's
investments.

« Trade and other receivables are monies owed
to Council by ratepayers and others

« Other financial assets include term deposits
with financial institutions over 90 days.

« Non-current assets held for sale contains land
and buildings which have been approved for
sale by Council.

« Other assets are pre-payments of next year's
expenses and monies owed to Council, other
than from trading, that are not yet received.

« Investment in associates refers to Council's
equity share in the Whitehorse Manningham
Regional Library Service

Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
is the largest component of Council's worth
and represents the value of all the land,
buildings, roads, vehicles, equipment, etc
which has been built up by Council aver many
years.

Intangible assets are assets that have no

physical form such as computer software and
licences.

Current and non-current liabilities

« Trade and other payables is the value to
whom Council owes money as at 30 June

Trust funds and deposits represents monies
held in Trust by Council

Provisions include accrued salary and leave
entitlements

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
represents manies owed by Council to
financial institutions as at 30 June.

Income received in advance represents payments
received for works or services yet to be done

Net assets

This term is used to describe the difference
between the value of Total Assets and the
value of Total Liabilities. It represents the net
worth of Council as at 30 June.

Total equity

This always equals net assets. It is made up of
the following components:

« accumulated surplus: this is the value of the
Council, other than the Asset Revaluation
reserve and Other Reserves that has been
accumulated over time

asset revaluation reserve: this is the value
by which the purchase cost of assets has
changed over the years and arises as assets
are revalued to their replacement cost from
time to time

« other reserves: this is the value of unspent
funds from developer contributions and the
sale of open space lands. These funds are
held for future expenditure

Statement of changes in equity

During the course of the year the value of
total equity, as set out in the balance sheet,
changes. This statement shows the values of
such changes and how these changes arose
The main reasons for a change in eguity stem
from:

» the surplus for the year is the value that
income exceeded operating costs as
described in the Comprehensive Income
Statement

« net asset revaluation increment reflects the

change in the replacement value of assets

transfer of maonies to or from Council's
reserves shows the money withdrawn from
reserves and used during the year, or placed
into reserves for future use.
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Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement summarises
Council’s cash payments and cash receipts
for the year. This statement is presented
according to Australian Accounting Standards
and needs some care in analysis

The values may differ from those shown in the
Comprehensive Income Statement because
the Comprehensive Income Statement is
prepared on an accrual accounting basis and
the Cash Flow Statement is based on the
timing of cash receipts and payments.

Cash in this statement refers to bank deposits
with a term of 3 months or less and other
forms of highly liquid investments that can
readily be converted to cash, such as cash
invested with banks Council’s cash arises
from, and is used in, 3 main areas:

Cash flows from operating activities

« All cash received into Council's bank account
from Ratepayers and others who owed
money to Council. Receipts also include
the interest earnings from Council's cash
investments. |t does not include the costs
associated with the sale of assets

+ Payments. All cash paid by Council from
its bank account to staff, creditors and
other persons. It does not include the costs
associated with the creation of assets

Cash flows from investing activities

« This section shows the cash invested in the
creation ar purchase of property, infrastructure,
plant and equipment assets and the cash
received from the sale of these assets

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

« This is where the receipt and repayment of
borrowed funds are recorded.

« The bottom line of the Cash Flow Statement
and the Cash and Cash Equivalents at the
end of the financial year

Statement of Capital Works

This statement summarises expenditures
associated with capital purchases in the asset
classes prescribed by the Regulations as part
of the Capital Works Program.

There are 4 main classes of assets:

+ property: includes land and buildings
purchased during the year
+ plant: machinery and other assets — includes
non-infrastructure assets like computers,
artworks, furniture and fixtures
infrastructure: this is where the bulk of Capital
Works Program is allocated. This asset class
includes roads, drainage, parks, open space
and recreational community facilities
intangible assets. represents costs associated
with computer software and licences.
+ The last section of the statement
provides a breakdown of the total capital
expenditures into:

- new: represents expenditure on new asset
to meet current or additional service level
requirements

- renewal: restores or replaces an existing
asset that returns the service of the asset to
its original capacity

- expansion: extends the capacity of an
existing asset to provide an additional
level of service and benefits to new users
while maintaining the same standard for
existing users

- upgrade: enhances an existing asset
to provide a higher level of service and
increases the life of the asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes are an important and informative
section of the report and include information
on Manningham's accounting policies and
how we arrive at our figures. Each note is
numbered and these numbers are shown
beside the relevant items in the statements for
easy reference.

If there is other information we want to share but
that can't be incorporated into the statements,
we show this in the Notes, for example:

« the breakdown of our expenses, revenues,
reserves and assets

contingent liabilities

+ transactions with people related to
Manningham

financial performance indicators

To get a clear picture of our accounts, read
the Financial Statements and Notes to the
Financial Statements together.

Statements by Principal Accounting
Officer and Councillors

Our Principal Accounting Officer is responsible
for the financial management of the
organisation. They are responsible for certifying
that these Financial Statements, in their
professional opinion, meet all statutory and
professional reporting requirements

Two councillors, on behalf of the elected
Council, certify that, in their opinion, the
Financial Statements are fair and not
misleading.

Independent Auditor’s Report and
Auditor-General’s Report

The Independent Auditor's Report provides
readers of our Annual Report with an external,
independent opinion on our Financial Report
and Statements. It confirms that we have
prepared our Financial Report in accordance
with relevant legislation and professional
standards and that it represents a fair picture
of Manningham's financial affairs.

The Victorian Auditor-Ceneral is Council’s
auditor.
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Certification of
the Financial Statements

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements has been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989, the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regqulations 2074, Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting
requirements

s 2

Jon Gorst (BCom, CPA)
Principal Accounting Officer

15 September 2020
Doncaster

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial fransactions of Manningham City Counail for the year ended 30
June 2020 and the financal position of Council as at that date.

As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any crcumstances which would render any particulars in the finandal statements to be misleading or
Inaccurate

We have been authonsed by the Councl and by the Local Govemment (Planning and Reporfing) Reguiations 2014 to certify the financial
statements in their final form.

Paul McLeish Mike Zafiropoulos Al Andrew Day

Mayor Deputy Mayor Chief Executive Officer
15 September 2020 15 September 2020 15 September 2020
Doencaster Doncaster Dencaster
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Auditor

General's report

VAGO

Independent Auditor’s Report Victorian Auditor-General's Office

To the Councillors of Manningham City Council

Opinion

Basis for
Opinion

Councillors’s
responsibilities
for the
financial
report

188

| have audited the financial report of Manningham City Council (the council) which
comprises the:

. balance sheet as at 30 June 2020

. comprehensive income statement for the year then ended

. statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

. statement of cash flows for the year then ended

. statement of capital works for the year then ended

. notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies
. certification of the financial report.

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the council as at 30 June 2020 and their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part 6 of the
Local Government Act 1989 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards.,

| have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the
Australian Auditing Standards. | further describe my responsibilities under that Act and
those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975, My staff and | are
independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Victoria. My
staff and | have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

The Councillors of the council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local
Government Act 1989, and for such internal control as the Councillors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the council’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so.
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Auditor’s
responsibilities
for the audit

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether

of the financial due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable

report assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Councillors

. conclude on the appropriateness of the Councillors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
council to cease to continue as a going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that | identify during my audit.
MELBOURNE Sahcht Chiimmar
23 September 2020 os delegate for the Auditar-General of Victoria
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Comprehensive Income Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Income

Rates and charges

Statutory fees and fines

User fees and charges

Grants -operating

Grants - capital

Confributions - monetary

Confributions - non-monetary

Other income:

Share of gain/{loss) fram invesiment in assodiate

Total income

Expenses

Employee cosls

Walerials, services and confracts
Depreciation

Amortisation - Infangible assels
Amortisation - Right of use assets
Bad and doubtful debts
Borrowing costs

Finance costs - Leases

Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Other expenses

Total expenses
Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive income
Item that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Nel asset revaluation decrement

Total comprehensive result

The above comprehensive income stalement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note

31
32
33

34(3)

34(0)
15
35
37
62

41
42
43
L4
45
46
47
48
36
49

91 (a)

2020 2019
$000 $000
105,953 101,979
3,389 3,649
8,919 10,921
12,257 12,129
1,661 2,043
10,152 7,087
8,324 7,565
2,573 3,083
221 18
153,449 148,504
54,120 53,306
28,469 23,4406
22,175 20,598
1,243 1,042
578 -
190 407
109 309
73 -

1,595 (36)
18,619 20320
127,121 119,352
26,328 29,152
(61.217) (80.187)
(34,889) (51.035)
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Balance Sheet
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and ofher receivables
Olher financial assels

Other assels

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Trade and ofher receivables

Investments in associates

Property, infrastructure, plant, equipment and other fixed assets
Right-of-use assels

Infangible assels

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Trust funds and deposits
Uneamed income
Provisions

Inferest bearing liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Provisions

Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net Assets

Equity

Accumulated surplus
Reserves

Total Equity

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,

Note

51 (a)
51 (c)
51 (5)
57 (a)

51(C)
62
6.1
58

5.2 (D)

53 (a)
53 (b)
53(0)

54
5.8

2.5
58

a1

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
65,358 64,342
13,463 11,098
21,163 23,700
1,410 2,803
101,394 101,843
55 3
2,526 2,305
2,078,289 2,109,650
2,653 -
4,847 3487
2,088 470 2115473
2,189,864 2217416
21,897 12,621
13,385 12,574
2,361 958
12,974 12,2719
= 7279
403 -
51,120 45111
1,402 1,356
2283 -
3,685 1,356
54,805 47,067
2,135,059 2170349
799,511 738,643
1,375,548 1,431,706
2,135,059 2170349
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2020

2020

Balance at beginning of the financial year

Impact of change in accounfing policy - 2456 15
Revenue from Confracts with Customers

Impact of change in accounfing policy - AASE 1058
Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

Impact of change in accounting policy - AASE 16 Leases
Adjusted opening balance

Surplus for the year

Net asset revaluation increment/{decrement)

Transfer to accumulated surplus on realisation of assels
Translers from olher reserves

Transfers to ofher reserves

Balance at end of the financial year

2019

Balance at beginning of the financial year

Surplus for the year

Net asset revaluation increment/{decrement)

Transfer fo accumulated surplus on realisation of assets
Transfers from other reserves

Transters to olher reserves

Balance at end of the financial year

Note

5.8

9.1 (a)
9.1 (a)
9.1 (b)
9.1 (b)

Note

Asset
Accumulated revaluation Other

surplus reserves reserves Total
$'000 $'000 §'000 $'000
738,643 1422479 9,227 2170349
(697) - (697)
737,946 1422479 9,227 2,169,652
26,328 = - 26,328
- (61,217) = (61.217)

29 - - 296
45M (4,511) -
(9,570) - 9,570 -
759,511 1,361,262 14,286 2,135,059

Asset
A lated revaluation Other

surplus reserves reserves Total
§'000 $'000 §'000 $'000
710,040 1,502,666 5,166 2217872
29,152 - - 25,152
- (80.187) {80,187)

3512 - 3512
2,303 (2,303) -
(6,364) - 6,364 -
738,643 1,422,479 9,227 2,170,348

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and wasle charges

Statutory fees, ines and user charges
Grants - operating

Grants - capital

Contribufions - monetary

Interest received

Netincrease in trust funds and deposits
Other receipts

Total cash inflows from operating activities

Net GST refund/(payment)

Materials, services and confracls

ShortHerm, low value and variable lease payments
Employee cosls

Total cash outfiows from operafing activiies

Netcash provided byl(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and other fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of properly, infrastucture, plant, equipment and other fixed

assets
Receipts/payments) for other financial assets
Net cash provided byl(used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance cosis

Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid - lease liability

Repayment of lease liabilifies

Netcash provided byil(used in) financing activities

Netincrease/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents atthe end of the financial year

Financing arrangements
Restrictions on cash assets

Note

9.2

5.1 (a)

86
51

The above stalement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nofes.

2020 2019
Inflows/(Outfiows)  Infiows/(Outfiows)
$'000 $'000
103,955 100,836
13471 14,564
12614 12,173
2142 2,672
10,152 5,387
1,554 1,949
811 280
1,120 1138
145519 139,999
(357) (130)
{45,748) (46,749)
(379) -
(52,861) (53,089)
{99,345) (99,968)
46,174 40,031
(39,898) (24,664)
855 4,584
2,537 (3.900)
(36,706) (25,980)
{109) (309)
(7.279) -
(73) -
{991) -
(8,452) (309)
1,016 13,742
64,342 50,600
65358 64,342
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Statement of Capital Works

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Property

Land under roads
Buildings

Total property

Plant, equipment and other assets
Plant, machinery and equipment

Fixtures, fitings and fumilure

Computers and telecommunications
Artworks

Total plant, equipment and other assets

Infrastructure

Roads

Bridges

Foolpaths and cycleways

Off street car parks

Drainage

Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Parks, open space and streefscapes

Total infrastructure

Intangible assets
Software
Total intangible assets

Total capital works expenditure

Represented by:

New asset expenditure

Asset renewal expenditure

Assel expansion expenditure
Assel upgrade expenditure

Total capital works expenditure

The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nofes

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
212 166
8,438 3527
8,650 3,693
2,078 1,763
153 99
237 285

13 -
2,481 247
15,641 9081
10 192
3,506 3372
78 98
4,652 2128
3,360 876
4,317 1,573
33,564 17,930
3,748 3189
3,748 3,199
18,443 76,969
11,583 L7768
31,502 18,016
1,097 1,255
4,261 2,930
48,443 26,969
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Overview
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Qverview

Introduction

The City of Manningham was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 156 December 1994 and is a body corparate. The
Council's main office is located at 699 Doncasler Road, Doncaster, Victorda

Statement of compliance
These financial statements are & general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and Motes accompanying these financial stalements.
The general purpose financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards (AAS), other aulhoritalive pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act 1689 . and the Local Govermment (Planning and Reporting) Regulations
2014

Significant accounting policies

{a)  Basis of accounting
The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses are recognised in the reporfing period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Judgements, estimales and assumplions are required lo be made aboul the camying values of assels and liabiliies that are not readily
apparent from ofher sources. The estimates and assoclated judgements are based on professional judgement derived from historical
experience and various ofher factors thal are believed fo be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future penods that are affected by
the revision. and fions made by m tin the application of AAS's that have significant effects on the financial
stalements and estimales relate to

- Ihe fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Mote 6.1);

- the determination of depreciation for buildings. infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer fo Note 6.1);

- Ihe delermination of employee provisions (refer to Nole 5.5);

-the determination of whether performance obligations are sufficiently specific so as fo determine whether an arangement is within the scope
of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers or AASB 1058 income of Not-for-Profit Entities (refer to Note 3)

- the determination, in accordance with AASB 16 Leases , of he lease ferm, the estimation of he discount rate when not implicit in the lease
and whether an arangement is in substance short-ferm or low value (refer to Note 5.8)

- other areas requiring Judgements.

Unless ofherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where appropriate, comparative figures
have been amended to accord with current presentation (except where transitional requirements of AASB 15 Revenue from Confracts with
Customers, AASB 16 Leases and AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Enfities do nof require restatement of comparatives under the modified
retrospective approach adopted by the Council)
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Note 1:
Performance against budget

Significant accounting policies (cont)

{b)

Impact of COVID-13 pandemic - significant ting policies

On 30 January 2020, COVID-19 was declared to be & global pandemic by the World Health Crganisation. Since then, various measures have
been implemented by all three levels of Government in Australia to reduce the spread of COVID-19. This crisis and measures faken to mitigate
ithas impacted council operations in a number of areas during the financial year ended 30 June 2020,

In response fo a decrease in demand and government directives amidst the COVID-19 outbreak, a number of Council services were reduced
or tempararily closed, Council also provided a range of COVID-19 communily financial relief measures (Mole 11)

In immediate response to the pandemic event Council provided relief for rale payers. The fourth quarter rale instalment payment due dale was
extended to 30 June 2020, without incuring any penalty interest. Council continued 1o offer the ability for rate payers to apply for special rate
repayment arrangements for hose qualifying on financial hardship grounds. Deferral of the due date and the financial impact of COVID-19 on
rale payers has resulled in the rales deblor balance at 30 June 2020 being $2.07 million higher compared lo |ast year (Note 5.1(c)).

Council suspended all debl follow up and recovery activiies afler the Viclorian Government declared a Slale of Emergency in March 2020,
Council has increased the provision for doubtful debts (Mote 5.1(c)).

Council has provided rent and lease relief for sporfing clubs, community groups and commercial tenants who use Council facilities. Council
also infroduced a COVID-19 Community relief fund to provide funding to sectors of the community in need (Mote 11).

Councll has maintained cash balances al a financially sustainable level during this time, however is aware of the decreased rale of colleclion
for the fourth quarlerty rates instaliment (Mote 5.1(a), (b) and (c))

Suppliers confinue fo be paid within Coundil terms, with weekly accounts payable payment runs undertaken during this period to ensure that
Council is enabling timely cash flows to suppliers during this crises (Note 5.3(a)).

Council's property assets have been valued as at 30 June 2020. Al the time of valuation, available market data, including any impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic, were considered (Note 6.1).

Councll's infrastructure assets have been valued as at 30 June 2020. The market that the infrastructure assets are fransacted in is being
impacted by the uncertainty that the COVID-19 pandemic has caused (MNote 6.1).

IManagement has reviewed budgets, cash-flows and forecasts inine with expectations about the future and believes the going concern
assumplion remains appropriate

Council has not identified any subsequent events that may impact the organisations ability fo continue as a going concem and has determined
that the gaing concern assumption remains the appropriate basis to prepare Council's financial report (Mote 8.5).
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Note 1

Performance against budget

The performance agains! budget noles compare Council’s financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with actual performance. The
Local Government (Pianning and Reporting) Reguiations 2014 requires explanation of any material variances. Council has adopled a
mateniality threshald of lower of 10% or $500,000 to budget on & line item basis, or where furher explanation is warranted. Explanations have
not been provided for variations below the materiality threshold unless the variance is considered fo be material because of its nature.

These noles are prepared to meet he requirements of the Local Govemment Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)

Regulations 2014 .

Income and expenditure

Income

Rates and charges

Statutory fees and fines

User fees and charges
Confributions - monetary
Confributions - non-monetary
Grants - operaling

Grants - capital

Other income

Share of gain/(loss) from invesiment in associate
Total income

Expenses

Employee costs

Matenials, services and contracls
Depreciation

Amortisation - Intangible assets
Amortisation - Right of use assets
Bad and Doubtful debls
Borrowing costs

Finance cosls - Leases

Met {gain)oss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant

and equipment
Other expenses
Total expenses

Surplus for the year

Budget Actual Variance
2020 2020 2020
§'000 §'000 $'000
105,813 105,953 140
3,783 3,389 (394)
10,145 8919 (1,226)
7,982 10,152 2170
1,000 8324 7324
9,768 12,257 2,489
1,892 1661 (231)
2,762 2573 (189)
- 221 221
143,145 153,449 10,304
55,114 54120 994
21470 28,469 (999)
21,988 22,175 (187)
1,694 1,243 451
- 528 (528)
- 190 (190)
129 109 20
- 7 (73)
(95) 1,595 (1,690)
20,047 18619 1428
126,347 121,121 (774)
16,798 26,128 9,530

Variance
2020
%  Ref

013
(10.42)
(1208
2718
13240
2548
(1221)

(5.84)

S~ @ ot = L R =

1.80

(364 10

(085

2662 11
- 12

1550

177895 13

712 14

3673
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Note 1 Performance against budget (cont,)
1.1 Income and expenditure {cont)

(i)  Explanation of material variations
Ref. Item Explanation

1 Statutory fees and fines Outcome: Less than budget $394,000 or 10.42 %

Statutory fees were lower than budget by $0.39 million mainly due to a reduction in planning
permit income ($0.27 million) as a result of the soflening of the development market and a
decline In high value applications and lower than expecled asset protection permil income
{50.1 million).

2 User fees and charges Outcome: Less than budget $1,226,000 or 12.08 %
User fees and charges were lower than budget due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
on a number of Council's services. The major contributors were:
* Hire income for Community Venues and the Function Cenfre were unfavourable by $0.92
million due o the COVID-19 shutdown restrictions;
* A loss of $0.23 million of revenue from Council's Aquatic and Leisure facility {Aquarena)
affected by the COVID-19 forced shutdown; and
* The Art Studios and Child Care Services income were also affected by the COVID-19
pandemic by $0.22 million.

3 Contributions - monetary Outcome: Greater than budget $2,170,000 or 27.19 %

Developers' cash confributions in lieu of public open space and infrastructure requirements
were $1.59 million igher than budget and relate fo the level of development in Manningham.
These funds are placed info a cash backed reserve fo be used fo fund recreation and open
space improvements for the community

4 Contributions - non-monetary Outcome: Greater than budget $7,324,000 or 732.40 %
The value of land under roads, land, building, drainage pipes and pits and other infrastructure
assels fransferred to Manningham by developers was $7.25 million higher than originally
budgeted. The major confributor relates to the Tullamore Estate residential development and
upgrade of the MannaCare accommodation (residential aged care in Manningham).

5  Grants - operating Outcome: Greater than budget $2,489,000 or 25.48 %
A change In the timing of Financial Assistance Grants resulted in the bringing forward of $1.33
millior of the 202021 grant revenue into the 2019/20 year. In addition, Coundll received $0.62
million of higher than budgeted grants during the year for Aged & Disability Support Services,
Immunisation and School Crossing Supervisor programs,

] Grants - capital Outcome: Less than budget $231,000 or 12.21 %
Capital grants from State and Federal for the purpose of funding the Capital Works Program
were lower than budgeted by $1.0 million for works to be undertaken in 2019/20. This is partly
offset by earlier then budgeted receipt of half of the 2020/21 Financial Assistance Grant
allocation of $0.45 million and higher than budgeted Roads to Recovery grant of $0.13 million.

7 Otherincome Outcome: Less than budget $189,000 or 6.84 %
Olher income Is less than budget mainly due lo declining inferest revenues resulling from
lower lerm deposil interest rates for Councll's surplus funds. The Reserve Bank has lowered
the official interest rate from 1.25% to the current historical low rate of 0.25%, representing an
80% decline since the budget was adopted in June 2019

8 Share of gaini(loss) from Outcome: Greater than budget $221,000 or 100.00 %
investment in associate Council has a 32.61 per cent equily interest in the Whilehorse Manningham Regional Library
Corporation (WWMRL). During the year Manningham's share of the WIRL increased in value
Dby $0.22 million
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Note 1 Performance against budget (cont,)

1.1 Income and expenditure {cont)

Explanation of material variations
Ref. Item

9 Employee costs

10 Materials, services and contracts

11 Amortisation -Intangible assets

12 Amortisation - Right of use assets

13 Net(gainjlloss on disposal of

Explanation

Outcome: Less than budget $994,000 or 1.80 %

Employee costs for 2019/20 were $0.99 milion or 1.80 per cent less than budget. This relates
to staff salary savings and efficiencies resulting from vacancies and managing the services
within existing resources. In addition, higher than budgeted capitalised labour (supervision
costs undertaken by staff and charged fo the capital works program) afiributed to the
favourable variance.

Outcome: Greater than budget $939,000 or 3.64 %

Malerials, services and conbracts were $1.0 million or 3.64 per cent greater than budget. This
is mainly attributable to

* Conlract variation expenditure relafing to the management of Council's Aquatic faciity
{Aquarena) and Indoor Stadiums due to the COVID-19 shutdown. The restrictions resulted in
the facilities being closed leading to unbudgeted confract variation costs of $0.62 million;

* Unbudgeted expenditure of $0.32 million towards dealing with the effects of COVID-19. This
includes cleaning, software, confractor and matenials (purchase of PPES) and support funding
to community organisations funded by the COVID-19 Community Relief Fund; and

* Expenses associated with the response and recovery efforts of the January 2020 massive
storm event (including exensive hail storm damage) resulting in an unfavourable variance of
$0.31 million.

Outcome: Less than budget $451,000 or 26.62 %

Amortisation is an accounting measure which attempts to allocate the value of an asset over
its useful life for Council's infangible assets (software). The expenses were lower than budget
predominately due to timing of projects.

Outcome: Greater than budget $528,000 or 100.00 %

‘With the infroduction of the new Accounting Standard (A45B 16 Leases) effective from July
2019, lease expense associated with IT equipment and buildings has now been dlassified as
finance cosls (leases) and amortisation expense.

property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment

14 Other expenses

Out Less than budget $1,690,000 or 1778.85 %

Met loss on disposal of assets is mainly atiibutable to the demolition/write-down of four
residential dwellings totalling $1.59 million as part of the proposed Hepburn Road project. This
Is partly offset by a net gain of $0.35 million on disposalireplacement of existing assets as part
of the ongaing Plant Replacement Program

Outcome: Less than budget §1,428,000 or 7.12 %

Oflher expenses include a wide range of costs incurred in delivering Council services and
Include ulilities, software licences, legal expenses, consultancy, insurance, postage, lelephone
and general office expenses. The favourable variance is primarily due to:

* Savings in Transformation projects due to some delays and some components of projects
being reduced. As some projects were delayed, licence costs were lower than anficipated as
the licence fee budget had been premised on a full 12 months;

* Expenditures associated with the Tikalara Project were initially budgeted for in the operating
budget but were classified as capital expenditure;

* Favourable variances In leases and rental accounts were mainly due to the infroduction of
the new Accounling Standard (AASB 16 Leases) and the new recagnition of Right of Use
Assels and the associaled amortisation expense. The new Accounting Standard has resulled
in savings in Ofher expenses which are offsel by unbudgeled expenditure in amortisation
expense (refer above); and

* Further savings are derwed from a wide range of operational accounts (staff
frainingfconferencesfiravel, catering and general office expenses) which assisted in partially
offsetfing the financial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on Council

These savings are partly offsel by

* COVID-19 Community Rellef funding of $0.21 million to community organisations to assist
the local community during the COVID-19 pandemic; and

* Unbudgeted expenditure of $0.85 million that was originally budgeted in the Capital Works
Program but has been classified as non capital in nalure and transferred fo Olher expenses.
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Note 1

Performance against budget (cont.)

Capital works

Property
Land under roads
Buildings

Total property

Plant, equipment and other assets
Plant, machinery and equipment

Fixtures, fittings and fumiture

Computers and lelecommunications
Artworks

Total plant, equipment and other assets

Infrastructure

Roads

Bridges

Foolpaths and cycleways

Off street car parks

Drainage

Recreational, leisure and community facilifies
Parks, open space and streetscapes
Drainage

Intangible assets
Software
Total intangible assets

Total capital works expenditure

Represented by:

MNew assel expenditure

Asset renewal expenditure

Asset expansion expenditure
Asset upgrade expenditure

Total capital works expenditure

Budget Actual Variance
2020 2020 2020
$'000 $'000 §'000

. 212 (212)
6,540 5,438 (1,898)
6,540 8,650 (2,110)
2,298 2,078 220

69 153 (84)
895 237 658
20 13 1
3,282 2,481 801

16,691 15,641 1,050

. 10 (10)
3183 5,506 (2,323)

- L] (78)
5,750 4,652 1.098
6.264 3,360 2,904
5428 437 1111

7,316 33,564 3,762
3,208 3,748 (540)
3,208 3,748 (540)

50,346 48,442 1,825

13,818 11,583 2,235

28,040 31,502 (3,462)
2,161 1.087 1.064
6327 4,261 2.066

50,346 48,443 1,903

Variance
2020
Yo

(100.00)
(29.02)

957
(121.74)
7352

629
(100.00)
(72.98)
{100.00)
19.10
1636
2047

(16.83)

362

1617
(12.35)

49.24

2265

Ref

20

il

22

23
24

25
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Note1  Performance against budget (cont)

1.2 capital works (cont,)

() Explanation of material variations
Ref. Item

15 Land under roads

16 Buildings

17 Plant, hinery and

Explanation

Outcome: Greater than budget $212,000 or 100.00 %
Capital expenditure of $212,000 associated with land under roads was inifially budgeled
unider the roads asset category.

Outcome: Greater than budget $1,898,000 or 29.02 %

Higher than budgeted expenditure on programmed building projects including works on the
Timber Reserve Pavilion, Bulleen Tennis Club and Lower Templestowe Communily Cenlre
resulted in an unfavourable variance. In addilion to this some unanticipated hail damage
renewal work was required.

18 Fixtures, fittings and furniture

19 Computers and
telecommunications

20  Roads

21 Footpaths and cycleways

22 Drainage

23 Recreational, leisure and
community facilities

24 Parks, open space and
streetscapes

25  Software

0 Less than budget $220,000 or .57 %
Overseas supply chain issues caused by he COVID-19 pandemic resulled in delays in
vehicle availability

Outcome: Greater than budget $84,000 or 121.74 %
4 number of upgrades to fixtures and fitings were carried out to make office spaces more
COVID-19 friendly

Outcome: Less than budget $658,000 or 73.52 %

A number of projects notably "Metwork Infrastructure”, "Public Access Weave" were classified
as "Computer and Telecommunicafions” related when in actuality they had a very large
software component. This caused an under-expenditure against "Computers and
Telecommunications” and & corresponding over-expenditure against "Software" (refer to over-
expenditure in the Software category).

Outcome: Less than budget $1,050,000 or 6.29 %
& number of road projects were delayed, the most significant example being Jumping Creek
Road for which funding will be carried forward to 2020021

Outcome: Greater than budget $2,323,000 or 72.98 %

Additional funding was Iransterred to priorty foolpath and cydeway projects al the mid-year
review when it became apparent expenditure in other areas was falling behind and unlikely to
recover by year's end

Outcome: Less than budget $1,098,000 or 19.10 %
A number of drainage projects notably Valencia Terace were delayed and will be completed
In 2020121

Outcome: Less than budget $2,904,000 or 46.36 %

A number of major recrealion and leisure projects including those at Pellys and Rieschiecks
reserves were unable fo be completed in 2019120 for varying reasens, and the funding for
these projects has been caried forward to 2020/21.

Outcome: Less than budget $1,111,000 or 20.47 %

& number of parks and open space projects including Lions Park in Warrandyte, the
extension of the Main Yarra Trail and Ironbark Reserve were delayed due 1o a range of
reasons including tendering difficulties, resourcing issues and the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic

Outcome: Greater than budget $540,000 or 16.83 %

A number of projects including Metwork Infrastructure and Public Access Weave were
classified as "Computers and Telecommunications” related when in actuality they had a very
large software componenl. This caused an under-expenditure against “Computers and
Telecommunications® and a corresponding over-expenditure against "Software® (refer to
under-expenditure in Computers and Telecommunications category)
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Note 2:

Analysis of Council results by program

Note 2

@)

(b)

Analysis of Council results by program

Coundil delivers its functions and activiies through the following programs.

CEOQ Office
CEQ Office is respensible for providing a range of stralegic and operafional services including elected representatives, legal, governance
and risk, people and communications services.

City Services

City Services is responsible for delivering services to the community centred around sport and recreation, accommaodation, drainage amenity,
cleanliness, wasle management, raffic management and emergency response. Il is also responsible for prolecling, maintaining and
enhancing Manningham's assefs and natural environment, including its buildings, roads, car parks, drains, footpaths, parks, bushlands,
sfreetscapes and ofher infrastructure.

City Planning and Community

The City Planning and Community area includes services relating fo strategic land use planning, social planning, fransport planning, strategic
drainage planning, urban design and open space planning, development approvals and compliance, environmental health, local laws, school
crossings, economic development, community development, community and cultural events, community venues, aged and disability support,
maternal and child health, kindergartens and libraries

Shared Services

Shared Services provide a range of support services across coundil to enable the delivery of council services. The provision of these services
includes financial and procurement services, customer service (dlizen connect), informafion technology, and transformation

Corporate Activities

Corporate activiies relates to services o ralepayers, coundl and executives which are not allocated to individual directorates. This includes
general rales revenue, interest on Investments, Financial Assistance Grants, asset sales, depreciation and capital grents. The value of
Council land and buildings is also retained in the Corporate activities service area

y of income, exp , assets and capital expenses by program
Grants
Surplus/ included Total capital

2020 Income  Expenses (Deficit) in income expenses Total assets
§'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 §'000

CEO Office 1" 7072 (7,061) - - -
City Services 519 30,338 (29,819) 228 35,642 635,666
City Planning and Community 26,559 39,459 (12,900) 9,195 174 52,480
Shared Senvices 19,574 51,289 (31,715) 389 3,985 6419
Corporate Activilies 106,786 (1.037) 107,823 4,106 8,642 1,495,209
153,449 127,121 26,328 13,918 48,443 2,169 864

Grants
Surplus/ included Total capital

2019 Income  Expenses (Deficit) in income expenses Total assets
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

CEO Office 10 6819 (6,809) - - -
City Services 20,518 58,607 (38,089) 628 19,693 609,763
City Planning and Gommunity 24013 41,081 (17.068) 8.887 61 92,466
Shared Services 112 14,653 (14,541) - 3,484 9,408
Corporate Activilies 103,947 (1,712} 105,659 4,657 3,731 1,545,779
148,600 119,448 29,152 14172 26,969 2217416
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Funding for the delivery of our services

2020 2018
§'000 $'000
Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services
31 Rates and charges
The Coundl uses Capital Improved Value (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all
properties within thee municipal disticl. The CIV of & property s ifs land value and the
value of improvements such as bulldings and other improvements.
The CIV used to calculale general rates for 2018/20 was 852,492 million (201819,
$59,710 million). The 201920 rate in the CIV dollar was 0.00173238 (2018119,
0.00146783).
General rates 90,826 87,567
Supplementary rales 842 750
Recreational land 29 29
Interest on rales and charges 619 a07
92,216 88,853
Wasle charges 13,737 13,126
13,737 13126
Total rates and charges 105,953 101,879
The date of the latest general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the
municipal district was 1 January 2020, and the valuation will be first applied in the rating
year commencing 1 July 2020
Annual rales and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual
rates notices. Supplementary rafes are recognised when a valuation and reassessment
is completed and a supplementary rates nofice issued
3.2 Statutory fees and fines
Infringements and cosls 1,081 1,395
Town planning fees 1,39 1,543
Land and properly information cerlificates 403 400
Assel protection and other permils 509 n
Total statutory fees and fines 3,389 3,649

Statutory fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue
when the service has been provided, the payment is received, or when the penalty has
been applied. whichever first occurs.

Item 5.1 Attachment 1 Page 208



COUNCIL AGENDA

13 OCTOBER 2020

Note 3

33

34

Funding for the delivery of our services (cont.)

User fees and charges

Hall hire and function centre charges
Social and community services charges
Town planning fees (non-statutory)
Aged senvices fees

Registration fees

Advertising fees

Culture and recreation fees
Chargeable works fees

Rent and lease charges

Other fees and charges

Total user fees and charges

User fees and charges by timing of revenue recognition
User fees and charges recognised over time

User fees and charges recognised at a point in ime

Total user fees and charges

User fees are recognised as revenue at a point in ime, or over time, when (or as) the
performance obligation is satisfied. Recognition is based on the underlying contractual
terms.

Grants (Funding from other levels of government)

Grants were received in respecl of the following
Summary of grants

Commonwealth funded grants

Stale funded grants

Total grants received

Operating grants

Recurrent - Commenweaith Government
Financial Assistance Granls

Aged services

Recurrent - State Government
Lged senvices

Economic and environment
Immunisation

Maternal and child health

School crossing supervisors
Soclal and community

Community safety

Other

Total recurrent operating grants

Non-recurrent - Commonweaith Government
Aged senices

Non-recurrent - State Government

Economic and environment

Community safety

Sodial and community

Other

Total non-recurrent operating grants

Total operating grants

2020 2019
$'000 §'000
1,073 1,683
453 617
797 606
798 839
1,310 1,229
215 794
157 364
1,044 111
1,956 1,680
1116 1738
8919 10,921
8919 10,921
6819 10,921
10,648 10,084
3.210 4,088
13,818 14172
2,673 2,613
6,276 6,087
262 791
48 -
96 92
[ L
303 -
L 853
- 20
392 441
11,568 11674
109 -
§ 34
- 9
34 30
541 382
689 485
12,257 12129
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34

(B)

(]

3.5

2020 2019
$'000 §'000
Funding for the delivery of our services (cont)
Grants (Funding from other levels of government) {cont.)
Capital grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Financial Assistance Grants - local roads 869 831
Roads to Recovery 536 368
Recurrent - State Govement
Recreation - 469
Total recurrent capital grants 1,405 1,668
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Other 185 185
Non-recurrent - State Gavernment
Recreation 28 56
Roads fo Recovery - 26
Cther 43 108
Total non-recurrent capital grants 256 375
Total capital grants 1,661 2.043
Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner
Operating
Balance at start of year 1,589 1,643
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date 1,858 1,613
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (1,588) {1,667)
Balance al year end 1,859 1,589
Capital
Balance at start of year 1,323 1,026
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date 1,157 1.120
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (B55) (823)
Balance al year end 1,626 1323
Grant income is recognised al the point in time when the coundl salisfies its
performance obligations as specified in the underfying agreement
Contributions
Iionetary 10,152 7,057
Mon-monetary 8,324 7,585
Total contributions 18,476 14,622
Confributions of menelary assels comprised of.
Resort and recreation Contributions (Public Open Space confributions) 8,615 6,364
Doncaster Hill activity cenfre Developers Confributions 955 -
Operating confributions 70 44
Capital contributions 512 629
Total monetary contributions 10,152 1,037
Non-monelary confributions were received in relafion fo he following calegories.
Land 1,198 -
Land under roads 3313 -
Buildings 242 5998
Infrastucture 3,493 1,587
Volunteer Services 78 -
Total non-monetary contributions 6324 7,585

Wonelary and non-monetary conlribulions are recognised as revenue when Council
abtains control over the confributed asset
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2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Nate 3 Funding for the delivery of our services (cont)
36  Netgain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal 655 4584
\Written down value of assets disposed (276) {3,663)
\Written down value of assels scrapped (1,974) (825)
Total net gain/{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (1,595) 96
The profit or loss on disposal of an assel is determined when control of the assel has
passed to e buyer.
3.7  Otherincome
Interest on investments 1.469 1981
Other 1,104 1,102
Total other income 2,573 3,083
Interest is recognised progressively as itis earned.
Other income Is measured al the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
and s recognised when Council gains control over the right to receive the income
Note 4:
Note 4 The cost of delivering services
41  Employee costs
(@) Wages and salanes 42102 41,738
Casual staff 4,962 4,288
Salary oncost * 6,665 6,673
Other employee costs 391 627
Total employee costs 54,120 53,326
Engineering design work and capital project supervision completed by employees to the
value of 52,805 million (52.704 million 2018(19) is reported in the Slaterment of Capital
Works, and is notinduded in employee cosls.
* Salary oncost includes annual feave and long service feave provision, Workcover and
SUpErannuation costs.
(b)  Superannuation
Manningham City Council made confributions to fhe following funds:
Defined benefit fund
Employer confributions - Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 219 304
279 304
Employer confributions payable as at 30 June - -
Accumulation funds
Employer confributions - Lacal Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 2,265 2,305
Employer contributions - other funds 1,628 1,495
3,893 3,760

Emplayer confributions payable as al 30 June

Refer ta nole 9.3 for further information relating to Councl's superannuztion obligations.
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2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Note 4 The cost of delivering services (cont.)
4.2  Materials, services and confracts
Iiaterials, services and general maintenance 5,446 4311
Plant and equipment maintenance 544 601
Confracts and services - community building repairs and maintenance 1,538 1435
Confracts and services - parks, gardens, sporfing reserves and street trees 7130 4,092
Confracts and services - drains, roads and foolpaths 2,929 2677
Confracts and services - waste collection and disposal services 10,882 10,330
Total materials, services and contracts 28,469 23,446
43 Depreciation
Property 3,931 3.875
Plant, machinery and ofher assets 1,509 1.677
Infrastructure 16,335 15.046
Total depreciation 22175 20,598
Refer to note 5.2{b), 5.8 and 6.1 for a more detaiied breakdown of depreciation and
amortisation charges and accounting policy.
44 Amortisation - Intangible assets
Software 1,243 1,042
Total amortisation - intangible assets 1,243 1,042
45  Amortisation - Right of use assets
Property 305
Equipment 223
Total amortisation -right of use assets 528
4.6  Bad and doubtful debts
Parking fine debtors 144 344
Ciher debtors 46 63
Total bad and doubtful debts 190 407
Movement in provisions for doubtful debts
Balance at the beginning of the year 1.201 839
New provisions recognised during the year 190 407
Amounts provided for bul recovered during the year (14) (45)
Balance at end of year 1,317 1,201

Provision for doubtful debt is recognised based on an expected credit loss model. This
model considers both historic and forward looking information in determining the level of
Impairment,
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4.7

4.8

49

The cost of delivering services (cont.)
Borrowing costs

Interest - borrowings
Total borrowing costs

Bormowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred,
except where they are capitalised as part of a qualifying asset constructed by Council.

Finance costs - Leases
Interest - Lease liabilities
Total finance costs

Other expenses

Community grants and cantributions
Community grants

Library confributions

Total community grants and confributions

Utilities

Utilities, rent, and cleaning
Shreet lighting

Tolal utilities

Other miscellaneous expenses

Auditor's remuneration - VAGO - annual financial statement and grant acquittals
Auditor's remuneration - ofher parfies
Auditor's remuneration - Internal audit
Councillors' allowances

Fire service levy

Insurance

Leases

Consultants - engineering

Consultants - human resources
Consultants - economic and environmental
Consultants - other

Bank charges

Catering (including function centre)

Legal

Software licences

Telephone

Postage

Printing

Training

Design fees and maintenance - non capital
Volunteer Services

Other

Tolal other miscellaneous expenses

Total other expenses

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
109 309
109 309
T3
T3
1,237 1,880
3,754 3,685
4,991 5,575
1,508 2,005
835 i
2,343 2,782
63 63
il 25
112 41
316 310
126 124
784 655
379 590
292 241
37 100
621 429
356 28
266 280
a2 982
1,445 117
2,398 2,032
649 479
406 246
270 336
344 254
848 2419
T8 -
1,153 1,349
11,285 11,963
18,619 20,320
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Note §

51

(@)

(b)

Qur financial position

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Cash al bank

Term depasits (with term up to 3 months) and at-call with banks.
Total cash and cash equivalents

Other financial assets

Term deposits - current

Term deposit - refundable Manningham Cenfre Association bond
Total other financial assets

Total financial assets

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to external restrictions that limit
amounts available for discrefionary use. These include:
- Trust funds and deposits (Mote 5.3(b))

- Reserve funds (note 9.1(b))
- Waste iniiative fund*

Tolal restricted funds

Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents

* The Waste inifiative fund is the value of waste charges collected under 5162 of the
Local Govemment Act 1989, and is lo be applied to fund fulure waste collection and
disposal activilies.

Intended allocations

Although not externally resfricied the following amounts have been allocated for specific
future purposes by Council:

- Cash held to fund carried forward capital works

- Loan repayment

- Superannuation defined benefit potential future call

- Asset sales to fund future capital works program

- Grants received in advance

- Other intended allocation

Total funds subject to intended allocaions

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits al call and other highly liquid
investments with maturities of 90 days or less from the dale of acquisiion, nel of
outstanding bank overdrafls

Other financlal assels are valued at fair value, al balance dale. Term deposils are
measured at original cost. Any unrealised gains and losses on holdings at balance date
are recognised as either a revenue or expense.

2020 2019
$'000 $'000

8 8

850 1,334
64,500 63,000
65,358 64,342
20,663 23,200
500 500
21,163 23,700
86,521 88,042
13,385 12,574
14,286 9.221
9,592 10,624
37,263 32.425
28,095 31,917
5,762 11,886
- 3,640
6,500 5,000
4510 5,006
3,484 3,537
724 781
20,980 29,850
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()

()

Our financial position (cant)
Financial assets (cont,)

Trade and other receivables

Current

Statutory receivables
Rates deblors
Infringement deblors
Special rate schemes
Nef GST receivable

Non stafutory receivabies
Other debtors

Pravision for doubtful debls - other debtars
Total current trade and ofher receivables

Non-current
Statutory receivabies
Infringement court

Provision for doubtful debts - infringement court

Non statutory receivables
Otner receivables

Tolal non-current trade and ofher recelvables
Total trade and other receivables

Short lerm receivables are carried al invoice amount. A provision for doublful debls is
recognised when there is objective evidence that an impairment has occurred. Long
term receivables are carried at amorfised cost using the effective inferesl rate method

Ageing of receivables

Af balance date ofner deblors representing financial assets were past due but not
impaired. The ageing of the Council's trade and ofher receivables (excluding statutory

receivables) was:

Current (not yet due)

Past due between 31 and 60 days
Past due belween 61 and 50 days

Past due by more then 91 days
Total frade and other receivables

2020 2019
$1000 $'000
9,107 7.040
870 847
119 129
1,440 1,083
2,022 2,062
@) (53)
13,463 11,098
1,282 1.138
1,282) (1,138)
55 31

55 31
13,518 111729
1122 1,300
121 105
237 197
542 460
2.022 2.062
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2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Note 5 Our financial position (cont.)

5.2  Non-Financial assets

(a) Other assets
Accrued income - interest 39 124
Accrued income - other 115 1,160
Prepayments 1,004 1,396
Inventories 162 123
Total other assets 1,410 2,803

(b) Intangible assets
Software 4947 3,487
Total intangible assets 4,947 3,487
Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 12,905 11,552
Additions from interal developments 1,184 530
Transfer from work in progress 1,519 823
Balance at 30 June 15,608 12 905
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 July [9418) (8.376)
Amorfisation expense (1,243) (1,042)
Balance at 30 June (10,661) (9,418)
Net book value at 30 June 4947 3487
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised as an expense on a systematic basis over
the asset's useful life. Amortisation is generally calculated on a straight line basis, at a rate
that allocates the asset value, less any estimated residual value over its estimated useful
life. Estimates of the remaining useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed at least
annually, and adjusiments made where appropriate.

5.3 Payables

(@)  Trade and other payables
Trade payables 4086 552
Employee benefits and related costs 2,069 1,553
Accrued expenses 19,842 10,516
Total trade and other payables 21,997 12,621

(b)  Trustfunds and deposits
Confract retenfion 1,295 1,136
Landscape bonds 6,125 5,870
Miscellaneous works deposits 406 208
Asset protection bonds 4,558 4,416
Subdivider deposits 163 163
Refundable Manningham Centre Association bond 500 500
Fire services levy 87 kil
Other refundable deposits il 2350
Total frust funds and deposits 13,385 12,574
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(c)

5.4

Our financial position (cont

Unearned income

Grants received in advance - operaling
Grants received in advance - capital
Income received in advance - rent
Income received in advance -rates
Total unearned income

Ameunts received as deposits and retention amounts cenfrolled by Council are recognised
as trust funds until they are refurned, fransferred in accordance with the purpose of the
receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeifed, resulting in council gaining control of the:
funds, are lo be recognised as revenue al the ime of forfeit

Purpose and nature of fems
Refundable deposits - Deposits are faken by council as a form of surety in a number of
circumstances, including in relation to building works, tender deposits, contract deposils
and the use of cvic faciities

Fire Service Levy - Council Is the collection agent for fire services levy on behalf of the
Slate Governmen!. Councl remits amounts received on a quarterly basis. Amounls
disclosed here will be remitted to he state government in line with that process.

Retention amounts - Councll has a contractual right to retain certain amounts until 2
confractor has met cerlain requirements or a refated warrant o defect period has elapsed,
Subject fo the satisfactory completion of the confractual obligations, or the elapsing of
fime, these amounts will be paid fo the relevant contractor in line with Council's confractual
obligations.

Interest bearing liabilities

Current
Borowings - secured

Total inferest-bearing loans and borrawings

The maturity profile for Council's borrowings is
Mot later than one year

Aggregate camying amount of inferest-beaning loans and bomowings:
Current

Borowings were inifially measured at fair value, being the cost of the inferest bearing
liabilities, net of transacion costs. The measurement basis subsequenl to initial
recoqnifion depends on whether the Council has calegorised its interest-bearing liabilities
as elther financial liabilities designated at fair value through the profit and loss, or financial
liabilities at amortised cost Any difference between the initial recognised amount and the
redemption value is recognised in nef result over the period of the borrowing using the
effective interest method

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the interest bearing liabilities. The
Council determines the classification of its interest bearing liabilities at initial recognition,

2020 2019
$'000 $000
357 -
1178 -
237 478
589 530
2.361 958
- 7,279
E 1219
- 1279
o 7,279
= 7,279
= 7.279
- 7.279
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5.5

Qur financial position (cont.)

Provisions
Annual leave  Long service leave Total
2020 §'000 $'000 §'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 4,342 9,293 13,635
Amounts used (3,002) (1,518) (4,520
Additional provisions 3,616 1,645 5,261
Balance at the end of the financial year 4 956 9420 14 376
2019
Balance at beginning of the financial year 4,437 6,922 13,359
Amounts used (3,650) (2,134) (5,784)
Additional provisions 3,555 2505 6,060
Balance at the end of the financial year 4,342 9,293 13,635
2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Employee provisions
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
Annual leave 3,304 2,956
Long service leave 79 675
4,023 3,631
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months
Annual leave 1,652 1,386
Long service leave 7,299 7,262
8,951 8,648
Total current employee provisions 12,974 12,279
Non-current
Long service leave 1,402 1,356
Total non-current employee provisions 1,402 1,356
Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:
Current 12,974 12,279
Non-current 1,402 1,356
Total aggregate carrying amount of emplayee provisions 14,376 13,635

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are
calculated as follows at reporting date.

Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and
accumulated sick leave expected to be wholly setled within 12 months of the reporting
date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits in respect of employee services
up to the reporting date, classified as current liabilities and measured at their nominal
values.

Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date
are recognised In the provision for employee benefits as current liabilities, measured at the
present value of the amounts expected fo be paid when the liabilities are settled using the
remuneration rate expected to apply at the ime of seftliement.
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55 Provisions (cont)

Long service leave

Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefils,
LSL is measured at present value. Unconditional LSL Is disclosed as a current liability.
Condibonal LSL thal has been accrued, where an employee is yel fo reach a qualifying
ferm of employment, is disclosed as a non - current liability.

Key assumptions.
-discount rate
- indey rate

5.6 Financing arrangements

The Council has the following funding arrangements in place as at 30 June
Bank overdraft

Credit card facililies

Total faciliies

Used facilties
Unused faciliies

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
0.60% 1.47%
2.25% 3.00%
1,000 1,000
250 230
1,250 1,250
17 M
1,233 1,209
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57 Commitments

The Counal has entered info the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Commilments are
disclosed at their nominal value and presented inclusive of the GST payable

Later than 1 Later than 2
year and not  years and not
Not later than 1 later than 2 later than 5 Later than 5

2020 year years years years Total
$'000 $'000 $§'000 $'000 $'000
Operating
Garbage collection 5,501 5,758 18,934 - 30,193
Meals for delivery 248 253 797 c 1,208
Hard and green wasle collection 869 936 3,258 - 5,063
Total 6,618 6,947 22,989 - 36,554
Capital
Roads & Footpaths 1,951 - - - 1,951
Drainage 1477 - - - 1477
Other - recreation and open space 5,693 B - - 5603
Buildings 1,644 - - - 1,644
Plant and equipment 1,206 = - - 1,206
Total 11,971 - - - 11871

Later than 1 Later than 2
year and not  years and not
Not later than 1 later than 2 later than § Later than 5

2019 year years years years Total
$'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
Operating
Garbage collection 5323 5,570 18,318 - 29211
Meals for delivery 272 278 875 - 1425
Hard and green wasle collection 909 a78 3,407 - 5,204
Tolal 6,904 6,626 22,600 - 35,930
Capital
Roads 4,489 - - - 4,489
Drainage 770 - - - 77
Other - recreation & open space 828 - - - 828
Buildings 2,659 - - - 2,659
Plant and equipment 770 - - - 770
Total 9,516 - - - 9,516
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58

Our financial position (cont,)

Leases

Policy applicable before 1 July 2019

A5 a lessee, council classifies leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease fransferred significantly
all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to council.

Operating lease payments, including any confingent rentals, were recognised as an expense in the comprehensive income statement on a
straight-ine basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattem of the benefits
derived from the use of the leased asset. The leased asset was not recognised in the balance sheel.

All incentives for the agreement of & new or renewed operating lease are recognised as an integral part of the nef consideration agreed for
{he use of the leased asset, irespeclive of the incentive’s nature or form or the fiming of payments.

In the event that lease incentives were received o enler inlo operating leases, the aggregate cost of incenlives are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis, unless anothier systemalic basis was more representative of Ihe
fime pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assel were consumed

Policy applicable after 1 July 2013

Council has applied AASE 16 Leases using a modified refrospective approach with the cumulative effect of initial application recognised as
an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated surplus at 1 July 2019, with no restatement of cormparative information. The council
applied the approach consistently to all leases in which itis a lessee.

On fransition to AASB 16 Leases . Council elected to apply the practical expedient o ‘grandfather’ the assessment of which fransactions are
leases. The coundil has applied this practical expedient to all of its confracts and therefore applied AASB 16 Leases only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases.

At inceplion of a contracl, all entifies would assess whether a confract is, or contains, a lease. A confract is, or contains, a lease if the
confract conveys the righl to confrol the use of an idenfified assel for a period of ime In exchange for consideration. To idenfify whether a
confract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, itis necessary lo assess whether

- The contract involves the use of an idenlified asset;

- The customer has the right to abtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

- The customer has the right to direct the use of the asset.

This policy is applied fo confracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 July 2019.

As a lessee, Council recognises a righl-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for:

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received; plus
- any initial direct costs incurred; and

an estimate of costs fo dismantle and remove the underfying asset or fo restore the undertying asset or the site on which it s located.

The right-af-use assel is subsequently depreciated using the straight-ine method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of
fhe useful life of the nght-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the
same hasis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any.
and adjusted for certain measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily defermined, an appropriate incremental borrowing rale. Generally,
Council uses an appropriate incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- Fixed payments

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, inifizlly measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;
Amounts expecied to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
The exercise price under a purchase option that Council is reasonably certain fo exercise, lease payments in an opfional renewal period if
Council is reasonably certain fo exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless Council is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

When Ihe lease liability Is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-ol-use assel, or is

recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Peppercorn Leases - Council has one peppercom lease arangement and has opted not to recognise this as per the moratorium allowed fo
non-for-profit enfifies during the 201920 financial year under AASB 16
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5.8

Qur financial position (cont)

Leases (cont)

Right-of-Use Assets

Balance at 1 July 2019
Additions

Amortisation charge
Balance at 30 June 2020

Lease Liabilities

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year

One to five years

IMore than five years

Total undiscounted lease liabilities as at 30 June:

Lease liabilities included in the Balance Sheet at 30 June:

Current
Mon-current
Tolal lease liabilities

Short-term and fow value leases

Property
$000
2,830

(305)

Plant and
equipment
$'000

351

(223)

Total
§'000
3181

(526)

2525

128

2653

2020
$000

464
1263
1262
2,080

403
2,283
2686

Council has elected not to recognise nght-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of plant and equipment that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets (individual assets worth less than exisiting capitalisation thresholds for a like asset
up 1o @ maximum of $10,000), including some IT equipment. Council recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an

expense on a straight-ine basis over the lease term

Expenses relating to:
Short4erm leases

Leases of low value assets
Total

Variable lease payments (not included in measurement of lease liabilities)

Non-cancellable lease commitments - Short-term and low-value leases

Commitments for minimum lease payments for short-term and low-value leases are payable as follows:

Payable:

Within one year

Later than one year but not later than five years
Total lease commitments

Leases classified as operating leases under AASB 117 Leases

2020
$'000
90
289
379

248
27
275

At fransition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at Council's incremental
borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments. Council applied this approach to all applicable leases.

Council used the following practical expedients when applying AASB 16 Leases to leases previously classified as operating leases under

AASB 117 Leases

- Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar charactenistics.

- Adjusted the right-of-use assets by the amount of AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilties and Contingent Assefs onerous contract
provision immediately before the dalte of initial application, as an alternative to an impairment review.

- Applied the exemption not to recognise nght-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term.

- Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.
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58 Leases (cont)

Impact on financial statement
On transition fo AASB 16 Leases , Council recognised an additional $3.181m of right-of-use assels and $3.181m of lease liabilifies.

\When measuring lease liabilities, Council discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019, The weighted-
average rate applied is 2.26%.

2019
$'000
Operating lease commitment at 30 June 2019 as disclosed in Council's financial statements 4,682
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019 3,850
- Recognition exemption for:
leases of short-term and/or low-value assets (669)
- Lease labilites recognised as at 1 July 2019 318

Item 5.1 Attachment 1 Page 223



13 OCTOBER 2020

COUNCIL AGENDA

Note 6

Assets we manage

[T () (rs5's) £48's L

001 (%) flaz'n 198§ #00°)

SEH G - (90¥2) 0802 180°5

FIL - (L92) 2 Lel'

000$ 000$ 000% 000$ 000%

0202 3UNF 0E  SHO AR slajsuel] suoppDY slozAne |

diBuise;y diviBuuado
fez a0z (%) (915'1) {0z lerrze) (12609 912 8 652 LY 059'601'2
692721 i) (ps6'¢) - - - - 5958 9L
096 129 - el (9gg) (gee'an) 1zzel Ler e £91'87 £61 108
2l - 268 (592) (506 1) - - 5922 L2 11
ez - I (g851) (1eg'e) (0vrs) LN £48 2T
1858021 - g o - (zoL's9) i1 L1540 |
0004 0003 0003 000$ 000$ 000% 000% 000$ 0003
DZ0C 3UNPOE  SHO AN Slajsuell |es0dsiq uonepaidag  uogenjersy  sUOGNaIGuon  suomisibdy G I0ZAINT |
anen JIe4 Iy aneAJEd ]

MmaNGSELU|
512852 D2xy Jan0 pue Juawdinba ‘Jueld
fuadoig

ssaiBord up yoom o Arunung

ssafoud v simyg,

alMonyselu|

$1esse paxy JaL0 pue uadinba ‘Jued
sBuping

pue7

spasse paxy 1ay3o pue uaudinba yueid ‘sigangseyu ‘Apadord yo Armunung

s)a5se paxy 1o pueuawdinba Jued ‘aimannseyu fpadord

afieunw wn sjassy

9 0oN

Page 224

Attachment 1

Item 5.1



13 OCTOBER 2020

COUNCIL AGENDA

- 0207 2UnP 0§ 18 Uoder 2ida0 Dale NNy

0202 aunr 0g anier e}

SHUBL R H/SIUAWAIIL UODENjEARY

- $|es0dsp 40 uoneraidap pae| Uy

uonesole puz Lonepadag

uoge2asdap parjmunIae uj UILNGA|

siajsuell

pasodsio s1asse Jo anjeadied
SYURLU 30 3D/SIUAWIALI U UODE NjEARY
Slessepanqigued

aNjeA Jje Je SIASSE JO Uoms| by
AN[RA 1) U] UGN

- 8102 AInr | 38 uoRes 3daD p el munioy

7L [TNAs 197282 95K | 658077 186507 trl'g [
- (Lzv'on) (ivoLn (E1y 1) (95089 1) - - -

L 682'965°) 851266 £48'7 568'69¢ 186607 | 8T BRI
- (Lho'gy) 08l [ (Zerel) - - - -

- (0s9's1) {0sg'v1) (z6) (asg's - - - -

- 05 0Ls 0Ls - - - -

- (reg'e) (1gee) (L) (pegc) - - - -

lsg) (Lzz'se 55151 (ps07) EIgLI (ze8 09 2650 (34%) (L90'v8)
(L92) [ 192 - Loz 8 8 - -

- (6917 [CI] (es17) - (1) - - (N

- (z6¥'98) 01z 6 001 bIle (zor'59) - (a4t {tsz's9)
- (1741 e - e 157 £I5'E - 8611
e 90¥'8 618 - 18 1 1 - -

LEL | 950'68¥') TFS P22 5Lt 897 127 £15 707 | LL5E 1654 SHELET |
- (09¥'zsH) (otzsn) (948 1) (F19°051) - - -

LEL'] LIEAR LN £O0'LLE 126'7 za0'aLe s 1654 SPEEST |
000.$ 000.$ LIE 0008 000.§ 0008 0004 0008
ssalford sbuipng pasienads  pasienads puriiEel  soeal pasenads  pasienads
[URILTY [LIUTR -uou-Buping -Guping Japunpuen -uou-pue] -pUE7

(Ju09) s3asse paxy 1apo pue uaud

GI0ZAINE | 2nies ey

fpadoig

¥ querd aamannseyu ‘Kiadord

(qu03) abeurw m gassy

L]

Page 225

Attachment 1

Item 5.1



13 OCTOBER 2020

COUNCIL AGENDA

5878 8T 556 | iy 52 9gL'L

- (g08'a1) - (g6eg) (z6¥'8) (sLe')

Gey's 05L°LE 896 08y L196 FOL ¥ 1

- (288 - (L6¢) (952) (vg)

- ' - - I 83l

- (606°) - (Lgg) losz) (zgz 1)

#58 0Ll ¥l 620 £5) bts

(gor2) 768 - |ne f LL

- (7)) - - () (eet 1)

0802 (144 ¥l 81z £51 006’

180°g ST 546 048 [ 997 L

- (Lev'an) - (1o0e) logz'e) (v68'8)

180°¢ 062 596 198'¢ 79%'6 0911

000.§ 000.5 0008 000$ 0003 0003

ssalfolg sjasse S0y SUONEIIUNL almmiuing awdinba

up ylopn 1330 pue W03 pue sBumy pue Aizujyew
Juawdinba puE sJandu0) ‘sS4 ‘Jued
‘ued oL

0Z0Z 3UN 0 32 UoRep A pajelUnIdy
0202 2uUnr OF nfeaJiel v

SJU L3I0 3D/SIUALI 313 UT UDREN[EASY
s|jesodsip o uonenasd @ paje Ny
uonesniowe pue uonepadaq
uopeaidap pORINLURIE U] UL NN

HELTEE
pasodsp sjasse Jo anjen Jje4
SJUBLLAI0 AD/SIU AL 313 UT UDDEN[EASY
51355 PAINCIANOD

aNjeA JieJ 18 §138SE J0 UomsInbay
aN|RA 1jR) U] SJUALNGN

6102400 172 uonepadsp pajemunady
6102400 | anjen e

9as5e paxy 1o puejuawdinba Jued

(u03) s3asse paxy 1ago pueuawdinba Jued ‘ungangseyuy ‘Apadoig

(qu03) afeuew wn spassy

U}

9

990N

Page 226

Attachment 1

Item 5.1



13 OCTOBER 2020

COUNCIL AGENDA

001's 016229 61y 29912 8879l 919412 58601 585'0L 2901 | SEE212
- (92995 (z8z'1) (196'¢1) (gge'on [ 1) (e1yg) (e1'68) {eon's)l (ez6e1z)
01's 99180} Slvg 629'LC 98892 eIBEIT 20961 8LY6TI 58057 857 92t
- (£8£'08) [19¢) (06% 1) (e (059'9) 9 (5696 (9¢8) (06L'#1)
- (zg0'sh) - - - (g1e'e) 162 l9es's) {Lez) (zoz't)
- 685 - 18 0l - - 691 - B6¢
- (sec'sn) (198} (125'1) (e (1ge'e) {162) {a0g 1) (5L2) (L46L)
9607 057 1§ - 6% LS| 08e'e | {oLg) LEG L0g'e 19532
ez (14} - Bl 13 957 - Ll - £59
(t) = - - - - - - - -
- (526 - {on 1z - - (51g) - (568)
- 85752 - - - 1229 (sst) 158y L6l U
- £64'¢ - - - [ALH] - 8Ll - tLb
1965 £81°87 - 1% 5281 1#6'S 5L 6926 01 08181
00| £61109 e 850'17 32191 906’182 85811 £57 98 1151 35 851
- (e68'sz8) (108 (LLw 1) (181'8) (LeLzen (6199 (se¥cs) (et (¢e1'661)
7001 988220} Slve srgge 60862 £50 007 8L 02 19L'611 85l 169 L6E
oons$ 0oa 000$ 0008 0003 000% 0008 000% 000$ 000%
ssalbolg amangseyu) JususGeusy  sadessiesns  Ayumuiod Heuelg syied shemapdha sabpug spE0y
[TRTLYY ILTTR asenn, pue saoeds pue ainsia| 18232308 JO  Pue sipeciond

uado sxled ‘leusneanay

0707 2UNF O£ 38 UONRID 330 DA RINLINDY
0207 3UNM 0E 3njer Jigy

SIUALLIAIDAD/EIUALLAIL| UONENIBADY
s/es0dsiD J0 VORI axd3p D AeInuUnody
uogesjiowe pue uogenaidag
uopviaaidap payepnuna e uj SPUALAGY

BTGNS

unsasBunelado U pasiub ool $4550| Ju AL Bl
pasedsp 5135 J0 anjen g4
BUETENLEIETENIET E LN
Sjassepejnguog

aM1|RA JIBJ 1B $1355E 10 UoRIsIthoy

ANeA JJBL U] SIUALIA QN

§102.4n0 1 38 vogenaxdp paeInUNaTy
1024100 1 anjen gy

aimangseyu)

(3u09) syasse paxy 1aigo pueuawdinba Jued ‘armangseyy ‘Auadoig

(Ju03) afieumu an sass

[&]

TN

Page 227

Attachment 1

Item 5.1



COUNCIL AGENDA

13 OCTOBER 2020

Note 6

8.1

Assets we manage (cont.)

Property, infrastructure, plant, equipment and other fixed assets (cont)

Aequisition

The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as consideration at the
dale of acquisition plus any incidental costs allributable to the acquisition. Fair value is the price that would be received fo sell an asset

(or paid o transfer a liability) in an orderty transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

‘Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing costs incurred during
construction, and an appropriate share of direclly attributable variable and fixed overheads.

In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assets within an applicable asset class and
unless otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year

Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation perieds

Assetclass Depreciation Period Threshold limit
8000
Property
Land Infinite lite 0
Land under roads Infinite life 0
Buildings 75 -100 years 5
Buildings on leased land Term of lease or 75 years
Plant, equipment and other assets
Plant, machinery and equipment 5 -25 years 1
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 4 -20 years 1
Computers and felecommunications 4-10 years 1
Artworks Infinite life 1
Infrastructure
Road - pavement 30 years 10
Road - subpavement 120 years 10
Bridges 60 -100 years 10
Foolpaths and cycleways 60 - 100 years 10
Carparks 60 - 100 years 10
Drainage 120 years 10
Recreafional, leisure and community facilities 20 years 10
Parks, open space and streetscapes 20 years 10
\Wasfe garbage bins 20 years 0
Intangible assets
Software 5 years 1
Land under roads

Land under roads acquired afler 30 June 2008 is brought to account at cost adjusted for englobo charactenstics, access rights and
private interests of other parties and entiflements of infrastruciure assets and services. Council does not recegnise land under roads that
it contralled prior to thal period in its financial report.

Depreciation and amortisation

Buildings, infrastructure, plant , equipment, infangible assets, and other assets having limited useful lives are systematically deprecialed
over their useful lives to the Council in & manner which reflects consumption of the service polential embodied in those assels.
Estimates of remaining useful lives and residual values are made on a regular basis with major asset classes reassessed annually
Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually.

Where assels have separate identifizble components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigred distinct
useful lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is delermined for each componenl.

Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.

Depreciation periods used are listed above and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated.
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61

Assets we manage (cont.)

Property, infrastructure, plant, equipment and other fixed assets (cont)

Repairs and maintenance

Routine maintenance, repair cosls, and minor renewal costs are expensed as incurred. Where the repair relates to the replacement of a
component of an assef and the cost exceeds the capitalisation threshold the cost is capitalised and depreciated. The camying value of
fhe replaced asset is expensed.

Artworks
Artworks are not depreciated.

Valuation of land and buildings

Waluations were completed as at 30 June 2020 for Council. Valuations for 30 June 2020 are at fair value.

Non -specialised fland and non-specialised buiidings

Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings are valued using the market based direct comparison method. Under this valuation
method, the assets are compared fo recent comparable sales or sales of comparable assels which are considered to have nominal or no
added improvement value

For non-specialised land and non-spedialised buildings. & valuafion was performed by Council's Manager Property Services, hr Graham
Brewer FAPI, Cerlified Practicing Valuer (Registration Mumber 61916) to determine the fair value using the market based direct
comparison method. Valuation of the assels was delermined by analysing comparable sales and allowing for share, size, lopography,
location and other relevant factors specific fo the asset being valued. From the sales analysed, an appropriate rate per square mefre has
been applied to the subject assel. The effeclive date of the valuation is 30 June 2020

To the extent that non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings do not contain significant, unobservable adjustments, these assets
are dlassified as Level 2 under the market based direct comparison approach

Speciaiised land and specialised buildings

The market based direct comparison method is also used for specialised land but adjusted to refiect the specialised nature of the assets
being valued. For Council specialised buildings, the depreciated replacement cost method is used, adjusting for the associated
depreciation. Specialised assels contain significant, unobservable adjustments, therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 fair value
measurements.

An adjustment is made fo reflect a resfriction on the sale or use of an asset by Coundl. The adustment is an allowance made fo reflect
Ihe difference in value between unrestricled assels and those held by the Gouncil which are impacted by extemal restraints on Iheir use

The valuation of Council's specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by Gouncil's Manager Property Services, Mr
Graham Brewer FAPI, Cerfified Practicing Valuer (Reqgistration Number 61916). The valuation was performed using either the market
based direct comparison method or depreciated replacement cost, adjusted for restrictions in use. The effective date of the valuation is
30 June 2020.

Defails of the Council's land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2020 are as follows:

Level Level 2 Level 3 Date of Valuation

$1000 §1000 §000

Land - 8,143 1,189,278 Jun 2020

Land under roads - - 6,110 Jun 2020

Buildings - 1448 220,838 Jun 2020
Total - 9,591 1,416,226
2020 2018
Reconciliation of specialised land $'000 §000
Land under roads 6110 2517
Parks, reserves and other 1,189,278 1,253,345
Total specialised land 1,195,388 1,255,922
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6.1

Assets we manage (cont)

Property, i , plant, equip and other fixed assets (cont.)

Valuation of infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assefs (roads, bridges, footpaths and cycleways, off sireet car parks and drainage) are valued using the written down
replacement cost of each asset  The writlen down replacement cost is calculated based on fhe remaining life of the assel, which in turn
is determined based on the condifion of the asset.

Infrastructure assets contain significant unobservable adustments, herefore these assets are classified as Level 3.

Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement cost.  Significant unobservable inputs include the current
replacement cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure. The remaining useful lives of infrastruciure assels are defermined on the
basis of the current cendition of the assel and vary from 20 years to 120 years. Replacement cost is sensitive fo changes in markel
conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of infrastructure are sensifive to changes
In use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful lives of infrastructure assets.

A valuation of Council's infrastruclure assets was performed by Council's Manager, Infrastructure Services, Mr James Paterson 8.E£ng
(Civil) . Tne valuation was performed based on the depreciated replacement cost of the assets. The effective date of the valuation is 30
June 2020.

There were no changes in valualion fechniques throughout the period fo 30 June 2020
For all assets measured at fair value, the curent use is considered the highest and best use

Details of the Council's infrastructure information about the fair value hierarchy as a 30 June 2020 are as follows:

Level 1 Level2 Level3 Date of Valuation

5'000 $'000 §'000
Roads - - 212,335 Jun 2020
Bridges - - 17,062 Jun 2020
Foolpaths and cycleways - - 70,535 Jun 2020
Off street car parks - - 10,988 Jun 2020
Orainage - - 274 515 Jun 2020
Total - - 585437
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6.2

Assets we manage (cont)

Investments in associates

Whitehorse-Manningham Regional Library Corporation

Background

Manningham City Councl has a 32.61% equily inlerest in the Whitehorse Manningham
Regional Library Corporation (WMRLC) that was incorporated on 21 December 1995
Council has reported ifs inferest in the WMRLC on the basis of equity accounting
principles. Manningham City Council's share of the movement in net assets as &t 30
June 2020, per draft WMRLC financial stalements, has been taken up as profit of
$221,324 during the year ended 30 June 2020 {profit of $77,955 in 2018/19). A4s
neither council has a confrolling inferest, the participating councils show their
confribulions towards the operating expenditure of the library as an expense.

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and olher receivables
Other assefs

Non-current assets
Property & equipment

Total assets

Current liabilities
Payahles
Provisions

Non-current liabilities
Provisions

Total liabilities
Netassets

Movement In carrying value of investment
Carrying value of investment at start of year
Share of surplus/{deficit) for year

Carrying value of investment at end of year

Associates are all entiies over which Council has significant inluence but not confrol or
Joint control. Council's investment in an associate is accounted for by the equity method
as the Council has the ability to influence rather than control the operations of the entity.
The investment is initially recorded at the cost of acquisition and adjusted thereafler for
post-acquisibion changes in the Council's share of the net assets of the enfity. The
Council's share of the financial result of Ihe entily is recognised in fhe Comprehensive
Income Statement.

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
2872 2324
48 66
87 101
3,007 2491
7311 5,860
731 5,860
10,318 9,351
94 498
1,446 1.382
2392 1,880
181 230
181 230
2,573 2110
1,745 7241
2,305 22027
prdl 78
2,526 2,306
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Note 7
1

(@)

(b)

(©

People and relationships
Council and key management remuneration

Related party
Subsidiaries and Associates

Interest in assaciate - Whitehorse Manningham Reglonal Library Corporation (WMRLC) (Ref Nole 6.2)

Key Management Personnel

Details of persons holding the position of Councillor or other members of key management personnel at any time during the year are:

Councillors
Anna Chen Councillor
Andrew Conlon Councillor
Sophy Galbally Councillor
Geolf Gough Councillor
Dot Haynes Councillor
Michelle Klenert Councillor
Paul McLeish Councillor
Mayor
Paula Piccinini Mayor
Councillor

Mike Zafiropoulos AM Councillor

Chief Executive Officer
Andrew Day Chief Executive Officer
Other Key Management Personnel
Leigh Harrison Director City Services
Grant Jack Acting Director City Services
Rachelle Qualtrocch Director City Services
Angelo Kourambas Director City Planning and Community
Philip Lee Director Shared Services
Andrew McMaster Corporate Counsel and Group Manager
Govemance and Risk
Kerryn Paterson Group Manager People and Communicalions

Total number of Councillors

Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel
Total Key Management Personnel

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:
Short-term benefits

Long-term benefits

Termination benefits

Post employment benefits

Total

(1 July 2019 -30 June 2020)
(1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020}
(1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)
(1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)
(1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)
(1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)

{1 July 2019 - 7 November 2019)

(8 November 2019 - 30 June 2020)

1.July 2019 - 7 Novermber 2018)

[
(8 November 2019 - 30 June 2020)
(

1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)

(1 July 2019 -30 June 2020)

(1 July 2019 -7 March 2020)

(10 March 2020 - 29 March 2020)
(30 March 2020 - 30 June 2020)

{1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)
(1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020
(1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)

(1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)

2020 2019
No. No.

9 9

] 9
17 18
2020 2019
$'000 $'000
1,790 1,817
Bl 22

- 67
136 143
1,957 2,068
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Note 7 People and relationships (cont)
7.2 Related party disclosure

(a)  Transactions with related parties
During the year Manningham City Council provided confributions fo Whilehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation (WMRLC) with
the tofal value of $3.74m fowards running costs as per fhe agreement Coundil also provides accommodation to house libraries within
Manningham.

Mo ransactions other than remuneration payments, or the reimbursement of expenses as approved by Council were made wilh Related
Parties during the reporting year (2018119, nil).

(b)  Outstanding balances with related parties
No balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in refation to fransactions with related parties (2018/19, nil).

(¢) Loans to/from related parties
There were no aggregate amount of loans in existence at balance date that have been made, guaranteed or secured by the Council fo a
responsible person of the Council. or a related party of a responsible person (201819, nil)

(d)  Commitments to/from related parties
Mo commitments have been made by the Council to Related Parties during the reporting year 2019/20 (2018/19, nil).
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties
8.1  Contingent assets and liabilities

Confingent assets and confingent liabilifes are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed and if quantifiable, are measured at
nominal value. Confingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable, respectively.

(a) Contingent assets

Developer contribuled assets
Developer contributions o be received in respect of future subdivisions total $2.179m (2018/19, §4.728m).

Operating lease recewvables
Atthe reporting date, Councll had the following operating leases for the lease of Council ewned land and buildings:

These properfies held under lease have ining non cancellable lease term of between 1 and 35 years annual rental reviews,
eifher by fixed percentage or CPI annually.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating lease as the end of year are as follow

2020 2019
§'000 §000

Mot later than one year 1,433 1,671
Later than one year and nof later than five years 6,877 7021
Later than five years 7629 6,912
15939 17,610

{b)  Contingent liabilities

General

Council controls large areas of public open space, provides general and personal semvices o residents, visitors and ratepayers, has
responsibilities and regulatory authorities including the issue of permits and approvals, and controls significant bulldings and infrastructure
assels. Councilis involved from fime to fime in various claims incidental o the ordinary course of business including claims for damages
relafing fo its services.

Council's Risk Management Plan includes securing insurance to cover insurable risks 1o limit exposure to iabilites arising from actions of
the Council or its Officers where itis appropriate to do so.

Bank guarantees issues
Council is responsible for the following bank guarantee:
Department of Primary Industries for §150,000 in connection with Extractive Indusiry Licence No. 54-1.

Building cladding
The impact en Council for building cladding rectfication werks on Council's own buildings is being assessed.

Liability mutual insurance
Council is a participant of the MAV Liability Mutual Insurance {LM[) Scheme. The LMI scheme provides public liability and prefessional
indemnity insurance cover. The LMI's Deed of Establishment allows for a call on each member should there be an insufficiency of capital
for an insurance year which has an overall financial deficit. The deficit amount can be collected through this call and each member's
liability for the amount is in direct proportion to their contribution for thal year against the overall contribution pool. Atreporfing date Counil
had notbeen advised of call

Superannuation contribution

Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme, matiers relating 1o this potenfial obligation are oullined in MNote
9.3, As a result of the volatiity in financial markets, the likelihood of making such contributions in future periods exists. At this peint in
fime, itis not known if additional contribufiens will be required, their iming or potential amount.
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8.2

8.3

(a)

(b)

Managing uncertainties (cont.)
Change in accounting standards

The following new Australian Accounting Standards (AAS's) have been issued that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2020 reporfing
period. Council has assessed these pending standards and has identified the following potential Impacts will flow from the application of
these standards in future reporing periods

AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors (AASB 1059] (applies 2020/21 for LG Sector)

AASE 1059 addiesses the accounting for & service concession arrangement by a grantor that is a public sector enlity by prescribing the
accounting for the arangement from the grantor's perspeciive. It requires the grantor to

- recognise & service concession asset constructed, developed or acquired from a third party by the operator, including an upgrade to an
existing asset of the grantor, when the grantor controls the asset;

- reclassify an exisiing assel {ncluding r ly unrecognised identifiable i ible assets and land under roads) as a
service concession assel when it meets the criteria for recognition as a service concession asset,

- inifially measure a service ion assel tructed, developed or acquired by the operator or reclassified by the grantor at current
replacement cost in accordance with the cost approach fo fair value in AASE 13 Fair Value Measurement. Subsequent to the inifial
recognilion of reclassification of the assel, the service concession assel is accounted for in accordance with AASB 116 Propedy, Plant
and Equipment or A4SB 138 Infangible Assets, as appropriate, excepl as specified AASB 1059;

‘recognise & corresponding liability measured initially t the fair value (current replacement cosf) of the service concession asset, adjusted
for any other consideration between the grantor and the operator; and

- disclose sufficient information fo enable users of financial statements to understand the nature, amount, iming and uncertainty of assets,
liabilities, revenue and cash flows arising from service concession amangements.

Based on the Council's current assessmen, there is expected 1o be no impact en the ransactions and balances recognised in the financial
statements as the Council is not a grantor in a service concession amangement.

AASB 2018-T Amendments to Australian At ing Standards - Definition of Material (applies 2020/21 for LG Sector)

The Standard principally amends AASE 101 Presentabion of Financial Stah ts and AASE 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors . The amendments refine the definifion of material in AASB 101. The amendments clarify the definition of
material and its applicaion by improving the wording and aligning the definifion across A4SE Standards and other publicafions. The
impacts on the local govemment seclor are expected to be minimal.

AASB 20191 to lan Ac ing - References to the Conceptual Framework (applies 2020/21 for LG
Sector)
This Standard sets out amendments fo Australian A fing Standard jons and other p is to reflect the issuance

of the Conceplual Framework for Financial Reporfing (Conceptual Fram;zwmti by the AASE. The impacts on the local govemment sector
are expected o be minimal

Financial instruments

Objectives and policies

The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assels, ferm deposits, 1 statutory receivables), payables
(excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Deails of the significant accounting policies and methods adopled, including the
criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of
financial asset, financial iability and equity instrument s disclosed in the notes of the financial stalements. Risk managementis carried out
by senior management under policies approved by the Councll. These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure to
Council and appropriate procedures, contiols and risk minimisation

uakl bl

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
The Council's exposures to market risk is primarily through inferest rate risk with insignificant exposure to ofher price risks and no
exposure fo foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interestrate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market inferest rates, Interest rate risk arises from interest bearing financial assels and labilitles. Interest bearing assets are
predominantly short term liquid assets. As at 30 June 2020 Council had no long ferm loans or borrowings and is therefore not exposed to
interest rate risk on these classes of financial liahilities.

Interestrale risk on financial assets are managed through Gouncil's investment policy which requires the investment of suiplus funds only
with financial instituions approved under the section 143 of the Local Gevemment Act 1989. The Council's investment policy provides for
investment resfrictions such as investment placement with authorised deposit taking insfitutions (ADIs), placement according to Standard
and Poor's credit ratings for investment insfitut slaging of i { durafion, and for the regular monitering of investment

i and i

credit ratings.
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8.3  Financial instruments (cont.)

b} Marketrisk (cont.)

.

There has been no significant change in the Council's exp L orils
the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporfing period.

, policies and p for ing interest rate risk or

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's year end result

(e} Creditrisk
Credit risk is the risk that a contracting enfity will not complete ts obligations under a financial instrument and cause Council to make &
financial loss. Council has exposure to credit risk on all financial assets included in the balance sheet The maximum exposure to credit
risk at balance date in relation fo each class of recognised financial assetis represented by the carrying amount of that financial asset.

Council manages credit risk exposure through the application of debtor management policies that include arrangement for the imely
collection of debis, escalation of recovery acions, and monitoring of debt collection performance. Council also managed credif risk
exposure through the application of security bonds and provisions of the Local Government Act 1989 that permit the classification of
cerlain debis as charges against property.

Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and government sectors. Credit risk
associated with the council's financial assels is minimal because the main debtor is secured by a charge over the rateable property.

There are no malerial financial assels which are individually determined lo be impaired

Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheel, such as when council provide a
quarantee for another party. Details of our contingent liabilifies are disclosed in Note 8.1(b)

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk at the reperting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for
impairment of those assels, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. Council does not hold any collateral.

(d}  Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk includes the risk thai, as a result of council's operafional liquidity requirements it will not have sufficient funds fo sellle a
transaction when required or will be forced o sell a financial assel al below value or may be unable fo setfle or recover a financial asset

To miligate liquidity risk the entity has developed long term financial management stralegies conlaining liquidity and cash flow targets, and
reqularly monitors budget performance and cash flows against forecasts. The enfity has esfablished access fo overdraft facilifies.

Council's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed on the face of the balance sheet
and the amounts related 1o any financial guaraniees disclosed in Nofe 8.1(k), and is deemed insignificant based on prior periods data and
curent assessment of risk.

There has been no significant change in Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing liquidity risk or the
methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporfing period.

\With the exceplion of borrowings, all financial liabiliies are expected to be setled within normal lerms of ade. Detalls of the makurity
profile for borrowings are disclosed at Note 5.4,

Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value

Council's exposure to liguidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data, cash flow and liquidity forecasts, and current
assessment of risk.

(e)  Sensitivity disclosure analysis
Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and s lge and experience of the
financial markets, Councll helieves a parallel shift of +0.25% and -0.25% in market inferest rates from year-end rales of 0.25% are
‘reasonably possible” over the next 12 months.

S | lad

These movements will not have a malerial impact on the valuation of Council's financial assels and liabilites, nor will they have a material
impact on the results of Council's operations.
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Managing uncertainties (cont.)

Fair value measurement

Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amount of financial instruments reflect thelr fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

Council's financial assets and liabilites are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, Council's financial assets and labiliies
are measured al amortised cost

Council measures cerfain assets and liabilifies at fair value where required or permitied by Australian Accounfing Standards. AASE 13 Fair

value measurement, aims fo improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing 2 definition of fair value and 2 single source of fair
value tand disclosure requi s for use across Austialian Accounting Standards

AASE 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received lo sell an assel or paid fo wransfer & liability in an orderly ransaction
between markel participants at the measurement date. Fair value under AASE 13 is an exit price regardless of vhether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation fechnigue.

Al assets and liabiliies for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categerised vithin the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is signi 1o the fair value as a whole:

Level | — Queted (unadjusted) markel prices in active markets for idenfical assels or abililies

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant fo the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable, and

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant fo the fair value measurement is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabiliies en the basis of the nafure, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

In addition, Council defermines whether fransfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant o the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Revaluation

Subsequent fo the initial recognifion of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, are measurad at their fair
value, being the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly fransaction between market
participants at the measurement date. At balance date, the Council reviewed the canying value of the individual classes of assels
measured at fair value to ensure that each assel materially approximated its fair value. Where the carrying value materially differed from
the fair value at balance date, the class of asset was revalued.

Fair value valuafions are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation hierarchy will only oceur if an
external change in the restiictions or imitations of use on an assetresultin changes fo the permissible or practical highest and best use of
the asset. Further defails regarding the fair value hierarchy are disclosed at Note 6.1, Property, infrastructure, plant, equipment and other
fived assets.

In addition, Council undentakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings, and infrastiuciure assels on a reqular basis ranging from 1 10 3
years. The valuation is performed either by experienced Council officers or independent experts.

Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly 1o the assel revaluation reserve excepl lo the extent thal
an increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense in which case the increment
is recognised as revenue up to the amount of the expense. Revaluafion decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior
increments are included in the asset revaluation reserve for that class of assetin which case the decrement is faken fo the reserve fo the
extent of the remaining increments. Within the same class of assels, reval increments and d wilhin the year are offsel

Impairment of assefs

At each reporfing date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets fo defermine whether there is any indicafion that these assels
have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs
1o sell and value in use, is compared to the asset's camying value. Value in use is the depreciated replacement cost. Any excess of the
assels carrying value over its recoverable amount is exp d to the comprehensive income unless the asset is carried af the
revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised directly against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of
assel fo the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same class of asset.
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8.5  Events occurring after balance date
The COVID-19 pandemic has created unprecedented i inty. Actual ic events and condifions in the future may be
materially different from those estimated by Manningham City Council at the reporting date. As responses by government continue to
evalve, management recognises thatitis difficult to reliably estimate with any degree of certainty the potential impact of the pandemic after
the reporfing date on Manningham City Council, its operafions, its future results and financial position.

The Victorian Government announced a State of Disaster on 2 August 2020 and “Stage 47 restrictions were applied to Metropolitan
Melbourne, which includes the City of Manningham. This event does not affect amounts recognised in the 2019-20 financial statements.

The introduction of Stage 4 restrictions has had further implications for Council services and facilities beyond those already affected by the
previous Stage 3 resticions. Several of Counclls services have now been or continued 1o be closed including Council's recreafion, leisure
and communily facilifies including Aquarena, stadiums, pavilions, libraries, community centres, the function cenire, the Civic Centre and
MC2.

Council's 2020-21 Adopled Budget includes esimated impacts on revenue and expenditure streams under Stage 3 resticfions for the first
quarter of 2020-21. The budgeted financial impact on Council Services is $2.4 million in 2020-21. The impactis primarily in User Fees and
Statutory Fees and Charges and cosl increases malnly due to the temporary closure of Councll facilities.

As part of Stage 3 restrictions Council developed a targeted COVID-1% Community financial relief package in April 2020 which has effect
over both the 2019-20 and 2020-21 financial years. The relief package in 2020-21 is $3.0 millien and is reflected in the 202021 budget.
The package includes a range of iniiatives designed 1o ease the financial burden on residents, local busi and ity and
sporting groups.

Council continues lo closely monilor and review the financial impacts of COVID-19 on Council's operaling budgel

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which have significantly affected or may affect the
operafions of Manningham City Council, the results of the operations or the state of affairs of Manningham City Council in future financial
years.
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Note 3
9.1

(a)

Other matters
Reserves
Asset revaluation reserves

2020

Property
Land
Buildings

Plant, equipment and other fixed assets
Plant, machinery and equipment

Fixlures, fittings and furniture

Computers and telecommunications
Artworks

Infrastructure

Roads

Bridges

Footpaths and cycleways

Off street car parks

Drainage

Parks, open space and streetscapes

2019

Property
Land
Buildings

Plant, equipment and other fixed assets
Plant, machinery and equipment

Fixtures, fittings and furniture

Computers and lelecommunications
Artworks

Infrastructure

Roads

Bridges

Footpaths and cycleways

Off street car parks

Drainage

Parks, open space and streetscapes

Total

The assel revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of Council's assefs over time

Balance at Realised Balance at
beginning of Increment! Revaluation  end of reporting
reporting year (decrement) Reserve year
$'000 §'000 §'000 $'000
1,052,469 (65,702) 40 986,807
52,847 (5.440) (336) 47,011
1,105,316 (71.,142) (296) 1.033,878
19 19
1,006 - - 1,006
75 - - 75
887 - - 887
1,987 1,987
110,473 5,642 - 116,115
3,419 2,020 - 5,439
28,728 115 28,843
6,312 (458) - 5,854
166,038 2,902 - 168,941
206 - - 205
315,176 10,221 325,397
1,422,479 (60,921) (296) 1,361,262
Balance at Realised Balance at
beginning of Increment Revaluation end of reporting
reporting year (decrement) Reserve year
$'000 §'000 §'000 $'000
1,163,966 (107.985) (3,512) 1,052,469
50,331 2516 - 52,847
1,214,297 (105,469) {3.512) 1,105,316
19 - - 19
1,006 1,006
75 5
887 887
1,987 - - 1,987
99,959 10,514 110,473
2,034 1,385 3419
27,944 784 - 28,728
5,291 1.021 6,312
150,949 15,090 166,039
205 - - 205
286,382 28,794 315,176
1,502,666 (76,675) (3,512) 1,422,479
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9.1 Reserves (cont)

(b)  Other reserves

Balance at Transfer from Transfer to Balance at
beginning of accumulated accumulated end of reporting
2020 reporting year surplus surplus year
§'000 §'000 $'000 §'000
Resort and recreation reserve () 9,227 (4,353) 8615 13,489
Doncaster Hill activity centre reserve (b) - (158) 955 797
Family day care workcover levy reserve (c) - - - -
Total 9,227 (4.511) 9,570 14,286
Balance at Transfer from Transfer to Balance at
beginning of accumulated accumulated end of reporting
2019 reporting year surplus surplus year
$'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
Resort and recreation reserve (a) 4970 (2,107) 6,364 9227
Doncaster Hill activity centre reserve (b) - - - -
Family day care workcover levy reserve (c) 196 (196) - -
Total 5,166 12,303) 6,364 9,227

{a) The Resort and recreation reserve was established fo control confributions received from developers that will, upon completion of
developments be ulilised lo develop recreation and other facilities for residents in the respective development areas,

{b) The Doncaster Hil activity cenfre reserve was established fo confrol confributions levied on developers under the Doncaster Hil
Development Confributions Plan Overlay (DCPO) and funds will be ufilised to develop social and community infrastructure in accordance
with the conditions contained in the DCPO.

(c) The Family day care Workcover levy reserve was established fo control funds collected from family day care user charges fo assist in
defraying the cost of potential claims for Workcover by family day care providers. Council discontinued this service in 2008/10. No claims
have been received since the discontinuance of this service in 2009/10. The reserve has been closed.
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9.2

9.3

2020 2019

$'000 $'000
Other matters (cont.)
Reconciliation of cash flows
Surplus for the year 26,328 29152
Depreciation/amorisation 23,946 21,640
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, infrastructure 1,585 (96)
Confributed assels (8,324) (7,585)
Share of gain from associate (221) (78)
Adjustment for work in progress write-off to other expenses 5 997
Change in assets and liabilities
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (2.279) 613)
{Increase)idecrease in olher assets 2194 (993)
Increase/(decrease) in income received in advance 1,403 (47)
Increase/{decrease) in rade and other payables 832 (2.931)
(Decrease)increase in other assets and liabilities 1682 309
{Increase)idecrease in provisions 7 276
Adjustment for grant recelved in prior year spent in current year (228) -
Net cash provided by operaling activities 46,174 40,031

Superannuation

Manningham City Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees fo the Local
Authorities Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and defined benefit, each of
which is funded differently. Obligations for confributions to the Fund are recognised as an expense in Comprehensive Income Slatement
when they are made or due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation categories, Vision MySuper/Vision Super Saver, receives both employer and employee contributions on a
progressive basis. Employer confribufions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee eamings (for the year ended 30 June
2020 this was 9.5% as required under Superannuation Guarantee legislation) (SG).

Defined Benefit
Manningham City Council does not use defined benefit zccounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit
category. This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category s a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan.

There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilibes, assets or cosls between the participating employers as the defined benefit
obligation is 2 floating obligation between the participating employers and the only fime thal the aggregate obligation is allocated fo specific
employers is when a call is made. As a result, the level of participation of Manningham City Council in fhe Fund cannet be measured as a
percentage compared with other parficipating employers. Therefore, the Acfuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs
between employers for fhe purposes of A48B 119.

Funding arrangements
Manningham City Council makes employer contributions to the defined benefit calegory of the Fund at rates determined by the Trustee on
the advice of the Fund's Actuary.

Atriennial actuarial review is currently underway for the Defined Benefit category as at 30 June 2020 and is expected to be completed by
31 December 2020.

As at 30 June 2019, an interim actuarial investigation was held as the Fund pravides lifetime pensions in the Defined Benefit category. The
vested benefitindex (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which Manningham City Council is a contributing employer was 107.1%. The
financial assumptions used fo calculated the VBI were:

et investment retums 6.0%pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price inflaion (CPI) 20% pa

“ision Super has advised that the actual VBI as at 30 June 2020 was 104 6%

The VB Is to be used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VEI was above 100%, the acluarial investigation determined the
defined benefit category was in a safisfactory financial positon and that no change was necessary to the defined benefit category's funding
arrangements from prior years.
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9.3 Superannuation (cont)
Employer contributions

Regular contributions

On the basis of the results of the 2018 interim actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund's Actuary, Manningham City Council makes
employer contributions to the Fund's Defined Benefit cateqgory at rates determined by the Fund's Trustee. For the year ended 30 June
2020, this rate was 9.5% of members' salaries (9.5% in 2018/19). This rate will increase in line with any increase to the Superannuation
Guarantee {SG) contribution rate.

In addition, Manningham City Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of retrenchment
above the funded resignation or retirement benefit

Funding calls

If the Defined Benefit category is in an unsatisfactory financial position at an acluarial investigation or the Defined Benefit calegory's VBI is
below its shortfall limit at any time other than the dale of the acluarial investigation. the Defined Benefit category has a shortfall for the
purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is required to put a plan in place so that the shartfall is fully funded within three years of the shortfall
oceurring. The Fund monitors its VBI on & quarterly basis and the Fund has sel its shortfall limit at 97%.

In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shortfall based on the above requirement, Manningham City Council are
required to make an employer confribution to cover the shortfall.

Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apportioned between the participating employers based on the pre-1 July 1993 and
post-30 June 1993 service liabillies of the Fund's Defined Benefil category, tagether with the employer's payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the
dale the shortfall has been calculaled,

Due to the nature of the confractual obligations between the parlicpating employers and the Fund, and that the Fund includes lifefime
pensioners and their reversionary beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up.

If there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be returmed to the participating employers.

In the event that a participating employer is wound-up, the defined benefit cbligations of that employer will be fransferred fo that employer's
SUCCeSSOT.

The 2019 interim actuarial investigation surplus amounts

An actuarial investigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit category of which Manningham City Council is a confributing
employer. Generally, a full actuarial investigation conducted every three years and inferim actuanal investigations are conducled for each
intervening year. An interim investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2019 and a full actuarial investigation was conducted as at 30 June
2017

The Fund's actuarial investigations idenfified the following for the Defined Benefit category of which Manningham City Council is a
confributing employer:

2019 m7

Sm $m

« A VBl surplus 1913 69.8
- /1 total service liability surplus 2334 1935
« A discounted accrued benefits surplus 256.7 2288

The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund's assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed the vested benefifs that
the defined benefit members would have been enfitied to if they had all exited on 30 June 2019,

The total service liability surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund's Defined Benefit category plus expecled future
confributions exceeds fhe value of expected future benefits and expenses as at 30 June 2019

The discounted accrued benefit surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund's Defined Benefit category exceeds the
value of benefils payable in the future bul accrued in respect of service lo 30 June 2019,

Wanningham City Council was notified of the 30 Junie 2019 VBI during August 2019 (2018 August 2018).
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9.3 Superannuation (cont)

The 2020 triennial actuarial investigation
A triennial actuarial investigation is being conducled for the Fund's position as at 30 June 2020. Itis anticipated that this actuarial

Investigation will be completed by 31 December 2020,

Confributions by Council {excluding any unfunded liability payments) to the above superannuation plans for the financial year ended 30
June 2020 are defalled below:

2020 2019

Scheme Type of Scheme Rate $'000 $'000
Vislon super Defined benefit 9.50% 279 304
Vision super Accumulation fund 9.50% 2,265 2,305
Other Funds Accumuiation fund 9.50% 1628 1,455

In addition to the above contributions, Manningham City Councl has paid unfunded liability payments to Vision Super lotalling $0 during the
2019/20 year (2018/19 $0)

There were £0 confributions outstanding and $0 loans issued from or fo the above schemes as at 30 June 2020.

The expectad contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2021 is $254,000.
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Note 10

Change in accounting policy

Council has adopled AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, AASB 16 Leases and AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Enfities,
from 1 July 2019. This has resufted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments fo the amounts recognised in the financial
slalements.

Due to the transition methads chosen by Council in applying these standards, comparalive information throughout these financial statements
has not been restated to reflect the requirements of the new standards except in relation to contracts that were not complete at 1 July 2019,
The transition impact of these are detalled below.

a) AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with C s -Impact of Adopti

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers applies o revenue transactions where Council provides services or goods under
confractual arrangements.

Council adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers using the modified (cumulative catch up) method. Revenue for 2019 as
reported under AASE 118 Revenue is not adjusted, because the new standard is only applied from the date of initial application.

AASB 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers requires revenue from contracts with customers to be recognised as Council safisfies the
performance obligations under the contract

b) AASB 16 Leases

AASB 16 Leases requires right of use assets and related liabilities for all lease agreements fo be recognised on the balance sheet. The
Statement of Comprehensive Income is to separately recognise the amortisation of the right of use asset, and the finance costs relating to
the lease. Council has elecied fo adopt the medified {cumulative catch up) method under the standard and as such has not adjusted 2019
disclosures. The fransition impact of these are detailed below.

c) AASE 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

AASB 1058 Income of Mot-for-Profit Entities applies to income received where no contract is in place. This includes statutory charges (such
as rates) as well as most grant agreements.

Council adopted AASE 1058 Income of Not-or-Profit Entities using the modified (cumulative catch up) method. Income for 2019 is not
adjusted, because the new slandard is only applied from the date of inilial application.

AASB 1058 Income of Mot-for-Profit Entities requires income to be recognised as Council safisfies the performance obligations under the
contract

d) Transition impacts

The following table summarises the impact of transition to the new standards on refained eamings at 1 July 2019

2019

§'000
Relained eamings at 30 June 2019 138,643
Revenue adjustment -impact of AASB 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers -
Income Adjustment - impact of AASB 1038 Income of Not-for-Profit Enfities (6S7)
Retained eamings at 1 July 2019 137,946

Council adopted the practical expedient of deeming the lease asset to be equal in value to the lease liability at 1 July 2019. As such there
was na impact on retained eamings on the adoplion of AASE 16 Leases
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The following fable summarises the impact of transition o the new standards on reained eamings al 1 July 2019

2019

$'000
Retained eamings at 30 June 2019 738,643
Revenue adjustment -impact of A4SB 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers -
Income Adjustment - impact of AASE 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (63T)
Relained eamings at 1 July 2019 737,946

Council adopted the practical expedient of deeming fhe lease asset to be equal in value fo the lease liability at 1 July 2019 As such there
was no impact on retained eamings on the adoption of AASB 16 Leases .

The following table summarises the impacts of fransition to the new standards on Council's balanice sheet for the year ending 30 June 2018,

As reported 30
June 2018 Adjustments Post adoption
$'000 $'000 $'000
Assets
Right of use assets - 3,181 3181
Grants receivable - - -
- 3,181 3,181
Liabilities
Uneamed income - operafing grants - - -
Uneamed income - capital grants - 697 697
Lease liability - current - 495 495
Lease liability - non-current - 2,686 2,686
- 3,878 3,878

240
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Impact of COVID-19 pandemic on Council operations
and the 2019/20 Financial Report

Note 11

Impact of COVID-19 pandemic on Council operations and the 2019/20 Financial Report

On 30 January 2020, COVID-19 was declared 1o be & global pandemic by the World Health Organisalion. Since then, various measures
have been implemented by all three levels of Government in Australia to reduce the spread of COVID-19. This crisis and measures taken fo
mitigate it has impacted council operations in a number of areas during the financial year ended 30 June 2020.

In response to a decrease in demand and government directives amidst the COVID-19 outbreak, a number of Council services were
reduced or closed including our recreation, leisure and community faciliies including Aguarena, stadiums, pavilions, libraries, community
cenfres, the function centre, the Clvic Centre and MC2. These closures resulted in a decrease in Councll revenue and ofher unbudgeted
costs. The overall net financial impact on council services of COVID-19 in 201%/20 was $2.45 million.

In 201920 Council also provided a range of COVID-19 community financial relief measures including

- Fourth quarter rate instalment payment - extension of due date to 30 June 2020, without incurring any penalty inferest and the confinued
ability for rate payers to apply for special rate repayment arrangements for those qualifying on financial hardship grounds. Deferral of the due
date and the financial impact of COVID-19 on rate payers has resulfed in the rates debtor balance at 30 June 2020 being $2.07 million
higher compared to last year.

« Introduction of a COVID-19 Community Reliet Fund to provide funding to sectors of the community in need,

« Rent and lease relief, and ufility subsidies, for sporting clubs and community groups who use Council facilities. The relief measures above
amounted to $0.49 million in 2019/20.

Council's properly assels have been valued as at 30 June 2020. The state of the property market within the review period is most influenced
by the recent COVID-19 pandemic and resuling declaration of a State of Emergency.

Council's certified valuers have placed more weight on Ihe sales that occurred in the most recent months from February to June 2020, when
sefting the values per square mefre for this year as at 30 June 2020. Council's cerfified valuers have determined that the sales evidence in
this period has provided reliable observations on how the property market has performed during the COVID-19 pandemic period.

Council's infrastructure assets have been valued as at 30 June 2020. The market that the infrastructure assets are transacted in is being
impacted by the uncerlainty that the COVID-19 pandemic has caused.

Council continues to closely monitor the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and work with the community through these challenging times.

Item 5.1

Attachment 1

Page 246



COUNCIL AGENDA 13 OCTOBER 2020

Performance
statement

Item 5.1 Attachment 1 Page 247




COUNCIL AGENDA 13 OCTOBER 2020

Description of municipality

Certification of the performance statement

Auditor General's report

Other information

Sustainable capacity indicators

Service performance indicators

Financial performance indicators

Iltem 5.1 Attachment 1 Page 248




COUNCIL AGENDA 13 OCTOBER 2020

Manningham Council
Performance Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Manningham City Council is located in Melbourne’s north-eastern
suburbs, commencing with its western boundary in Bulleen, 12
kilometres from the Melbourne CBD and extending to Wonga Park
at its eastern extremity, 32 kilometres from the CBD. The City is
bounded by the Yarra River, Banyule City and Nillumbik Shire in the
north, Yarra Ranges Shire in the east, Koonung Creek, Maroondah
City and the Cities of Whitehorse and Boroondara in the south and
Banyule City and the Yarra River in the west.

The City encompasses a total land area of 114 As at 30 June 2020, our estimated population

square kilometres, including a substantial was 127,573 people across the City,

17% green open spaces. The nonurban areas including the suburbs of Bulleen, Doncaster,

include a large tract of the Creen Wedge, and  Doncaster East, Donvale, Nunawading

are used mainly for rural residential living, (part), Park Orchards, Ringwood North

conservation and small scale agriculture. [part), Templestowe, Templestowe Lower,
Warrandyte, Warrandyte South and Wonga
Park (part).
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Certification of the
Performance Statement

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 and the
Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 .

L

Jon Gorst (BCom, CPA)
Principal Accounting Officer
15 September 2020
Doncaster

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the Manningham City Council for the year ended 30 June 2020 presents fairly the
results of Council's performance in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 .

The perfermance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and resulls in relation to service performance, financial
performance and sustainable capacity

Al the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the performance statement lo be misleading
or inaccurate

We have been autherised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 to certify this performance
statement in its final form.

Paul McLeish Mike Zafiropoulos AM Andrew Day

Mayor Deputy Mayor Chief Executive Officer
15 September 2020 15 September 2020 15 September 2020
Doncaster Doncaster Doncaster
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Auditor
General's report

VAGO

Independent Auditor’s Report Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

To the Councillors of Manningham City Council

Opinion | have audited the accompanying performance statement of Manningham City
Council (the council) which comprises the:

. description of municipality for the year ended 30 June 2020

. sustainable capacity indicators for the year ended 30 June 2020

. service performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2020
. financial performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2020
. notes to the performance statement and

. the certification of the performance statement.

In my opinion, the performance statement presents fairly, in all material
respects, the performance of the council for the year ended 30 June 2020 in
accordance with the performance reporting requirements of Part 6 of the
Local Government Act 1989.

Basis for Opinion | have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which
incorporates the Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements. | further
describe my responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the performance statement section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. | and my staff
are independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of
the performance statement in Victoria and have also fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my opinion,

Councillors’ The Councillors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
responsibilities for the  performance statement in accordance with the performance reporting

performance requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and for such internal control
statement as the Councillors determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair

presentation of the statement of performance that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion
responsibilities for the  ON the performance statement based on the audit. My objectives for the audit
audit of the are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance
performance statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to
statement fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
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Engagements will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of this performance

statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance

Engagements, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of performance
statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the council’s internal control

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
performance statement, including the disclosures, and whether
performance statement represents the underlying events and results in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

MELBOURNE
23 September 2020

Safichu Chiimmar
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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Other information

For the year ended 30 June 2020

1. Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report. The performance statement
includes the resulls of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service performance and financial performance indicators and
measures together with a description of the municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the results. This
statement has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and Local Govermnment
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 .

Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on accounting bases consistent with
those reported in the financial statements. The other results are based on information drawn from Council information
systems or from third parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics).

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the prescribed financial performance
indicators and measures, the results forecast by the Council's strategic resource plan. The Local Government (Planning
and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material vanations in the results contained in the
performance statement. Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each indicator and measure and
explanations have not been provided for vanations below the materiality thresholds unless the vanance is considered to
be material because of its nature.

The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by Council in its strategic resource plan on
28 July 2020 and which farms part of the council plan. The strategic resource plan includes estimates based on key
assumptions about the future that were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the
long term. Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the general purpose financial statements
The strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting Council.

2. Impact of COVID-19 on Council operations

QOn 30 January 2020, COVID-19 was declared to be a global pandemic by the World Health Organisation. Since then,
various measures have been implemented by all three levels of Government in Australia to reduce the spread of COVID-
19. This crisis and measures taken to mitigate it has impacted council operations in a number of areas during the
financial year ended 30 June 2020.

In response to a decrease in demand and government directives amidst the COVID-19 outbreak, a number of Council
services were reduced or closed including our recreation, leisure and community facilities including Aquarena, stadiums,
pavilions, libraries, community centres, the function centre, the Civic Centre and MC2. These closures resulted in a
decrease in Council revenue and other unbudgeted costs. The overall net financial impact on council services of COVID-
19 in 2019/20 was $2.45 million.

In 2019/20 Council also provided a range of COVID-19 community financial relief measures including:

+ Fourth quarter rate instalment payment - extension of due date to 30 June 2020, without incurring any penalty interest
and the continued ability for rate payers to apply for special rate repayment arrangements for those qualifying on financial
hardship grounds.

+ Introduction of a COVID-19 Community Relief Fund to provide funding to sectors of the community in need.

+ Rent and lease relief, and utility subsidies, for sporting clubs and community groups who use Council facilities.

The relief measures above amounted to $0.49 million in 2019/20.

Council continues to closely monitor the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and work with the community through these
challenging times. Refer to the Annual Financial Report for further information
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Sustainable Capacity Indicators

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Indicator { measure

[formula] 2017 20 20 2020 Comments - Material Vari
Population
o] Expenses per head of municipal 92018 91367 595172  $996.46 Over the period, Council manages to deliver high-quality
population services within a responsible budget at an average of $945
[Total expenses / Municipal per head of municipal population. This demonstrates thal
population] Council Is committed to provide core services and

community facilities in a cost effective way.
c2 Infrastructure per head of municipal ~ $6,39878 $6,45099 $6,802.18 $6,856.92 Manningham is committed to maintain, renew and upgrade

population infrastructure asseis and each year allocates a minimum of
[Value of infrastructure / Municipal 33% of rate revenue in addition to other funding sources to
population] fund the capital works program.

C3 Population density per length af 201.87 205.81 205.83 209.14 Manningham has a lower population density per km of road
road than similar councils. The maintenance and upgrade of local
[Municipal population / Kilometres road network is funded by an ongoing capital works program
of local roads) and maintenance funds
‘Own-source revenue

Cc4 Own-source revenue per head of 591871 591010 595457  $948.91 The result reflects Manningham's continual ability to
municipal population generate revenue from new and different sources to ensure
[Own-source revenue ¢ Municipal ongoing financial sustainability.
population]

Recurrent grants

Cch Recurrent grants per head of $117.47  $10933  $106.30  $101.69 Over the course of 4 years there is a decrease in average
municipal population government grants per head of municipal population leaving
[Recurrent grants / Municipal Council to heavily rely on rales revenue to fund community
population] services and infrastructure needs
Disadvantage

CB Relative Socio-Economic 10.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 Manningham has a low level of socio-economic
Disadvantage disadvantage relative to many councils. Dala released from
[Index of Relative Secio-Economic the masl recent census (2016) indicates thal the level of
Disadvantage by decile] disadvantage has increased in a few areas leading to a

reduction in this indicator by 1 decile compared to the last
census publication

Workforce fumover

c7 Percentage of staff turnover MI7% 9.92% 9.62% 11.61% Workforce tumover of 11.61% represents a small increase
[Mumber of permanent staff on the previous year but is still similar to the longer term
resignations and terminations / average.

Average number of permanent staff
for the financial year] x100

Definitions

"adjusted underlying revenue” means total income cther than:

{a} non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and

(b} non-monetary asset contributions; and

{c) confributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above “infrastructure™ means non-current property, plant and equipment
excluding land

“local road” means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road autharity under the Road Management Act 2004

“population” means the resident population estimated by council

"own-source revenue” means adjusted underlying revenue olher than revenue that is not under the control of cwncul (including government grants)

“relative socio-economic disadvantage”, in relation to a municipality, means the relative i as a decile for the relevant
financial year, of the area in which the municipality is located according o the Index of Relative Secio-Econamic Dlsadvantage (Catalogue Mumber 2033.0.55.001)
of SEIFA "SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time 1o time by the Australian Bureau of Statistics on its Inermel website
"unrestricted cash” means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash
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Service Performance indicators

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Service/indicator/measure 2017 2018 2019 2020 Comments

Aquatic Facilities
Utilisation

AF6  Utilisation of aguatic facilities 3.97 Utilisation of the Aguatic facility significantly decreased
[Mumber of visits to aqualic facilities compared to 2018-19 with the facility closed between Mid-
[ Municipal population] March to June due to COVID-19. There was a restricted re-
opening for a small portion of May/June however utilisation
during this time was minimal
Animal Management
Health and safety
AM7  Animal management prosecutions New in 100% Manningham Council pursues prosecutions to ensure
[Number of successiul animal 2020 responsible pet ownership and community safety. This is a
management prosecutions] new indicator for 2019-20
Food Safety
Health and safety
F34  Crtical and major non-compliance 100.00% 97.48% Manningham is vigilant in ensuring food premises are
outcome neotifications followed up after a major or critical non-compliance is
[Number of critical non-compliance observed. Seven premises were followed up outside of the
outcome nofifications and major non- reporting period. This is a slight decline from last year where
compliance nofifications about a five premises were followed up outside of the reporting
food premises followed up / Number period.
of critical nen-compliance outcome
notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about a
food premises] x100
Governance
Satisfaction
G5 Satisfaction with council decisions 57.00 This indicator result is collected through a Community
[Community satisfaction rating out of Satisfaction Survey managed by the Victorian Govermnment
100 with how council has periormed Community  safisfaction with council decisions  was
in making decisions in the interest of maintained.
the community]
Libraries
Participation
LB4 Active library borrowers in 15.79% 14.30% Library participation was impacted by COVID-19 restrictions,
municipality with the libraries closed from late March and reopened with
[Number of active library borrowers reduced services from mid-June. The method of calculation
in the last three years / The sum of has changed from previous years including the range of
the population for the last three electronic collections counted,
years] x100
Maternal and Child Health (MCH)
Participation
MC4  Participation in the MCH service 76.39% 76.42% Manningham Council continues to have strong participation
[Number of children who attend the in first home visits. While every effort is taken to engage
MCH service at least once (in the new families, being a volunfary sewice, a wvery small
vear) / Number of children enrolled percentage of families reguest not to have a home visit or
in the MCH service] x100 do not to enrcl in our service at all. Since March 2020,
participation rates have decreased due to COVID-19 with
limited appointments / staggering for social distancing and
delays with appointments due 1o changes in service
delivery.
Participation
MC5  Participation in the MCH service by 94.59% 82.14% Manningham Council has experienced an increase in
Aberiginal children parlicipation based on the previous year. This indicator has
[Number of Aboriginal children who a very low number of participants so a small increase in
attend the MCH service at least participation will significantly Increase the parlicipation
ance (in the year) / Number of result
Aboriginal children enrolled in the
MCH service] x100
Roads
Satisfaction
RS Satisfaction with sealed local roads 66.00 Manningham Council has maintained a consistent rate of

[Community satisfaction rating out of
100 with how council has performed
on the condition of sealed local
roads]

community satisfaction with sealed reads across the last 2
years. This data is collected annually in a Community
Satisfaction Survey by an independent research company
on behalf of the State Government
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service/indicator/measure 2017 2018 2019 2020 Comments
Statutory Planning
Decision making

SP4  Council planning decisions upheld T097%  64.71%  52.46%  51.35% Manningham Council has had a decrease in the number of
at VCAT decisions upheld at the Victerian Civil and Administrative
[Number of VCAT decisions that did Tribunal (VCAT) from the previous year. In 2019-20, 12 of
not set aside council's decision in 18 decisions set aside were successfully negotiated at
relation to a planning application / compulsory conference or through outside negotiations with
Number of VCAT decisions in the permit applicant,
relation to planning applications|
%100
Waste Collection
Waste diversion

WC5  Kerbside collection waste diverted 53.96% 54.12% 53.24% 56.40% Manningham has seen an increase in tonnages when
from landfill compared fo 2018/19. Garden waste tonnages were
[Weight of recyclables and green significantly higher due to higher than average rainfall
organics collected from kerbside resulting in increased foliage growth.
bins / Weight of garbage,

recyclables and green organics
collected from kerbside bins] x100

Definitions

"Aberiginal child” means a child who is an Aboriginal person

"Aberiginal persen” has fhe same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2008

"active liorary borrower™ means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from the library

"annual repert’ means an annual report prepared by a council under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act

“CALD" means culturally and linguistically diverse and refers to persons born outside Australia in a country whose national language is not English

“class 1 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as class 1 food premises under section 19C of

that Act
“class 2 food premises’ means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984 | that have been declared as class 2 food premises under section 19C of
that Act
“critical nen 1plic outcome noti ion” means a nati ion received by council under section 19M(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984 | or advice given to council

by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to public health

"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road autherty under the Road Management Act 2004

"major i outcome notil ion" means a notification received by a council under section 19M(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council
by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to public health but may do so if no remedial action is taken
"MCH" means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the health and development of children within the municipality from birth until
school age

"population” means the resident population estimated by council

"“WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety incident™ means an incident relating to a council aquatic facility that is required to be notified to the Victorian WorkCover
Autherity under Part 5 of the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004
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Definitions

"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than:
{a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and
(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and

{c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above
“infrastructure” means non-current property, plant and equipment excluding land

"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road
authority under the Road Management Act 2004

"population" means the resident population estimated by council

"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not
under the control of council (including government grants)

"relative socio-economic disadvantage", in relation to a municipality, means the relative
socio-economic disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the relevant financial year, of the

area in which the municipality is lecated accerding to the Index of Relative Socio-Economic
Disadvantage (Catalogue Number 2033.0.55.001) of SEIFA "SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic
Indexes far Areas published from time to time by the Australian Bureau of Statistics on its
Internet website "unrestricted cash' means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted
cash

"Aboriginal person" has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006

"active library member" means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from the
library

"annual report" means an annual report prepared by a council under sections 131,132 and 133
of the Act

“CALD" means culturally and linguistically diverse and refers to persons born cutside Australia
in a country whose national language is not English

“class 1 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that
have been declared as class 1 food premises under section 19C of that Act

“class 2 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that
have been declared as class 2 food premises under section 19C of that Act

"Community Care Common Standards "means the Community Care Common Standards for
the delivery of HACC services, published frem time to time by the Commonwealth

"critical non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by council
under section 19N(3) ar (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council by an authorized
officer under that Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate sericus threat to public health

"food premises’ has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984

"HACC program" means the Home and Community Care program established under the
Agreement entered into for the purpose of the Home and Community Care Act 1985 of the
Commonwealth

"HACC service" means home help, personal care or ccmmunity respite provided under the
HACC program
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"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road
authority under the Road Management Act 2004

"major non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by a council
under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council by an authorized
officer under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to public
health but may do so if no remedial action is taken

"MCH" means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the
health and development of children within the municipality from birth until school age

"population" means the resident population estimated by council

"target population" has the same meaning as in the Agreement entered into for the purposes
of the Home and Community Care Act 1985 of the Commonwealth

"WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety incident' means an incident relating to a council
aquatic facility that is required to be notified to the Victorian WorkCover Authority under Part 5
of the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004

"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than
{a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and

(b) non-monetary asset contributions, and

(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to
above "adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)" means adjusted underlying revenue less total
expenditure

"asset renewal expenditure" means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an
existing asset that returns the service capability of the asset to its original capability

“current assets” has the same meaning as in the AAS "current liabilities" has the same
meaning as in the AAS

“non-current assets” means all assets other than current assets
"non-current liabilities" means all liakilities other than current liabilities

“non-recurrent grant” means a grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in a
specified manner and is not expected to be received again during the period covered by a
council's Strategic Resource Plan
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Glossary

Advisory committee

A committee that assists council with the decision-making
process and has a Councillor representative to assist with the
consultation process

Advocacy

Publicly supporting or recommending programs or services on
behalf of our community to other tiers of government or service
providers for community benefit

I Annual Report

An annual report prepared by a Council under sections 131,132
and 133 of the Local Government Act 1989

Asset expansion
expenditure

Asset expenditure type

Asset renewal
expenditure

Expenditure that extends the capacity of an existing asset to
provide benefits to new users at the same standard as is provided

to existing beneficiaries

These types of asset expenditure:
« asset renewal expenditure

« new asset expenditure

« asset upgrade expenditure

« assel expansion expenditure

Expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing
asset that returns the service capability of the asset to its original
capability

expenditure

Best value

Budget

I Asset upgrade

Capital expenditure

Expenditure that:
« enhances an existing asset to provide a higher level of service; or

« increases the life of the asset beyond its original life

State legislation that requires Council to review services to ensure

community expectations and value for money

Council's ariginally published budget detailing the projected

income, expenditure and financial position of council

The expenditure on items which are expected to produce future
economic benefits for Council with a useful life in excess of 12
maonths

I Capital improved value

The market value of the property at the date of valuation including
the value of the land and all improvements built on the land

Capital Works Program

Program of scheduled infrastructure works generally
encompassing capital works for road, drainage and building assets

I Capitalisation

The process whereby expenditure is charged to an account in the
statement of financial position rather than to an expense account

Council Plan

The four-year plan for how we will deliver our nine strategic
objectives
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Community grants

Council allocates a sum of money for our Community
Development Community Grants program as part of the annual
budget process The funding supports not for profit community
organisations in Manningham

Community Satisfaction

The survey the state government requires Councils to conduct

Survey once a year to gauge the level of community satisfaction with our
services

Cultural diversity Celebrating our community's many different cultures expressed
through language, tradition, religion, dress, arts, dance and lifestyle

COVID-12 Coronavirus disease (COVID-19) is an infectious disease caused by
a newly discovered coronavirus

Community Care Home and Community Care (HACC) and the Commaonwealth

Program Home Support programs established under Agreements entered
into with the Australian and State Covernments support pecple
who are frail, have a disability and their families

Community care service

Provides a range of services including domestic assistance,
personal care, community respite and delivered meals which
assists clients to maximise their independence in the community

Governance

Council's responsibility for the economic and ethical performance
of the municipality

Infrastructure

The stock of fixed capital equipment, including roads, public
buildings, footpaths, etc.

Key performance
indicator

A significant measure used on its own or in combination with
ather key performance indicators to monitor how well a business
is achieving its quantifiable objectives

The ratio of current assets to current liabilities as a percentage that
shows how much cash we have on hand

Local Government
Model Financial Report

The Local Covernment Model Financial Report published by the
Department from time to time including on the Department’s
website

Local law

The laws adopted by Council that prohibit, regulate and control
activities, events, practices and behaviours within Manningham

Local roads

Liquidity

The municipal road network which is maintained by Manningham
Council

Manningham Matters

The Council newsletter we deliver to all Manningham homes and
businesses which provides residents with information about local
activities.

Manningham Planning
Scheme

Outlines state and local planning policies including zones, overlays
and other provisions

Material variations

Significant changes to a development application, such as those
that impact neighbouring properties, alter the description of the
development or would affect objections to the original proposal.

Maternal and Child
Health (MCH) Service

Service provided by a Council to support the health and
development of children within the municipality from birth until
school age
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Municipal Association
of Victoria (MAV)

The lebhbying body for Victaria's 79 councils

New asset expenditure

Expenditure that creates a new asset that provides a service that
does not currently exist

Non-current assets

All assets other than current assets

I Non-recurrent grant

A grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in a
specified manner and is not expected to be received again during
the period covered by a Council's Strategic Resource Plan

North East Link Project
(NELP)

The largest road project in the state’s history, which will involve
seven years of planning, design and construction. It is the biggest
infrastructure project to affect Manningham's municipality.

I Performance indicator

A statistic identifying the extent of activity in meeting a specific
objective

Performance statement

The performance statement prepared by a Council under section
131 of the Act

Principal Accounting
Officer

The person designated by a Council to be responsible for the
financial management of the Council

Recurrent grant

A grant other than a non-recurrent grant

I Report of operations

The report outlining details of Council operations prepared under
section 131 of the Act

Reserves

Maonies set aside in the statement of financial position for specific
purposes in accordance with statutory and discretionary principles

I Revised budget

The revised budget prepared by a Council under section 128 of the Act

Risk management

A policy and process for identifying business risks and controlling
the likelihood and/or impact of a risk event occurring

I Strategy

A plan of action intended to accomplish specific objectives

Statement of Capital
Works

A statement of capital works prepared in accordance with the
Local Government Model Financial Report

Statement of Human
Resources

A statement that shows all Council staff expenditure and the
number of full time eguivalent Council staff

Sustainable

How we meet present-day needs without compromising future
generations’ ability to meet their needs

Themes

The overarching strategic objectives or focus areas of Council, as
outlined in the Council Plan

Triple bottom line

Measures community well-being by assessing the economic, social
and environmental considerations

A description of the future we aim to achieve for our city and
community

Ward

The delineation of a district within a municipality for the purposes
of administration and representation

Wellbeing

I Vision

A general term to encompass health, happiness, welfare, security,
comfort, guality of life and a sense of belonging
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Abbreviations

I AAS Australian Accounting Standard
ABS Australian Bureau of Statistics
I AMS Asset Management Strategy
CALD Culturally and Linguistically Diverse
I CEO Chief Executive Officer
Cr Councillor
I EBA Enterprise Bargaining Agreement
EMT Executive Management Team
I EO Equal Opportunity
HACC Home and Community Care
I LGPRF Local Government Performance Reporting Framewaork
MAV Municipal Association of Victoria
I MCH Maternal Child Health
NDIS National Disability Insurance Scheme
I NELP North East Link Project
OHS Occupational Health and Safety
I SBS Strategic Briefing Session
UNHCR United Nations High Commission for Refugees
I VEC Victorian Electoral Commission

Item 5.1

Attachment 1

Page 266



COUNCIL AGENDA 13 OCTOBER 2020

IndeXx

A E
Abbreviations 261 Employee code of conduct 156
Achievements 58, 86,107,121,129  Expenditure 15,16, 153
Animal management 75 E
Aquarena Aquatic and Leisure Centre 174
qu quatl I Food safety 76
Assembly of Councillors 151 .
y unetiior Fraud and corruption control 159
Asset management 167
Assets 16, 14 c
c Glossary 258
Governance 128, 140, 147,154, 169
Capital investment 17
P Governance framework 146
Carers recognition 174
H
Code of conduct 150
Committees 148 HACC 255, 261
- Healthy community 41,54, 56, 62, 66, 68, 82,
Conditions of employment 35
ey 88, 90, 92,108, 110, 122, 134, 136
Contracts 174 .
Home and Community Care 255, 261
Council meetings 142, 147,148,152
. |
Council Plan 3, 48, 50, 51, 52, 54, 62, 88,109, 121,
135,154,170, 176, 258, 264 Income 14
Council wards 25  Information privacy 176
Councillor allowances 151 L
Councillor expenses 152 .
Liabilities 16
Councillors 26, 28, 146, 151, 154, 157, . )
158 182,185 Libraries 79
COVID-19  12,14,16,18, 38, 40, 45, 147,159, 241 Liquidity 17,259
D
Decisions 147
Domestic Animal Management Plan 177

Item 5.1 Attachment 1 Page 267



COUNCIL AGENDA

13 OCTOBER 2020

M R
Management 74,154,157,162  Resilient environment 4,55, 65,70, 89,
Maternal and Child Health 78 259 90,92, 94,105,109, 110, 111, 114, 115, 118, 135, 137
Message from our Mayor 12 Reward and recognition 36
N Risk management 160, 260
Road Management Act 178
NELP 260, 261
Net worth 16 Roads 101
o S
Occupational Health and Safety 261 Senior officers 34,154
Operating position 1. Statement of Capital Works 184
Our history 24 Statutory planning 100
Qur mission 4 Strategic briefing sessions 148
Our people 24,33 Vv
Our strategic direction 4 )
Vibrant and prosperous economy 4, 66,77,
Our suburbs 25 89 91,92 94 110,112, 119,123,124, 126,127,136,
Our vision 4 137
P w
Performance statement 244 Weste 114,115,116
Planning and reporting framework 48  Welcome 3
Population 5 Well-governed council 94,110, 12,124,128,

155,136, 157,139, 145

Y

Year ahead 81,102, 116, 126, 142

Item 5.1

Attachment 1

Page 268



COUNCIL AGENDA 13 OCTOBER 2020

Thank you

Thank you for reading Manningham Council’'s Annual Report
2019/20. We hope that this report has given you a good
understanding of our achievements and performance over the
12 months from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020. We value your
feedback. You can provide this to us by contacting us.

Annual Report 2019/20 Further reading

This report is a comprehensive account of our  We encourage you to visit our website
achievements, challenges, aspirations for the manninghamvic gov.au where you can find
future and commitments to our customers information about our services, programs,
events, major initiatives, major publications
and more. On our website, you will find our
Manningham Matters publication, which
highlights the important work we do in the
community

In it, we report on our performance against
the strategic themes and goals outlined

in the Council Plan 2017-2021 and give an
analysis of our financial performance. The
report also illustrates the bhreadth and depth
of the services we are proud to deliver to the
Manningham community Where to get a copy

Hard copies of the Annual Report are
Why we have an Annual Report available from the Manningham Civic Centre,
699 Doncaster Road, Doncaster and local
libraries, or you can call 9840 9333
An electronic copy is available at
manningham.vic gov.au/annual-report

Our Annual Report is a critical tool to

inform Manningham’s residents, businesses,
employees and potential employees, Victorian
and Australian governments, peak bodies,
and community groups and organisations
about our activities, performance and future
direction.

Manningham is required under the Local
Government Act 1989 to present an Annual
Report to the Minister for Local Covernment
by 30 September each year.

Manningham Council acknowledges the Wurundjeri people as the traditional custodians of
the land now known as Manningham. We pay our respects to Wurundjeri Elders past and
present, and value their ongoing contribution to our heritage and our community
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Contact
Information

View this annual report online at
manningham.vic.gov.au/ annual-report

Getin touch

Write to us

Connect online ) _
Manningham Council

W twitter/manninghamcc PO Box 1

i facebook/manninghamCouncil Doncaster Vic 3108

Instagram/CityofManningham . .
Access our interpreter service

€ manninghamvic govau

9840 9355
€ yoursaymanningham com au L

TIEE | B S | EMnvikG | Italiano | ot | )l
Email us

@ manningham@manningham.vic.gov.au

Callus

O 039840 9333

Meet us

(B Manningham Civic Centre
699 Doncaster Road
Doncaster

fB Council Depot
Corner Blackburn and Warrandyte Roads
Doncaster East
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Manningham Council

# Manningham Council, 692 Doncaster Road, Doncaster
O 9840 9333

© manningham@manningham.vic.gov.au

€ manningham.vic.gov.au B TE | EEEEEE | EMnvikd |taliano | o= | e,

Interpreter service 9840 9355
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5.2 Record of Assembly of Councillors

File Number: IN20/573

Responsible Director:  Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: 1 Open Space and Streetscape Advisory Committee - 31
August 2020 §

2 Record of Assembly of Councillors - Strategic Briefing
Session - 8 September 2020 §

3 Record of Assembly of Councillors - Special Strategic
Briefing Session - 15 September 2020 3

4  LIT Committee - 16 September 2020

ELECTION PERIOD STATEMENT

Council may make a decision regarding the subject of this report in compliance with
Council’s Election Period Policy 2020.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Section 80A of the Local Government Act 1989 requires a record of each meeting that
constitutes an Assembly of Councillors to be reported to an ordinary meeting of Council
and those records are to be incorporated into the minutes of the Council Meeting.

1. RECOMMENDATION

That Council note the Records of Assemblies for the following meetings and that
the records be incorporated into the minutes of this Council Meeting:

Open Space and Streetscape Advisory Committee - 31 August 2020
Strategic Briefing Session — 8 September 2020

Special Strategic Briefing Session — 15 September 2020

Liveability Innovation & Technology Committee - 16 September 2020

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 An Assembly of Councillors is defined in the Local Government Act 1989 as a
meeting of an advisory committee of the Council, if at least one Councillor is
present, or a planned or scheduled meeting of at least half of the Councillors and
one member of the Council staff which considers matters that are intended or likely
to be:-

2.1.1 The subject of a decision of the Council; or

2.1.2 Subject to the exercise of a function, duty or power of the Council that has
been delegated to a person or committee but does not include a meeting
of the Council, a special committee of the Council, an audit committee
established under section 139, a club, association, peak body, political
party or other organisation.
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2.2 An advisory committee can be any committee or group appointed by council and
does not necessarily have to have the term ‘advisory committee’ in its title.

2.3 Written records of Assemblies are to include the names of all Councillors and
members of Council staff attending, a list of matters considered, any conflict of
interest disclosures made by a Councillor and whether a Councillor who has
disclosed a conflict of interest leaves the meeting.

3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1 The Assembly records are submitted to Council, in accordance with the
requirements of Section 80A of the Local Government Act 1989. The details of
the following Assemblies are attached to this report.

e Open Space and Streetscape Advisory Committee - 31 August 2020
e Strategic Briefing Session — 8 September 2020
e Special Strategic Briefing Session — 15 September 2020

4. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No Officers involved in the preparation of this report have any direct or indirect conflict
of interest in this matter.
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Record of an Assembly of Councillors Manningham City Council

Open Space and Streetscape Advisory Committee

Meeting Date: 31 August 2020
Venue: Zoom meeting
Starting Time: 6.00pm

1. Councillors Present:
Councillor Anna Chen - Koonung Ward
Councillor Andrew Conlon — Mullum Mullum Ward
Councillor Geoff Gough — Heide Ward

Officers Present:

Carrie Lindsay, Coordinator City Design

Frank Vassilacos, Acting Manager Integrated Planning
Michael Tregonning, Coordinator Parks

Samantha Cimati, Administration Officer /Minute taker

2. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest
Nil

3. Items Considered

1. Introducing Robyn Gillespie — new committee member

2. What signage is used by Council regarding dog controls in parks? | have attached an
example of a sign used by another Council that | would like presented at the meeting.

3. What are Council's considerations on the impact of Vic Roads plans for Porter St on

the access/exit to Templestowe Reserve.

What are Council's consideration on traffic management in relation to the proposed

facility upgrade in Petty Reserve.

Any update on NELP.

Update on Ruffey Lake Park Landscape Masterplan.

Macedon Square Streetscape Update.

Update on NELP.

Update 2020/21 Capital projects.

B

©oNON

Finishing time
The meeting ended at 8.30pm

Fdkdkkkkkdkd ok ki kdkah
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Record of an Assembly of Councillors Manningham City Council

Strateqgic Briefing Session

Meeting Date: 8 September 2020
Venue: via Zoom video conferencing
Starting Time: 6:30pm

1. Councillors Present:
Cr Paul McLeish (Mayor), Cr Mike Zafiropoulos (Deputy Mayor), Cr Anna Chen, Cr
Andrew Conlon, Cr Sophy Galbally, Cr Geoff Gough, Cr Dot Haynes and Cr Michelle
Kleinert

Apologies from Councillors:
Cr Paula Piccinini

Executive Officers Present:

Andrew Day, Chief Executive Officer

Angelo Kourambas, Director City Planning & Community

Philip Lee, Director Shared Services

Rachelle Quattrocchi, Director City Services

Andrew McMaster, Corporate Counsel and Group Manager Governance & Risk

Other Officers in Attendance:

Carrie Bruce, Senior Governance Advisor

Frank Vassilacos, Acting Manager Integrated Planning
Lydia Winstanley, Senior Strategic Planner

Sinead Holmes, Senior Urban Designer

Ben Harnwell, Coordinator Business, Events and Grants
Jon Gorst, Chief Financial Officer

Sheraz Akram, Financial Accounting Coordinator

2. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest
Nil

3. Items Discussed
3.1 Doncaster Hill Framework Plan - Project Update (confidential)
3.2 Liveable City Strategy - Project Update (confidential)
3.3 Community Relief Grants
3.4 2019/20 Financial Report and Performance Statement: Approval in Principle
3.5 COVID-19 Community financial relief status and extended relief
3.6 Draft Annual Report 2019/20

The meeting ended at 11.24pm

ok dkdkkkhRddk
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Record of an Assembly of Councillors Manningham City Council

Special Strateqic Briefing Session

Meeting Date: 15 September 2020
Venue: via Zoom video conferencing
Starting Time: 9.00pm

1. Councillors Present:
Cr Paul McLeish (Mayor), Cr Mike Zafiropoulos (Deputy Mayor), Cr Anna Chen, Cr
Andrew Conlon, Cr Geoff Gough, Cr Dot Haynes, Cr Michelle Kleinert and Cr Paula
Piccinini

Apologies from Councillors:
Cr Sophy Galbally

Executive Officers Present:

Andrew Day, Chief Executive Officer

Angelo Kourambas, Director City Planning & Community

Philip Lee, Director Shared Services

Andrew McMaster, Corporate Counsel and Group Manager Governance & Risk
Rachelle Quattrocchi, Director City Services

Other Officers in Attendance:
Liz Lambropoulos, Team Leader Integrated Transport
Frank Vassilacos, Acting Manager Integrated Planning

2. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest
Nil

3. Items Discussed
3.1 NEL Briefing (Confidential)

The meeting ended at 9.58pm
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Record of an Assembly of Councillors Manningham City Council

Liveability Innovation & Technology Committee

Meeting Date: Wednesday, 16 September 2020
Venue: Zoom meeting
Starting Time: 6:30 pm

1. Councillors Present:

(Committee Members)

Councillor Mike Zafiropoulos AM (Deputy Mayor) = Koonung Ward
Councillor Andrew Conlon — Mullum Mullum Ward

Councillor Michelle Kleinert — Heide Ward

(Councillors - Visitors)
Councillor Dot Haynes — Koonung Ward
Councillor Anna Chen - Koonung Ward

Officers Present:

Angelo Kourambas - Director City Planning & Community
Ben Harnwell - Coordinator Business, Events and Grants
Fiona Park — Manager Transformation

Paul Robinson — Senior Project Manager, Transformation
Frank Vassilacos— Acting Manager Integrated Planning
David Bellchambers — Manager IT

Faye Adams — Senior Sustainability Officer (Secretariat)

2. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest
Nil.

3. Items Discussed
3.1 Welcome
3.2 Progress Update
3.3 Bench Marking — best practice in the government sector
34 Discussion Topic — Customer Service
3.5 Communication
3.6 Other Business
3.7 Next Meeting - Chair

Finishing time at 8:30 pm
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5.3 Appointment of Authorised Officer - Planning and Environment Act 1987

File Number: IN20/592
Responsible Director:  Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: 1 S11A Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation -
Emma Lawrance {

ELECTION PERIOD STATEMENT

Council may make a decision regarding the subject of this report in compliance with
Council’s Election Period Policy 2020.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In accordance with the Planning and Environment Act 1987(the Act), Council is
required to authorise officers for the purpose of enforcing the provisions of the Act. Itis
proposed to appoint the Council officer detailed below as an Authorised Officer
pursuant to Section 147(4) of the Act.

The Local Government Act 1989 also empowers Council to appoint a person, other
than a Councillor, to be an authorised officer for the purposes of the administration and
enforcement of any Act, regulations or local laws which relate to the functions and
powers of the Council.

A person who is appointed to a position has the powers of that position under the
legislation which they have been appointed. Authorisations are necessary to facilitate
the efficient and effective function of councils as they enable authorised officers to
carry out compliance or enforcement under legislation related to their functions and
powers of the Council.

Authorised officers will continue to be appointed under s224 of the Local Government
Act 1989, as there are no provisions for appointing authorised officers under the new
Local Government Act 2020.

1. RECOMMENDATION
In the exercise of the powers conferred by section 224 of the Local Government
Act 1989 and the other legislation referred to in the attached instrument of
appointment and authorisation, Council resolves that:
A. the following Council Officer be appointed as an authorised officer:
e Emma Lawrance
B. theinstrument will come into force immediately upon execution and will
remain in force until Council determines to vary or revoke the Instrument or

the officer ceases their employment with Council; and

C. thelnstrument be signed and sealed.
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2. BACKGROUND

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

The Planning and Environment Act 1987 (the Act) regulates enforcement of the
Act and is reliant on authorised officers acting on behalf of the Responsible
Authority which is Council.

The Act, unlike the Local Government Act 1989, does not permit appointments to
be made by the Chief Executive Officer and therefore in order for the officer to
legally undertake the duties of their position under the Act, it is necessary for
Council to make appointments by formal resolution.

The Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation has been prepared based on
advice from Maddocks Lawyers and empowers the relevant officer to exercise
those powers granted in the Instrument.

The appointment will come into force immediately upon its execution under the
Seal of Council and will remain in force until varied or revoked by Council or the
officer ceases employment with Council.

In addition to the appointment under the Act, Council pursuant to Section 224 of
the Local Government Act 1989, may appoint any person other than a Councillor
to be an authorised officer for the purposes of the administration and
enforcement of most other Acts, Regulations or Local Laws which relate to the
functions and powers of Council. This broader Instrument of Appointment and
Authorisation has already been carried out, in respect to the designated officer,
under the delegated authority of the Chief Executive Officer as the first part of a
dual appointment process.

Authorised officers will continue to be appointed under s224 of the Local
Government Act 1989, as there are no provisions for appointing authorised
officers under the new Local Government Act 2020.

The appointment form will be recorded in the Authorised Officers Register that is
required to be kept by Council and is available for public inspection.

3. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No Officers involved in the preparation of this report have any direct or indirect conflict
of interest in this matter.
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Emma Lawrance

By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1. under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument.

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked.

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 13 October 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

e e

MaYOr

Chief Executive Officer ... ...
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